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Chairman's Statement

FEE

Dear Shareholders,

Time flies and fleets. With the lifting of all restrictions after three years
of COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”), 2022 was a key inflection
point for People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) tourism and hospitality
sector to develop its resilience and to change for recovery. The
Pandemic prompts much soul-searching for the whole sector to seek
a new way. With its dedication in the pursuit of innovation and being
practical throughout 2022, Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) steadily
developed our business amid the adversity.

While the overall business environment was challenging in 2022, it was
the year that we sought our breakthrough in a time of change. Since we
were well-prepared with a series of strategic and execution initiatives,
we were well-positioned to capitalize on the opportunities when the
market gradually rebounded in the second half of the year. As of 31
December 2022, the Group had expanded its hotel network to 122
hotels with nearly 30,000 rooms in over 85 cities across the PRC. In
terms of overseas market performance, in 2021, the Group opened its
first asset-light entrusted management hotel, Wanda Vista, in Istanbul,
Turkey, becoming a Chinese high-end hotel brand that goes overseas
and officially receiving the 5 Star-rated Hotel certification from the Turkish
Tourism Board, signifying the recognition of the Group’s managed hotels
in overseas markets and starting the next stage of development.

Our financial performance remained resilient amid the difficult operating
environment. In 2022, the Group reported revenue and profit attributable
to equity holders of the parent of HK$816.8 million and HK$193.2 million
respectively (2021 restated: HK$873.7 million and HK$233.1 million
respectively). Our financial position was still robust and the Group was
still in a net cash position as at 31 December 2022 which prepared us
well to execute our growth initiatives.
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Looking forward to 2023, the tourism and hospitality sector has become
a key indicator of the improvement of living standards. On top of offering
business and economic value, it has also established better living as
core value to consumers. It has also claimed a solid position as a
strategic pillar industry for economies of every country. The Group will
continue to adhere with our core values of “People-oriented, caring for
every staff, warming every customers, fulfilling our responsibilities to our
partners” and actively invest our resources to grow our business, with
dedication to be recognized as a valuable asset management company
with its core competency in hotel business. With the support from our
parent company, Dalian Wanda Commercial Management Group Co.,
Ltd. (“DWCM”, together with its subsidiaries, “DWCM Group”), we are
confident that our business will become sustainable and successful in
the long term with strong growth potential and is well-positioned for
medium and long-term growth.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, directors, management team,
staff, business partners and all others who have rendered their unfailing
support and contribution to the Group. The road is always there for the
passengers who know no boundaries. Let us walk and explore the way
together in 2023!

Ning Qifeng
Chairman

29 March 2023
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Business Review

ZE 750l

During 2022, the Group’s principal businesses are divided into the

following three business segments:—

Hotel business 1. Hotel operation and management services

2. Hotel design and construction management
services

Property business 3. Investment property leasing

HOTEL BUSINESS

During 2022, the Group’s hotel businesses were operated by Wanda
Hotel Management (HK) Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Hotel Management”, together
with its subsidiaries, “Wanda Hotel Management Group”). Wanda Hotel
Management Group is a leading hotel services provider in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and is principally engaged in the business
of hotel management and operation, hotel design, hotel construction
management and related consultancy and other ancillary business, with
comprehensive capabilities in hotel management and operation.

Hotel Operation and Management Services

During 2022, the hotels managed by the Group were operated under
three models, namely:—

1. Leased-and-operated hotels;
2. Managed hotels; and
3. Franchised hotels.

The Group expanded the hotel network under the Group’s management
from 89 hotels with 23,268 rooms as of 31 December 2021 to 122
hotels with 28,656 rooms as of 31 December 2022. As of 31 December
2022, an additional 232 hotels were contracted to be managed by the
Group but were still under development and have not commenced
operation yet.

6 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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Our hotel brands

Business Review
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FHFIBVEE m b2

The Group adopts a multi-brand strategy which is designed to target AEBRB L MERBEUBERRE P RN
sets of customers with distinctive preferences and needs. Below set B EEFHEERLUTIIRMUER B DA EE
forth the major hotels brands under which the Group currently manages BRI EENFEBERE  —

by category:—

Full service hotel brands — Wanda Reign, Wanda Vista, Wanda Realm, 2RBBHERE - SERE - BENE -BE

[Ht

Wanda Jin, Wanda Vi, and Wanda Amber REEEIRE SEEENREETH

Limited service hotel brands — Wanda Moments, Wanda Yue and Wanda BIRRFSEE RS - BEEE §EIRENE

Encore ERIR

Hotel Brand Service Features

BIE R R E

Wanda Reign o An ultra-luxury hotel brand for socialites and the elites that delivers supremely
personalized services and transcends every expectation.

BEInE o A FLMAEREA L BEBEKENE R DR LT SR IE N AZ5RRY
305 mhg

Wanda Vista o A luxury hotel brand for distinguished guests who relish extraordinary services in
oriental elegance that seamlessly blends with local culture.

BiENE s AFHRELENEEER IREMSERASFEEEMRIBEERTS EIEE

Wanda Realm

4

S+
=

BER

#

Wanda Jin

BEiRE

Wanda Vi

Wanda Amber

BERH

HENRE R B R RS fn g

o A premium hotel brand built upon quality service of superb international standards
for business and leisure travelers.

s BEBRTAMNEERER RHRELR  SWEFBENERCRS I F L2 0
AERRNSIHEIRT AL mhE

o A premium and select service hotel brand built upon boutique design and quality
service offering a balanced life experience for business and leisure travelers.

s  REBRKITAMHEERER RHERRFTEEREERY WS TEEY:HET
BT RN S I is BB E Mg

° A premium high-end lifestyle hotel brand offering distinctive design, imaginative and
livable space to travelers seeking lives’” exquisiteness and surprises.

e REABLEH LRTES EXERNREFRERZSERIE EHRWEE BE
SRR S IR A E A TUBE mhg

o A high-end customized hotel brand creating a warm, comfortable and wonderful
atmosphere for business and leisure travelers.

o BEFBHIT HNEEMRIRERHER OEE YA E S B IRE GBS @A
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Business Review

ZE 750l

Hotel Brand
B IS kg

Service Features

e

Wanda Moments

Wanda Yue

mEln

Wanda Encore

BEZIR

The following table sets forth a breakdown by hotel brands and

A high-end midscale hotel brand dedicating to quality design and select services for
the ultimate comfort of business travelers.

RORABEAGK EEERLE ERTEBRNE KRB  RHBERBENF
Sime s TB /S mhE

A midscale hotel brand offering intimate services to business travelers who are highly
individual and willing to experience the trendy.
BN BB EEN ~ SRR IRB A > RO BRFE B R IR ESS mAR

A high-end midscale hotel brand featuring a perennially safe and cosy experience for
business and leisure travelers.

AEHHT R ERRERHISEIN—Z 2 20 LB S IHEE iR

TREGE F2022FE12831H » 1958 E @R

operational model of hotels in operation managed by the Group as at 31 REBEATHRAEE EAEKRESIENAEH

December 2022:— A —
Leased-and-

Operated Managed Franchised Number of
Hotels Hotels Hotels Hotel Room

THEHA HEF
REEE EIRANE REEE EE#E
Wanda Reign BiEnE - 4 - 934
Wanda Vista BENE - 18 - 5,427
Wanda Realm BiERE - 42 2 12,530
Wanda Jin BEiRE - 9 2 3,072
Wanda Yi BiEmE 3 - 1,095
Wanda Moments BiExE 3 20 - 2,888
Wanda Yue BiERE - 10 1 1,483
Wanda Amber BiEZR - 1 - 163
Wanda Encore BEZIR - 1 - 71
Others Hih - 4 1 993
Grand Total FAZE 4 112 6 28,656

8 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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Leased and operated hotels

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had four leased-and-operated
hotels, accounting for approximately 3% of our hotels in operation.
Under the leased-and-operated hotels model, the Group leases hotels
from hotel owners and manages and operates these hotels with all of the
accompanying expenses borne by the Group.

For our leased-and-operated hotels, we are responsible for recruiting,
training and supervising the hotel managers and employees, paying for
leases and costs associated with construction and renovation of these
hotels, and purchasing all supplies and other required equipment. Our
leased-and-operated hotels are located on leased properties and the
terms of our leases typically range from 15 to 20 years, with an initial
two to 15-month rent-free period. We generally pay fixed rent on a
quarterly or biannual basis for the first three to five years of the lease
term, after which we are generally subject to a pre-determined rent
increase annually. Our leases usually allow for term extensions by mutual
agreement. As of 31 December 2022, none of our leases were expected
to expire in 2023.

Managed hotels

As of 31 December 2022, we had 112 managed hotels, accounting for
approximately 92% of all of our hotels in operation. Under the managed
hotel model, we license our relevant brand to hotel owners, manage
hotels through the on-site hotel management team who we appoint and
we charge and collect management fees from hotel owners.

For our managed hotels, we offer hotel owners the right to use our brand
name, logo, operating manuals and procedures. These hotels will be
operated in accordance with our brand standard, including converting
the hotel property such that it conforms to the standard design and
layout of the corresponding brand offering under our supervision,
becoming integrated into our central reservation system and hotel
management IT system, and being included in our consumable goods
procurement system. The property owners are responsible for the
costs of developing and operating their hotels, including the costs of
renovating the hotels to meet our standards.

Business Review
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Business Review

ZE 750l

Franchised hotels

As of 31 December 2022, we had six franchised hotels, accounting for
approximately 5% of all of our hotels in operation. Under the franchised
hotel model, we license our relevant brand to hotel owners similar to the
managed hotel model, but we do not appoint on-site hotel management
personnel and collect fees from those franchisees. In addition, these
hotels will operate in accordance with our brand standards, including
bringing the hotel properties into compliance with the appropriate brand
standards under our supervision.

For our franchised hotels, we offer hotel owners the right to use our
brand name, logo, operating manuals and procedures and convert the
franchised hotels in accordance with our brand standard similar to our
managed hotels. However, as opposed to appointing hotel managers
to manage the hotels on-site, we provide training to hotel staff and
offer reservation and support services to the franchised hotels. In order
to ensure that services offered by the franchised hotels are of quality
consistent to other hotels managed by us, the Group carries out periodic
assessment and report on various aspects of the operation of the
franchised hotels.

Key performance indicators

Revenue per available room (“‘RevPAR”) is the non-financial key
performance indicator which the senior management reviews frequently.
It is a key performance indicator commonly used in the hospitality
industry and is defined as the product of average occupancy rates and
average daily rates per room achieved. Occupancy rates of our hotels
mainly depend on the locations of our hotels, product and service
offering, the effectiveness of our sales and brand promotion efforts,
our ability to effectively manage hotel reservations, the performance of
managerial staff and other employees of our hotels, as well as our ability
to respond to competitive pressure. We set the room rates of our hotels
primarily based on the location of hotels, room rates charged by our
competitors within the same locality and our relative brand and product
strength in the city or city cluster.

10 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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The following table sets forth our RevPAR, average daily room rate and
occupancy rate for our hotels for the year ended 31 December 2022

and 31 December 2021:—

Business Review
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TRIIE T HFIEE2022F12831H &2021
F12A31A L EEMNBENFEFHIEERRE
WA FHEHEREBMAGER  —

For Year Ended 31 December

#H=12H31H
2022 2021
—E-C s

Occupancy rate (%) AEZE(%)
All hotels FraBE 43.5% 47.6%
Full Service Hotel 2R BE & 43.0% 47.6%
Limited Service Hotel BRRBAELRE 46.5% 47 5%
Average daily rate (RMB) THEEEE (AR
All hotels FrBa AL 449 539
Full Service Hotel 2R EE M2 479 560
Limited Service Hotel BRRBALRE 276 274
RevPAR (RMB) FHaHEZERERA (ARHE)
All hotels B AL 195 257
Full Service Hotel 2R ABE @K 206 267
Limited Service Hotel BERRFALmE 129 130

The following table sets forth our RevPAR, average daily room rate and
occupancy rate for our hotels during the year in terms of operational

model: —

Occupancy rate (%)

All hotels
Leased-and-operated hotels
Managed hotels

Franchised hotels

Average daily rate (RMB)
All hotels
Leased-and-operated hotels
Managed hotels

Franchised hotels

RevPAR (RMB)

All hotels
Leased-and-operated hotels
Managed hotels

Franchised hotels

AEE(%)
PREBE

& RS ERE
EEEE

B ElE

FHEAEE (ARK)
PREBE
HEREEHE
EEEE

B ElE

FHAHAEERA AEH)

PREBEE

THE RS E RS
EEEE

B ElE

TRAPIEERBEERA S EBEDN

=

= .

FHAIHEEERWA > FHESEFEMALE

43.5% 47.6%
60.3% 65.2%
42.8% 48.7%
42.4% 38.5%
449 539
242 250
466 541
349 467
195 257
146 163
199 262
148 180
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Business Review

ZE 750l

Provision of hotel staff

The Group is responsible for providing hotel managers and employees
for some of the operational models as disclosed above. In order to
provide better hotel staff to Group’s customers, a subsidiary of hotel staff
provision service was newly incorporated by the Group during the year
under the hotel operation and management services business.

Hotel design and construction management services

The Group’s hotel design and construction management business
targets the same client base as the hotel management and operation
business. Our hotel design business mainly provides interior and
mechanical, electrical and plumbing design services (including interior,
furnishing, lighting, early and later stage design services, mechanical and
electrical parts design, kitchen and back-of-house design) and charge
design fees with reference to the building area of the hotels on a per
square meter basis, depending on the type of design service rendered.
Our hotel construction management business offers consultancy and
project management services to hotels managed by the Group to ensure
that the projects are completed according to the agreed specifications
in terms of cost, time and quality. The service fees charged are based
on a percentage of the total costs of the relevant project with certain
incentives for achieving cost-savings (against budget) targets.

12  Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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PROPERTY BUSINESS
Guilin Project, the PRC

In February 2014, the Company acquired a piece of state-owned land
in Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC with Wanda
Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Wanda HK”) in the
form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 51% and Wanda
HK holds 49%. The project (“Guilin Project”) is located in the central
area of Guilin High-tech Zone, with planned total gross floor area of
approximately 330,000 sg.m., including 153,000 sg.m. of shopping mall
and 177,000 sg.m. of retail, residential and other properties for sale.

All saleable residential and retail properties of the Guilin Project have
been sold. The shopping mall opened in September 2015. With
satisfactory commercial leases and operating conditions, the shopping
mall has become a supreme landmark business centre in Guilin.

OUTLOOK

With the easing of travel restrictions and pandemic control measures,
we expect the economy in the PRC to rebound strongly in 2023. The
Group will closely monitor the performance of the business operations.
Moreover, the Group will continue to expand the hotel network and plan
to add 30 to 35 new hotels in 2023.

The Group will continue to prudently seek profitable investment
opportunities, further expand the Group’s sources of revenue, enhance
the Group’s profitability and maximize return for shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

Business Review
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Financial Review
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by 6.5% to approximately HK$816.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$873.7 million).
Below table sets forth the revenue breakdown by business segment:

Wam

rERREBEE_ S __F+_H=+—HL
FEZ W R6.5% % £9816,800,00078 7T (Z

—4F 1 873,700,000/ 7T) © MEREIIZHEFS
DECEI DB ERERAR |

2022 2021 Changes
—g-= = 23
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$ 000 %
FHAT THEIT FET %
Hotel operation and BIEEE R EIERE

management services 536,424 565,478 (29,054) -5.1%

Hotel design and construction EER st K& 2R EIRIRTS
management services 182,165 200,916 (18,751) -9.3%
Investment properties leasing B EYERE 98,191 107,265 (9,074) -8.5%
Total 4Est 816,780 873,659 (56,879) —6.5%

Hotel operation and management services — The segment revenue BIEEEREERE - SBREN T 2F

decreased by 5.1% to approximately HK$536.4 million in 2022 (2021:
HK$565.5 million), primarily due to:— (i) a decrease in revenue from
hotel management fee by 12.2% to approximately HK$371.6 million
in 2022 (2021:
Group recorded lower occupancy and RevPAR as a result of stringent

HK$423.4 million) since the hotels managed by the

lockdowns and travel restrictions imposed in the PRC during the year
caused by the COVID-19 Omicron variant; but offset by (i) an increase
in hotel operation income by 16.0% to approximately HK$164.8 million
in 2022 (2021: HK$142.1 million) due to a significant increase in income
from product sales and catering services by the hotels managed by the
Group in 2022.

Hotel design and construction management services — The
segment revenue decreased by 9.3% to approximately HK$182.2
million in 2022 (2021: HK$200.9 million), mainly due to the slowdown of
work progress as a result of pandemic control and prevention policies
imposed in the PRC due to the resurgence of the pandemic.
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Investment properties leasing — The segment revenue decreased
by 8.5% to approximately HK$98.2 million in 2022 (2021: HK$107.3
million), mainly due to lower rental rates for short-term leases signed
during 2022.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group rose by 15% to approximately HK$473.5
million in 2022 (2021: HK$411.7 million), mainly due to: (i) an increase in
cost of sales of goods and catering services by approximately HK$26.1
million in 2022 due to expansion of the relevant services; (i) cost of hotel
staff provision service which amounted to approximately HK$14.8 million
in 2022 (2021: Nil); and (i) an increase in cost of investment properties
leasing by approximately HK$13.7 million in 2022 as a result of an
increase in the entrusted management fee paid during the year in relation
to the entrusted management services provided by Zhuhai Wanda
Commercial Management Group Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Wanda”) and its
subsidiaries to the Guilin Project by approximately HK$14.3 million. For
the details of the agreement in relation to such entrusted management
fees, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 24 August
2021 and 30 June 2022.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the above, both gross profit and gross profit margin of
the Group decreased to approximately HK$343.3 milion and 42.0%
respectively in 2022 (2021: HK$461.9 million and 52.9% respectively).

Net valuation loss on investment properties

Net valuation loss on investment properties of the Group was
approximately HK$24.5 million in 2022 (2021: HK$53.0 million). Such
valuation loss was attributed to the decrease in valuation of the shopping
mall of the Guilin Project.
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Segment results

The segment results of the Group for the year ended 2022 and 2021 are
set out below:

VaEIiE i

REERBE_ S _HR_E-_—FILF
BRI EEEIIMT !

2022 2021 Changes
—E_ T4 285
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 %
T#ET FHT FHT %
(restated)
(&E7)
Hotel operation and BIEEEREERD
management services 130,917 167,471 (36,554) —21.8%
Hotel design and construction JBJE % 5t & 2R B IR IRTS
management services 33,850 37,751 (8,901) -10.3%
Investment properties leasing B EYERE 34,591 30,542 4,049 13.3%
Total 4Ect 199,358 235,764 (36,406) -156.4%

The measure used for reporting segment results is adjusted profit before
tax.

Hotel operation and management services — The segment profit
decreased to approximately HK$130.9 million in 2022 (2021: HK$167.5
million), mainly due to the decrease in segment revenue as mentioned
above.

Hotel design and construction management services — The
segment profit decreased to approximately HK$33.9 million in 2022
(2021 restated: HK$37.8 million), mainly due to a decrease in segment
revenue resulting from slower work progress as a result of the
resurgence of the pandemic in 2022.

Investment properties leasing — The segment profit increased to
approximately HK$34.6 million in 2022 (2021: HK$30.5 million), mainly
due to: i) a decrease in valuation loss by approximately HK$28.5 million
in 2022, but offset by i) an increase in entrusted management fee paid
by approximately HK$14.3 million in 2022 in relation to the entrusted
management services provided by Zhuhai Wanda and its subsidiaries.
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Other income and gains, net

The Group’s net other income and gains decreased significantly to
approximately HK$128.1 million in 2022 from approximately HK$211.9
million in 2021, mainly due to:

i. a decrease in other income by approximately HK$141.0 million in
2022 since there was a termination compensation of approximately
HK$139.4 million received from Sunac China Holdings Limited for
breach of contracts in 2021 in relation to its early termination of the
hotel management agreements for their 21 hotels managed by the
Group;

ii. an impairment of long-term receivable in relation to the deferred
amount from the Chicago project disposal, which amounted to
HK$29.5 million in 2022 as compared to approximately HK$19.4
million in 2021. Such impairment was valued by an independent
qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited, after performance
of expected credit loss (“ECL”) analysis on the long-term receivable
as required by HKFRS 9. The ECL analysis has considered the
US economy, credit analysis of the target company, default rate
and recovery rate of the corporate bonds in the market and the
coverage of the collateral assets within the long-term receivable.
The Group’s management has discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and the valuation results. The Chicago
project disposal was closed in November 2020. For further details
of the Chicago project disposal and the repayment terms of the
long-term receivable, please refer to the Company announcements
dated 30 July 2020, 17 August 2020 and 25 November 2020 and
the Company circular dated 29 September 2020; but offset by:

ii. a decrease in impairment of trade receivables by approximately
HK$49.7 million in 2022 after impairment analysis performed by
the management by reference to the credit risk characteristics of
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022;
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iv.  net exchange gain which amounted to approximately HK$6.8
million in 2022 as compared to net exchange loss of approximately
HK$12.0 million in 2021 (restated) as a result of fluctuation in
foreign exchanges during the year; and

V. an increase in interest income on long-term receivable in relation to
Chicago project disposal by approximately HK$8.1 million in 2022.

Selling and administrative expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased by 34.5% to
approximately HK$114.8 million in 2022 (2021 restated: HK$175.2
million). The ratio of selling and administrative expenses over revenue
also decreased to 14% in 2022 (2021 restated: 20.1%), as a result of
vigorous cost-monitoring measures implemented by the Group to cope
with the volatile business environment following the resurgence of the
pandemic.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 38.9% to approximately HK$33.4 million
(2021: HK$54.6 million), primarily due to partial repayment of a loan from
an intermediate holding company during the year.

Income tax expense

The Group reported income tax expense of approximately HK$66.1
million in 2022 (2021: HK$139.7 million). The decrease in income tax
expense was mainly due to (i) decrease of current income tax expense
of approximately HK$21.0 million arising from the decrease of the
Group’s profit before tax and (i) decrease of deferred tax expense of
approximately HK$52.6 million arising from the reversal of deferred
tax provided in 2021 on the distributable profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiary.
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Profit for the year and attributable to equity holders of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, below table sets forth the Group’s profit for
the year and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company in 2022
and 2021 respectively:
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T a AEEF

2022 2021 Changes
—E_C - k)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHB7T FHT
(restated)
Gs=zl)
Profit attributable to:— MTFEHESRT
— Owners of the parent —BREHEA 193,242 233,070 (39,828)
- Non-controlling interests R |2 39,734 18,190 21,544
Profit for the year EEEEF 232,976 251,260 (18,284)

Net assets and equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent

Below table sets forth the net assets and equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
respectively:

BEFENESAREDTA ARGE

L
=

I

TR AEBOIN T __FR_F
——F+= H——F—EIE’\JQE@{EE’Z/AE
RmTA AL

As at 31 December

®+ZB=+—H

2022 2021

—E_C T

HK$’million HKS$'million

BEET BEAT

(restated)

(fREZ)
Total assets BB E 5,261.2 7,205.4
Total liabilities FE=N 2,073.7 3,357.8
Net assets BEEFE 3,187.5 3,847.6

Equity attributable to equity holders of BARERITE AELER

the parent 2,567.3 2,534.4
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Long-term Receivable

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had long-term receivable of
approximately HK$1,783.9 million (At 31 December 2021: HK$1,694.4
million). Such long-term receivable primarily represented:—

(i)

the deferred amount of the consideration (the “Deferred Amount”)
of approximately USD203.5 million from the disposal of Chicago
project, which was completed on 24 November 2020 (the
“Completion Date”); and

the relevant interest generated from the Deferred Amount.

The Deferred Amount was divided into two tranches. The first tranche of

the Deferred Amount (the “First Tranche Deferred Amount”) amounted

to approximately USD103.5 million which will have a maturity date of

not later than 24 November 2023 (the “Initial Maturity Date”) and can

be extended for two successive one-year periods by the purchaser.

The outstanding amount of the First Tranche Deferred Amount will earn

interest on compound basis and be calculated as below:—

U

(i)

(i)

V)

20

from Completion Date through and including the day immediately
preceding the first anniversary of Completion Date, at a rate of
8%;

from the first anniversary of Completion Date through and
including the day immediately preceding the second anniversary
of Completion Date, at a rate of 9%;

from the second anniversary of Completion Date through and
including the day immediately preceding the third anniversary of
Completion Date, at a rate of 10%; and

if the Initial Maturity Date of the First Tranche Subordinated
Note is elected to be extended from the third anniversary of
Completion Date through and including the Initial Maturity Date,
at a rate of 15%.
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The second tranche of the Deferred Amount (the “Second Tranche

Deferred Amount”) amounted to USD100 million which will have a

maturity date of not later than the Initial Maturity Date and can also be

extended for two successive one-year periods by the purchaser. The

outstanding amount of the Second Tranche Deferred Amount will earn

interest on compound basis and be calculated as below:—

(i)

(v)

from Completion Date through and including the day immediately
preceding the first anniversary of Completion Date, at a rate of
3%;

from the first anniversary of Completion Date through and
including the day immediately preceding the second anniversary
of Completion Date, at a rate of 5%;

from the second anniversary of Completion Date through and
including the day immediately preceding the third anniversary of
Completion Date, at a rate of 7%; and

if the Initial Maturity Date of the Second Tranche Subordinated
Note is elected to be extended from the third anniversary of
Completion Date through and including the Initial Maturity Date,
at a rate of 15%.

The Deferred Amount is secured by a mortgage on certain condominium

units under development of the Chicago project. For further details of the

Chicago project disposal and the Deferred Amount, please refer to the
Company announcements dated 30 July 2020, 17 August 2020 and 25
November 2020 and the Company circular dated 29 September 2020
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Liquidity, borrowing and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash (including restricted bank
balance) amounted to approximately HK$1,080.9 million (As at 31
December 2021 (restated): HK$3,008.5 million) and primarily consisted
of Renminbi (“RMB”). Below table sets forth the breakdown of cash by

MREBEE ERRMBER

AR TE+ B+ R AEEZIRS
(BEZRHIRITAEER) 49731,080,900,0007
TMIEI—F+"B=+—H &=7)) :
3,008,500,0007T) » FEAARE (AR

currency: 1) o NREF IR EIEELER) 2 IRE R

As at 31 December

R+ZB=+—H

2022 2021
== T
(% to (% to
total cash) total cash)
(HIREHEEE%) ((HIREARRA%)
(restated)
Ge==pdl)
RMB NG 83 96
Australian Dollar BT 7 3
Hong Kong Dollar BT 9 1
United States Dollar (“USD”) ZEt (Em) 1 0
100 100

As at 31 December 2022, the current ratio of the Group, which is the
quotient arrived at by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was
1.02 (As at 31 December 2021 (restated): 1.25).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s interest-bearing loan amounted
to approximately HK$11.4 million (As at 31 December 2021: HK$873.0
million) and such loan was repayable on demand.
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Below table sets out the gearing ratios of the Group:
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TR AEENE A ELE

As at 31 December

®w+-—HA=+—H
2022 2021
=2 T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(Ceg==el)
Total debts {BISHEER (11,404) (873,000)
Less: Total cash and bank balances* B D IR BRI TAE BRAR R 1,080,921 3,008,545
Net cash IS5 1,069,517 2,135,545
Total equity s 3,187,483 3,847,621
Total assets HEE 5,261,205 7,205,384
Gearing ratios: BAREELE
Net debts over aggregate of net debts and B FREPRIAEF FREGIABE = Net Cash Net Cash
total equity il HEe B R
Net debts over total assets EI5FREPR AR E = Net Cash Net Cash
R IREP4E

*Including restricted cash
Foreign currency and interest rate exposure

During the year, the Group’s business was principally conducted in RMB.
The functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC was
RMB and these subsidiaries do not have significant monetary assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than their respective functional
currencies. The Group’s exposure to currency risk during the year was
primarily through the long-term receivables and the amount payable to
an intermediate holding company that are denominated in USD. The
Group maintains a conservative approach to foreign exchange exposure
management. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency exposure and have no
hedging instrument outstanding as at 31 December 2022.
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As at 31 December 2022, the interest-bearing loan of approximately
HK$11.4 million of the Group was on a fixed rate basis. Accordingly, the
Group’s cost of borrowing was not subject to interest rate risks. It is the
Group’s policy to monitor the suitability and cost efficiency of hedging
instruments in order to manage interest rate risks, if any. The Group
will prudently consider entering into currency and interest rate hedging
arrangements to minimise such exposures if and when appropriate.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no pledge of its assets (As at
31 December 2021: Nil).

Changes in share capital

There was no change in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements in this report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

The Group had no acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2022 except the
Business Combination to facilitate the development of hotel design and
construction management services business as disclosed in note 2 to
the financial statements in this report.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No director has the right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had around 1,342 full-time
employees, who are located in the PRC, Hong Kong and the USA.

During the year, the Group remunerated its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market salaries. Performance
bonuses were granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
included insurance and medical coverage, and subsidized educational
and training programs.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date that these consolidated financial statements were
approved, there is no event after the reporting period which should be
disclosed.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFEkEHREEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ding Benxi, aged 68, has been a Non-executive Director of the
Board since July 2013. He was also an executive director of DWCM and
served in various positions of DWCM Group from December 2009 to
February 2020. He was also a director of Dalian Wanda Group Co., Ltd.
(“Dalian Wanda Group”) until September 2020. Before joining DWCM in
December 2009, Mr. Ding served in various positions of Dalian Wanda
Group, including president, chief executive officer and vice president.

Mr. Ding completed the correspondence course of Renmin University of
China (B AR AZ) in July 1998. He became a senior engineer of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (FHEZEE Ti2428A
&) in August 1997.

Mr. Zhang Lin, aged 51, has been a Non-executive Director since
November 2017. He has also been serving as the director of Dalian
Wanda Group since February 2011. Mr. Zhang has been serving as
the director of Wanda Industry Investment Co., Ltd since January
2021. From October 2020 to May 2022, he served as the President of
Wanda Investment Group. Mr. Zhang has been concurrently acting as
the chairman and a director of Wanda Film Holding Co. Ltd (B3 &E &
IR EBRAT)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002739.S7) from November 2006 to December 2020,
and from July 2022 onward; the chairman and a director of AMC
Entertainment Holdings, Inc. (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, stock code: AMC) from August 2012 to March 2018 and
from December 2019 to July 2021; the chief executive officer of Beijing
Wanda Cultural Industry Group Co., Ltd GEREBEZEXICEXERER
‘A7) (“Wanda Culture”) from December 2012 to December 2013, the
president of Wanda Culture from December 2013 to July 2020; and
the chairman and president of Wanda Culture from July 2022 onward;
the chairman of the board of Infront Holding AG from July 2015 to
September 2020, and from September 2022 onward; the chairman of
World Triathlon Corporation from November 2015 to July 2020; and
the chairman of Wanda Sport Group Company Limited (a company
listed on the NASDAQ in the form of American Depositary Receipts)
since November 2018. In addition, Mr. Zhang had also been a non-
executive director of DWCM since December 2009 to 29 January 2016
and from May 2022 onward, he has served as its president. He joined
Dalian Wanda Group in March 2000 and formerly held various positions,
including but not limited to the vice president of Dalian Wanda Group
and the finance director of Dalian Wanda Group and general manager of
project companies in Chengdu, Shenyang and Nanjing respectively. Mr.
Zhang has extensive experience in financial management and operation
management of large property development, property management,
and entertainment corporations, especially in corporate strategy and
investment.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(FEIEBA4C8ARZE) in July 1994 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. In January 2012, Mr. Zhang received an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Beijing University (A5 AZ2) . Mr.
Zhang is a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a non-practicing member of the China Certified
Tax Agents Association.

Mr. Han Xu, aged 52, has been a Non-executive Director since March
2019, has extensive experience in finance and general management.
From February 2020, Mr. Han has been serving as the Senior Vice
President of Dalian Wanda Group, a joint stock company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability, and a controlling shareholder of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing all financial operations
of Dalian Wanda Group. Prior to that, since his joining of the Dalian
Wanda Group in 2002, Mr. Han served in various roles including General
Manager of Finance Department of DWCM (formerly known as Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co. Ltd.), General Manager of the Group
Financial Management Center, President Assistant, Senior President
Assistant, and Vice President within the Dalian Wanda Group. He holds
a Master degree in Business Administration in Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ning Qifeng, aged 57, has been an Executive Director since
November 2017 and Chairman since April 2021. Mr. Ning is also a first
vice president of DWCM and the president of Wanda Hotel Management
(Shanghai) Co. Limited (BBZAEEIE (L&) BARAE). Mr. Ning had
been a vice president of DWCM from December 2009 to June 2015
and had been a senior vice president of DWCM from June 2015 to July
2017. Mr. Ning formerly also served as a first vice president of DWCM; a
vice president and an assistant to the president of Dalian Wanda Group;
the general manager of Wanda Hotel Construction Ltd. (B85 EER
BFR/AF]) and the dean of Wanda Commercial Planning and Research
Institute (BRI R BIAIZET) . Mr. Ning has extensive experience
in property development and property management (including hotel
development and hotel construction management).
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Directors and Senior Management

EFEkENEEE

Mr. Ning obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering from Northwest
Architecture Engineering Institute (FAILEEZE T2 2B7) in July
1986, a master's degree in engineering from Northwest Metallurgical
Construction Institute (FA30/AEEREZEPT) in July 1992 and a Ph.D in
engineering from Tongji University (B3 AZ) in May 2004.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Zhiping, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since March 2018. He studied at the China Textile University
(currently known as Donghua University) in Mechanical Engineering
in 1979 and graduated with a master degree in engineering in 1986.
Since 1987, Mr. He has previously served as the assistant to the general
manager of the United Rail Ltd, Shenzhen Branch of China Nonferrous
Metals Company (FEEECEBRIIBMEATRIEERAE),
the assistant to the general manager and vice general manager of
Hainan Sanya Huaya Enterprise Group Corporation (87 =gpZEda{d
¥ E£E/AT) and a director of China Great Wall Securities, LLC (E
HEHEBEREEAT). He was a non-executive director of AviChina
Industry & Technology Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, stock code: 2357) from August 2016 to May
2019. From December 2019 onward, Mr. He has also been serving
as a director and a vice chairman of JA Solar Technology Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002459).
He has been the chairman of the board of directors of China Wall King
Holding Co., Ltd (FEIZEZEEZERRAERAE) since March 2003. Mr.
He also serves social positions such as founding president and executive
president of Hong Kong Federation of Jiangxi Associations, and member
of board of trustees of Donghua University, and chairman of Alumni
Entrepreneur Association (X &2 (¥ KB E) .
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Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since March 2019. He is experienced in mergers
and acquisitions and strategic management. From January 2017, Dr.
Teng has been serving as an independent non-executive director in
Haisco Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (BEBRIBEEE D AR
‘AE]), a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002653). He has been an independent non-
executive director in Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 6869) since January 2020. He has
been an independent non-executive director in Litian Pictures Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 9958) since May 2020. Prior to that, he
was an independent non-executive director of (i) Shandong Gold Mining
Co., Ltd. (UEEZEEERMDARAE), a company whose shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
1787) in 2018 and The Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600547)
in 2003, from 2014 to 2017; (i) ZTE Corporation (REREFLHDHR
‘AE]), a company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:763) and the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000063), from 2015 to 2018; (i) Aoshikang
Technology Co. Ltd. (B+ERFKRABERLQE]), company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002913) from November
2018 to November 2021; and (iv) Zhejiang Aokang Shoes Co., Ltd G#f
ST EEZERMABIRAT), a company whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603001) from January 2023
onward. Dr. Teng served as an assistant professor and then associate
professor of strategic management at The George Washington University
from August 1998 to December 2006. He then joined Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business (EJIEZ %) in January 2007 as an
associate professor and was promoted as a professor in February 2017
and has been the associate dean there since April 2009. Dr. Teng holds
a doctorate of strategic management degree from City University of New
York.
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Directors and Senior Management

EFEkEHREEE

Dr. Chen Yan, aged 61, has been an independent Non-executive
Director since March 2019. She has extensive experience in accounting.
From July 2005, Dr. Chen has been a professor in accounting at the
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (BRILEAAL K ER) . She is
also an evaluation expert in financial accounting of the China Scholarship
Council (BIXR®EZEESEHEE) and China Postdoctoral Science
Foundation (FEIETERIZES) since 2015, evaluation expert of
the National Social Science Fund of China (BIR#t#} &%) since 2020
and an internal control specialist and financial advisor at Dalian Fang
Yuan CPA Co., Ltd (KEHBEEEMERHEAABRAE) since 2017.
From 2014 to 2017, she was involved in the risk assessment and
review of the internal control systems of various research institutes and
organizations for and on behalf of the Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics. She was a deputy director of the Accounting Department
from 2003 to 2007 of the same university. From March 2018, Dr. Chen
has been serving as the independent director of Liaoning SC Technology
Co., Limited (EZ=BHEHZRNERAE), a company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability. She has served as an independent
director of Dalian Hellon Piston Co., Ltd (KEEZEZERMDBREA
@), a company listed on National Equities Exchange and Quotations
in Beijing Stock Exchange (stock code: 833455) since July 2022. Dr.
Chen holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree in Accounting
from the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (BRILEAAEAK
) and is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (R Bl & 5TET1#®) and a senior member of the
Accounting Society of China (FE]&5t2 ). She was also a former
member of the American Accounting Association and the Association of
Certified Fraud Examiners, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 55, joined the Group in December
2000. She is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible
for the company secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Hui has over 22
years of professional experience in public accounting and corporate
finance. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. She is also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Mr. Liu Yingwu, aged 48, has been Senior Assistant to President of
DWCM and Dean of Wanda Hotel Design and Research Institute Co.,
Ltd. (“Wanda Hotel Design and Research Institute”) since March 2017.
Mr. Liu has also been Vice President of Wanda Hotel Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. since December 2020 and is responsible for
design and construction division and Development Center. Mr. Liu was
Assistant to President of DWCM and Dean of Wanda Hotel Design
and Research Institute from September 2016 to March 2017 and Vice
President of Wanda Hotel Design and Research Institute from May
2013 to December 2015. Mr. Liu previously served as Deputy General
Manager of Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co. Ltd and the
Deputy General Manager of Wanda Xishuangbanna International Tourism
Resort Management Co Ltd. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in the field
of commercial planning and design (including hotel design management).
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Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor’s degree from Hefei University of Technology
in July 1999 and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Hefei
University of Technology in July 2021.

Mr. Dong Jun, aged 51, has been Vice President of Wanda Hotel
Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and Assistant to President of DWCM
since January 2018 and is responsible for Full Service Hotel Division
(full-service hotel business). Mr. Dong served as General Manager of the
operation department of Wanda Hotel Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
from June 2017 to January 2018. Mr. Dong previously served as the
general manager of Wanda Vista Yantai and Wanda Vista Quanzhou and
the owner representative of Hyatt Regency Wanda Jinan, Westin Wanda
Hefei, Le Méridien Wanda Qingdao and Sofitel Wanda Harbin. He has
many years of extensive management experience in hotel management.

Mr. Dong obtained a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Shandong
Youth University of Political Science in June 1999 and a Postgraduate
degree in Tourism Management and Service Education from Shanghai
Academy of Social Sciences in July 2001.

Mr. Chen Mengchao, aged 52, has been Vice President of Wanda
Hotel Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd since October 2018 and
is responsible for the operation and management of Lifestyle Hotel
Division (limited-service hotel business). Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chen was Executive President of Mangrove Tree Resort World, Vice
President of China Jinmao Holdings Group Limited, President of Smart
Hotel Group and Vice President of Nanjing Jinling Hotel Management
Company Limited. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in hotel operation
management.

Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Clinical Medicine from Nanjing
Medical University in July 1993. In November 2004, he obtained a
Master’s degree from School of Hotel and Tourism Management of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Yang Bing, Bryant, aged 55, joined the group in May 2017. He is
the vice president of Wanda Hotel Management (HK) Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Hotel Management”, together with its subsidiaries, “Wanda Hotel
Management Group”), responsible for the financial center, information
and supply chain of the Wanda Hotel Management Group. Mr. Yang
has over 25 years of professional experience in hotel management and
corporate financial management. He obtained a bachelor's degree in
economics from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in
July 1990 and a master’s degree in business administration from the
Kelley School of Business of Indiana University in the United States
in May 2003. He is a member of the Association of International
Accountants.
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Directors’ Report

£ A

The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are hotel
operation and management services, hotel design and construction
management services and investment property leasing in the PRC during
the year. The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2022
is presented in Chairman’s Statement, Business Review and Financial
Review on pages 4 to 5, pages 6 to 13 and pages 14 to 25 respectively.
The Financial Review also includes an analysis of the Group’s
performance during the financial year ended 31 December 2022 in
terms of financial key performance indicators on pages 22 to 23. Likely
future developments in the Group’s business are disclosed in Chairman’s
Statement and Outlook section of Business Review which forms part
of this Directors’ Report on pages 4 to 5 and page 13 respectively. The
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since 31 December 2022 (including but not limited to transactions in
relation to subsidiaries) are set out in Financial Review on page 25.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in
Business Review and note 36 to the financial statements on pages 6 to
13 and pages 267 to 275 respectively, with financial risk management
policies and practices of the Group covered under the aforesaid note 36
to the financial statements.
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The Group is committed to the sound performance of its corporate
social responsibilities and believes that a high standard of performance
is very helpful for maintaining sound relationships between corporate
and society as well as promoting staff confidence. The Group is a
keen supporter of environmental protection and takes the protection
of ecological environment and promotion of sustainable development
as its goal. We have introduced eco-friendly measures in our business
of investment property leasing. For instance, we have reduced our
carbon emission by implementing green building and energy-saving
measures. We have also reduced the potential impact of our business
on the ecological environment through proper waste disposal.
Further discussion of environmental, social and governance matters,
covering the Group’s environmental policies and performance is
set out in Corporate Governance Report and Environmental, Social
and Governance Report on pages 65 to 89 and pages 90 to 121
respectively.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators through
effective communications. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

The Company strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
providing quality services for our customers and collaborating with our
suppliers. To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Company, we take ‘Customer First’ as one
of our core values. We value feedback from customers and have also
established the mechanism in handling customer service, support and
complaints. We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers and
contractors to deliver quality and sustainable products and services. We
have developed certain requirements in our standard tender documents.
These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices,
anti-corruption and other business ethics.

The Group values its employees and encourages its staff to achieve
a good work-life balance. The Group continued to devote resources
to improve staff benefits with a view to improving staff morale as well
as attracting and retaining talents. We have established fair, open and
comprehensive employment policies to attract talent.
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The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 130 to 133 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable, stable and continuing dividend policy. The Company’s
dividend policy aims to strike a balance between allowing Shareholders
to participate in the Company’s profit and allowing the Company to retain
adequate reserves for business operations and future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company and applicable laws
and regulations, with various factors including (i) the earnings per share
of the Company; (i) the reasonable return in investment of investors and
Shareholders in order to provide incentive to them to continue to support
the Company in its long-term development; (i) the financial conditions
and business plan of the Company; and (iv) the market sentiment and
circumstances. Compliant with the conditions under the dividend policy,
the Board may propose final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends distribution as the Board considers appropriate based on the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company. The Company shall
review and reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a regular
basis or when necessary.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately
HK$27,800 in total.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 41.9% of the Group’s total sales in
2022 while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 22.5% of the Group’s total sales in 2022.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised approximately 63.8% of the Group’s
total purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 40.1% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is
set out on pages 278 to 279. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the major property and property interests of the Group are
shown on page 280 of the annual report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong Kong
and certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to pension schemes operated
by the respective governments. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is to pay the required ongoing
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng (Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi

Mr. Han Xu

Mr. Zhang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Dr. Chen Yan

Mr. He Zhiping

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng

36  Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

RINETE

FEEREBERL—ERFELRE IR
EBLIMIEZ ET B AR AREHEM
RZETHEDEREMBUTRILZRRES
IR - AEEPBRAT B ARIEZE—F
ERFESI S BIPRR Z o

e s
AFERREZ RASBFHTHIN M BHRER
BysE2T °
fitfa

FERRENRTEREZEHHNUBHRERZ
irEREEHE -

EFRRBEH

FAREERRSHRZARTESNT !

HITES
BEIESLE (F/F)

FRTES .
TABE
BfasE
REFSE

BAIFITES (MBIIFITESR)
[
ST oL
BORE IO L



In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not three or a multiple by three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire
in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors on the
same day shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
The Company at any general meeting at which any Directors retire may
fill the vacated offices.

In accordance with code provision B.2.2 of part 2 in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should
be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

All of the directors of the Company have entered into services contracts
with the Company. The term of appointment of Mr. Ding Benxi is 3 years
from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016; the term of appointment of Mr. Ning
Qifeng and Mr. Zhang Lin is 3 years from 17 November 2017 to 16
November 2020; the term of appointment of Mr. He Zhiping is 3 years
from 29 March 2018 to 28 March 2021; the term of appointment of
Mr. Han Xu is 3 years from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022; the term
of appointment of Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan is 3 years
from 21 March 2019 to 20 March 2022; each of which is renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party. None of the above service contracts is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordnance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(1) Interests in shares of DNCM (Note 1)

EFZESED

NZE - TE+-B=+—H8 BRARIRE
EBHRPEGR (B REEEG)) 5535215
ZHREMEFEZ SR MATLRRIRELTA
BIEFETEA R 5 RESFR) (MEESFA))
MM ERRAB B BRI EEERHE
BARFT AR REREE (E&REBEF R
ERGIEXVED) 2 Bk mm T

(1) RAEEEFFREERMHDZE
m (fI5E1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Long position/ Capacity/Nature Interest in share capital

Name of Director Short position of interest Shares of DWCM of DWCM

mREEE

RAERE [EE=$E

HEERE BRITREZ

EENS W e 51 EEE iRz L E =Rl

Mr. He Zhiping Long Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.55%
IS FRE Fa BmEAA
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Interests in underlying shares of DWCM (Note 1)
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() MREFEBHXESEMERERMF

Z s (fEE)

Approximate

percentage

Interest in of the issued

Long position/ Capacity/Nature underlying share capital of

Name of director Short position of interest shares of DWCM DWCM

RAERE LRERE

[ESES=FE AEEED T

E5l4 wE %e 515 EmtE RN Z#ERE RAEZBABESLE

(Note 2)

(F¥5E2)

Mr. Ning Qifeng Long Beneficial owner (Note 3) 6,000,000 0.13%
EHIELE S EmEA A (f15E3)

Mr. Zhang Lin Long Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,000,000 0.22%
SRERAEE Fa BmsEB A (ffx4)

Mr. Han Xu Long Beneficial owner (Note 5) 1,600,000 0.035%
BRBEE 5= EmEA A (fisks)

Notes: B 5T

)

DWCM, being an indirect holding company of the Company, is an
associated company of the Company under Part XV of the SFO. The
calculation is based on the total number of 4,527,347,600 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2022.

The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of DWCM'’s issued shares as at 31
December 2022.

Mr. Ning is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 7.78% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.

Mr. Zhang is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 5.14% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.

Mr. Han is interested in the underlying shares of DWCM through
his 0.82% interest as a limited partner of a limited partnership that
beneficially owns those shares in DWCM.

RIFFZ SR IERAEXVE > AR F)
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ZADLIEH AR 2 AR & E
MRUKEEEBREEEN _S -
+-RB=+—BZBBTRHHE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive
of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which have been entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or which have been
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SHARE SCHEME

The Company did not have any effective share scheme during the year
ended and as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors nor chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2022, so far as was known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group were as follows:
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAERE RAEREF
R 15 Rz AE A BRITREZ
LSt ] W ke B EEE BRinh 2z % BAE 2L
Wanda Commercial Long Beneficial owner (Note 1) 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Properties
Overseas Limited
(“Wanda Overseas”)
BiEmEME RS S BmEA A (isE1)
BRRE (T&ZEB8IN)
Wanda Real Estate Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investments Limited corporation (Note 2)
BEMERERRAT 5= R EGEE 2 En
(M$zE2)
Wanda HK Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 3)
BEEE S NEEGEE Z #im
(M$5E3)
DWCM Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 4)
AERERXEEEH S R2EGNEE 2 i
(MI5E4)
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAEREF RAEAF
& 15 Rz AE R BEITREZ
eIt wE  %KE 5 HEmtE B in Rz ek BA B2
Dalian Wanda Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 5)
REBEER 5= RREREE 2 S
(P$5E5)
Dalian Hexing Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investment Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 6)
(“Dalian Hexing”)
RESELEFRAT 5= RREREE 2 S
(TRESH)) (MI5E6)
Mr. Wang Jianlin Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 7)
F MRS S N EGIEE 2 i
(M$5E7)
Mr. Chen Chang Wei Long Beneficial owner and held 278,098,230 5.92%
(“Mr. Chen”) by controlled corporation
(Note 8)
FREREE (TPRTED) S BB A RBEREGEE
A (MEE8)
Long Interest of spouse 23,600,000 0.50%
(Notes 8 and 9)
e FofBiEm (fi5E8%%9)
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni Long Beneficial owner 23,600,000 0.50%
PR IR 22 £ S Bm#EAA
Long Interest of spouse (Note 10) 278,098,230 5.92%
e fofBEm (fFEE10)
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
iR /N RZAAT
B 17 B AE R BEITREZ
LA e KA 519 #mtE IRz i BAE oL
Ever Good Luck Limited Long Beneficial owner 73,860,230 1.57%
(Note 11)
Ever Good Luck Limited = ERm#EE A
(Bff5E11)
Long Trustee 204,237,800 4.35%
wa ZEEA

Notes: 5T -

(1) On 11 January 2023, Wanda Overseas has pledged all its 3,055,043,100 1 RIEZ=F—B+—8 > 8&B8NEH
ordinary shares of the Company to a lender as security for a loan facility HiFBAR2E03,055,043,1008 4~ A 5] & &
provided. Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 12 RERFTETA FAEREETRENIE
January 2023. R -B2RAARBRBAZE=4—H

+ZAENAL-

(2)  Wanda Real Estate Investments Limited holds more than one-third of @ BEMERERRABRNABE=2—8EZ
the issued shares of Wanda Overseas and is therefore deemed to have BINE BTG B RAR A AT (B
an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which BINEESPEE S 2 RS RAIBRERMD T
Wanda Overseas is interested. WA o

(3)  Wanda HK holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda Real Q@ BESAEFEBB=S/Z—BEMERER
Estate Investments Limited and is therefore deemed to have an interest in RAB BTG FALWRANAAE (B
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which Wanda Real EMEREERARWKATETHERS#ER)
Estate Investments Limited is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, ZRDRBRERMDIEEEm JERITES
being a non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board, was a director REFEIFTAHAREHEE S EFT
of Wanda HK until 17 February 2020. B+tHABERBZESE-

(4)  DWCM holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda HK and @) AREBEBHEEBEEAEBB=S—8BEDTH

is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which Wanda HK is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding
Benxi, being a Non-executive Director, was an executive director and
the chairman of the board of directors of DWCM until 10 February 2020.
Mr. Ning Qifeng, being an Executive Director, is a chief vice president of
DWCM.

BETRM BILRER/NEATE (BEEE
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TTFERTAR/KEREREEEZHY
TESREFEIR -WTEFTEFEEE
PAREBENEEEEFERIEE-

BEAERREMRAT 43
—ZEHER



Directors’ Report

£ A

)

Dalian Wanda Group holds more than one-third of the issued shares of
DWCM and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which DWCM is deemed to be
interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, being a Non-executive Director, was a director
of Dalian Wanda Group until September 2020. Mr. Zhang Lin, being a Non-
executive Director, is a director of Dalian Wanda Group.

Dalian Hexing holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Wanda Group and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Wanda Group is
deemed to be interested.

Mr. Wang Jianlin holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Hexing and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Hexing is deemed to be
interested.

As at 31 December 2022, Mr. Chen was deemed to have a long position
of 301,698,230 Shares, of which () 200 Shares were beneficially and legally
owned by him, (i) 204,237,800 Shares were held on trust for him by Ever
Good Luck Limited (“Ever Good”), (i) 73,860,230 Shares were beneficially
owned by Ever Good, and (iv) 23,600,000 Shares were held by his spouse,
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni, as beneficial owner.

Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen.

Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Chen is interested.

The entire issued share capital of Ever Good is ultimately owned by Mr.
Chen and Mr. Chen is the sole director of Ever Good. See note (8) in the
section headed “Discloseable interests and short positions of shareholders
under the SFO” in this Directors’ Report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted the following continuing connected

transactions during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground and
related business (“Kidsland Tenancy Agreement"”)

Pursuant to the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 8 June 2015
(“Guilin
Project Company”) as landlord and Wanda Kidsplace Group Co.

entered into between Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza Co., Ltd.*

Limited*, formerly known as Wanda Kidsland Co. Limited (“Wanda
Kidsland”) as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in
Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of five years commencing
from 12 September 2015 to 11 September 2020 for the operation
of children entertainment and playground business and other related
business, including the sale of kids clothing and food and beverage. A
supplemental deed dated 2 August 2019 was entered into by the same
parties to amend the size of the area leased under the Kidsland Tenancy
Agreement.

On 7 September 2020, Guilin Project Company entered into a
new Kidsland Tenancy Agreement with Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Kids
Entertainment Co., Ltd*, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wanda Kidsland
to renew the existing lease for a further term of 15 years commencing
from 12 September 2020 to 11 September 2035 (both days inclusive).

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Kidsland and Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Kids
Entertainment Co., Ltd are indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Jianlin
who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, they are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2022 was RMB1,572,000 and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB1,425,000.
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Leasing of premises for operation of cinema and related
business (“Cinema Tenancy Agreement"”)

Pursuant to the Cinema Tenancy Agreement dated 8 September 2015
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Wanda
Film Holding Co., Ltd* (formerly known as Wanda Cinema Line Holding
Co., Ltd, “Wanda Cinema“) and Nanning Wanda International Movie Mall
Company Limited* as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza
in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of 20 years commencing
from 12 September 2015 to 11 September 2035 for the operation
of cinema business and related business, including sale of food and
beverages. Pursuant to a deed of novation between Wanda Cinema,
Nanning Wanda International Movie Mall Company Limited (“Nanning
Wanda Cinema”) and Guilin Project Company dated 2 August 2019,
Wanda Cinema agreed to transfer and Nanning Wanda Cinema agreed
to assume all of Wanda Cinema’s rights and obligations in and under
the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the remaining term of the Cinema
Tenancy Agreement as from 2 August 2019 and Guilin Project Company
agreed to such novation.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda Cinema are
indirectly wholly-owned by Dalian Wanda Group which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Cinema and Nanning Wanda
Cinema are connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2022 was RMBS3,207,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB834,000.

46  Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

HEMFECEER R RABRETR
(MBI E )

RBEEMIEE R ((FR%XEF) BEESER
HERAE BB EERERRNERAR
TBESXhE) kmESEEREENE
[BAT (EAER) R_ZE—RFHAB/N\BF]
2 BERGHERR PEEMTEMS T
Bz T2 EWNEERULE B MRg
B RABAER > SIEHE B R AEE - AR
H_E—-HAFNBA+_HEBE_ZS=R%FAh
B+—H1E> AE20F - RIFEEZES 4T
HERZEERECNERAR (EEREER
) EEMIBEE AR ILAPEA S —NFEN
BIHZBEZE BEBTIRERREERK
HEEREETYNARAEREER MENE
FIRGEERERE TFERAREZZ—FEN
BZHEREXREGHEREE N 2FAa#
MWEET MEMEBEBE AR EREREES-

EMEBEBRBRTABZERIFZENBER
e AN BEBR G KEEREERXHMAL
NRZERBRRAEEEEEABREERR
BIRE LHRR BEER G REEREE
TR AT ZRBA L

HEZZET "+ -BA=+—HILFE B%
AR EiRRE TR EMIBEE ABHEAR
B EE LRA ARKS,207,0000 MEEXZ
EIREEEH A K 1834,0007T ©



Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground and
other related business under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace*
(B#ZEHT)" ("Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June 2018
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Gaoxin Wanda Kids Entertainment Co., Ltd (“Guilin Wanda Kids”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of ten years commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30
June 2028 for the operation of children entertainment and playground
business and other related business, including the sale of kids clothing
and food and beverage, under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace* (& 3E
HEETE)
by the same parties to amend the size of the area leased under the
Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement.

. Supplemental deed dated 2 August 2019 was entered into

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Guilin Wanda Kids is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Guilin
Wanda Kids is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB88,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB81,000.

Leasing of premises for carpark business (“Carpark Tenancy
Agreements")

Pursuant to the carpark tenancy agreement dated 28 June 2019 entered
into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin Wanda
Shopping Plaza Business Management Co., Ltd (“Wanda Plaza Business
Management”) as tenant, certain carpark premises of the Guilin Gaoxin
Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022 for the operation of
carpark business.

On 30 June 2022, Guilin Project Company entered into a new carpark
tenancy agreement with Wanda Plaza Business Management to renew
the lease term for three years commencing from 1 July 2022 to 30 June
2025 (both days inclusive).
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Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Plaza Business Management is indirectly
wholly-owned by DWCM who is an indirect holding company and
a controlling shareholder of the Company, Wanda Plaza Business
Management is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Carpark Tenancy Agreements for the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB4,667,000, and the actual amount incurred
was approximately RMB2,713,000.

Provision of hotel management services to Dalian Wanda Group

Pursuant to the hotel management framework agreement (the “Hotel
Management Framework Agreement”) entered into between the
Company and DWCM Group on 13 November 2018 for a term from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2038. Under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement, the corresponding annual caps will expire on
31 December 2021, and as the Company intends to continue the
transactions under the Hotel Management Framework Agreement, on
18 November 2021, the Board resolved to propose to renew the annual
caps for the transactions contemplated under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2024.

On 18 November 2021,
agreement (the “Novation Agreement”) with DWCM Group and Dalian

the Company entered into the novation

Wanda Group, pursuant to which () DWCM Group agreed to novate,
and Dalian Wanda Group agreed to assume, all of DWCM Group’s
rights and obligations in and under the Hotel Management Framework
Agreement from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2038; and (i) the
Company agreed to such change under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement. Pursuant to the Novation Agreement, Dalian
Wanda Group agreed to be substituted in place of DWCM Group in
respect of the Hotel Management Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder and to be fully bound by the
Hotel Management Framework Agreement as and to the same extent
as if Dalian Wanda Group was a party thereto in place of DCWM Group
from the date of the Hotel Management Framework Agreement. Save
for the aforesaid amendment, all other terms of the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement remain unchanged.
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Pursuant to the Hotel Management Framework Agreement (as amended
by the Novation Agreement), the Dalian Wanda Group may from time to
time engage the Group to provide hotel management services (the “Hotel
Management Services”) which may include, but are not limited to, the
below services for the property projects of Dalian Wanda Group:

- pre-opening support and technical advisory services regarding
specification standards required for hotels being managed
and other coordination services to facilitate the pre-opening
preparation;

- procurement of services and products for operation of hotels;

- carrying out marketing and business development activities and
providing accounting, finance, human resources and information
technology functions;

- setting the prices of guest rooms and other services; and

- other relevant functions and services for the operation of hotels.

Members of the Group and the Dalian Wanda Group Companies
shall enter into separate agreements (“Individual Hotel Management
Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of Hotel Management
Services for relevant projects, which shall be subject to the terms
and conditions under the Hotel Management Framework Agreement
and the applicable annual caps. The duration of each Individual
Hotel Management Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel
Management Framework Agreement and the terms of the Individual
Hotel Management Agreements shall be made on normal commercial
terms. DWCM and Dalian Wanda are a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and DWCM Group and Dalian Wanda Group are a connected
person of the Company and the Hotel Management Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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The service fees payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group

for the Hotel Management Services for each hotel shall be fair and

reasonable and shall be charged on the following basis:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

50

management fees comprising a base management fee at a rate
of 2.5% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel and
an incentive management fee at a rate between 6% and 8%
(inclusive) of the gross operating profit of the relevant hotel;

group service fees for the relevant financial, human resources and/
or information technology services provided by the Group charged
at a rate of 2% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel;

pre-opening fees, comprising a hotel pre-opening support fee
of RMB500,000 (or other currency equivalent) for each hotel
and a technical services fee of RMB2 million (or other currency
equivalent) for each hotel; and

6% of the room income for each room booking made via the
official reservation systems of hotels under Wanda Hotel Brands;
5.6% of the of aggregate revenue contributed by each customer
introduced by the regional sale department of hotels of Wanda
Hotel Brands; and 5% of certain spending of any member of
Wanda Club, a club for customers of the hotels of Wanda Hotel
Brands.
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The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2024 for the provision
of Hotel Management Services by the Group are approximately
RMB67,624,000, RMB75,923,000 and RMB75,676,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the
Group for the Hotel Management Services under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately RMB47,050,000.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 November 2021 and circular dated 9
December 2021.

Leasing of property (including office, storage and parking
space) in the PRC for daily operation needs and provide
property management services for the leased properties (the
“Management Services") by DWCM Group to the Group

On 18 November 2021, as the then existing property leasing framework
agreement entered into on 13 November 2018 was due to expire on 31
December 2021, the Company renewed the property leasing framework
agreement with DWCM Group for a term of three years from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2024 (“Property Leasing Framework Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Property Leasing Framework Agreement entered into
between the Company as lessee and the DWCM Group as lessor,
DWCM Group may from time to time (i) lease property (including office,
storage and parking space) in the PRC to Group for its daily operation
needs and (i) provide Management Services in accordance with the
terms and conditions thereto.
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Management Services to be provided by the DWCM Group will be
specific to the leased property, and may include but are not limited
to the management and maintenance of shared and public facilities
(such as rooftops, corridors, flowerbeds, trees, outdoor pipes, drains,
ponds, car parks, etc.) and traffic and parking management at the
leased property. Members of the Group and DWCM Group shall enter
into separate agreements (“Individual Lease Agreement(s)”) in relation
to the lease of property by DWCM Group to Wanda Hotel Management
Group (depending on the particular property being leased, this may
include Management Services), which shall be subject to the terms
and conditions under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement
and the annual caps thereunder. The duration of each Individual Lease
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement and the terms of the Individual Lease Agreements shall be
made on normal commercial terms.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2024 are approximately RMB22,372,000 per
annum.

The aggregate amount payable by the Group to the DWCM Group
for the Management Services under the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately RMB16,086,000.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 November 2021.
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Provision of hotel design services to Dalian Wanda Group

On 18 November 2021, as the then existing hotel design framework
agreement entered into on 13 November 2018 was due to expire on
31 December 2021, the Company renewed the hotel design framework
agreement with Dalian Wanda Group for a term of three years from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (“Hotel Design Framework
Agreement”), pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its
subsidiaries may from time to time engage the Group to provide hotel
consulting services (the “Hotel Design Services”) which may include,
among others:

- interior, furniture, fixtures and equipment design and consulting
services;

- back-of-house area design review services;

- outdoor direction signage and indoor lighting design consulting
services; and

- kitchen and launderette area design services

for the hotel projects of Dalian Wanda Group. Dalian Wanda Group and/
or its subsidiaries and the Group shall enter into separate agreements
(the “Individual Hotel Design Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision of
Hotel Design Services for relevant projects, which shall be subject to the
terms and conditions under the Hotel Design Framework Agreement and
the annual caps thereunder. The duration of each Individual Hotel Design
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel Design Framework
Agreement and the terms of the Individual Hotel Design Agreements
shall be made on normal commercial terms.
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The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the Group for the
Hotel Design Services under each Individual Hotel Design Agreement
shall be fair and reasonable and shall be determined with reference
to the prevailing market prices by taking into account the quotations
obtained by Dalian Wanda Group from at least two independent third
party suppliers for the provision of equivalent or similar services in their
ordinary course of business and which shall not, from the Group’s
perspective, be less favourable than the rates charged and terms for
equivalent or similar services provided by the Group to independent third
party in hotels of equivalent or similar grading.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian \Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2024 for the provision of
Hotel Design Services by the Group are approximately RMB59,766,000,
RMB17,764,000 and RMB4,065,000 respectively.

The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Design Services under the Hotel
Design Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to approximately RMB23,964,000.

Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019 and 18 November 2021, and
circular dated 28 November 2019 and 9 December 2021.
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Provision of hotel construction management services to Dalian
Wanda Group

On 18 November 2021,
framework agreement entered into on 18 October 2019 was due

as the hotel construction management

to expire on 31 December 2021, the Company renewed the hotel
construction management framework agreement with Dalian Wanda
Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2024 (“Hotel Construction Management Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries may from
time to time engage the Group including Wanda Hotel Management
Group to provide hotel construction management services. For the
avoidance of doubt, such services do not include project design,
construction and supervision work, in respect of which Dalian Wanda
Group should hire relevant professional advisory body(ies) and be
responsible for such expenses. Dalian Wanda Group and/or its
subsidiaries and the Group shall enter into separate agreements (the
“Individual Hotel Construction Management Agreement(s)”) in relation
to the provision of hotel construction management services for relevant
projects, which shall be subject to the terms and conditions under the
Hotel Construction Management Framework Agreement and the annual
caps thereunder. The duration of each Individual Hotel Construction
Management Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Hotel
Construction Management Framework Agreement and the terms of the
Individual Hotel Construction Management Agreements shall be made
on normal commercial terms.

The service fees payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the Group for the
hotel construction management services for each hotel shall be fair and
reasonable and the consultation and hotel construction management
service fees for each project shall be charged according to the project
area and such fee shall not exceed RMB136 per square meter.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Dalian Wanda Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2024 for the provision of
hotel construction management services by the Group are approximately
RMB26,101,000, RMB14,239,000 and RMB2,431,000 respectively.
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The aggregate amount payable by the Dalian Wanda Group to the Group
in respect of the provision of Hotel Construction Management Services
under the Hotel Construction Management Framework Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB1,058,000.

Dalian Wanda Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 November 2021.

Supplying products to Dalian Wanda Group

On 18 November 2021, as the product supply framework agreement
entered into on 30 June 2021 was due to expire on 31 December 2021,
the Company renewed the product supply framework agreement with
Dalian Wanda Group (the “Product Supply Framework Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Product Supply Framework Agreement entered into
between the Company and Dalian Wanda Group, Dalian Wanda Group
and/or its subsidiaries agreed to purchase, and the Group agreed to
supply the specially accustomed gift and food products, including but
not limited to products such as rice dumplings, mooncakes and gift
boxes (the “Product”) during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2024.

Dalian Wanda Group and/or its subsidiaries shall place specific
orders (“Individual Specific Order(s)”) for each purchase through a
merchandising platform available to the hotels that is managed by the
Group, which shall stipulate, among others, the product types, quantity
and delivery details and be subject to the terms and conditions under the
Product Supply Framework Agreement and the annual cap thereunder.
The duration of each Individual Specific Order shall not exceed the term
of the Product Supply Framework Agreement and the terms of the
Individual Specific Orders shall be made on normal commercial terms.

The purchase prices payable by Dalian Wanda Group to the Group for
the Products for each purchase shall be determined with reference to the
purchase prices for equivalent or similar products offered by the Group
to other independent third parties.
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The annual cap of the transaction amount payable by the Dalian Wanda
Group to the Group under the Product Supply Framework Agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2024 are approximately
RMB22,973,000, RMB22,973,000, and RMB24,357,000 respectively.

The actual transaction amount incurred under the Product Supply
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB22,333,000.

For details of the said transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 18 November 2021.

Provision of commercial operation services (“Commercial
Operation Services") by Zhuhai Wanda Commercial
Management Group Co., Ltd.("Zhuhai Wanda") to the Group

As the then existing entrusted management agreement dated 24
August 2021 was due to expire on 30 June 2022, on 30 June 2022,
Guilin Project Company (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company), Zhuhai Wanda and Guilin Wanda Shopping Plaza Business
Management Co., Ltd (“Guilin Wanda”) entered in to the Entrusted
Management Agreement for a term of three years from 1 July 2022
to 30 April 2024 (the “Entrusted Management Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Entrusted Management Agreement, Zhuhai Wanda and Guilin
Wanda (“Zhuhai Wanda Group”) shall provide the Commercial Operation
Services in respect of the commercial complex project (“Commercial
Complex Project”) held by Guilin Project Company, which include
commercial management services, property management services and
value-added services.

The management fee payable by the Guilin Project Company for the
Commercial Operation Services provided by Zhuhai Wanda Group will
be based on a pre-determined formula which comprises a basic service
fee and a bonus service fee, both being a certain applicable percentage
of the net operating income generated by the Commercial Complex
Project.
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The net operating income is the total income generated by the
Commercial Complex Project (including rental and rental related income
and other income generated by the Commercial Complex Project)
less deductions agreed upon between the parties in the Entrusted
Management Agreement being costs of operating and managing the
Commercial Complex Project such as fees incurred for maintenance,
cleaning, security guards, renovation, energy, etc.

The abovementioned service fees were determined based on normal
commercial terms after arm’s length negotiation between Guilin Project
Company and Zhuhai Wanda. Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Since Zhuhai Wanda Group
are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of DWCM which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, they are connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by Guilin Project Company
to Zhuhai Wanda Group under the Entrusted Management Agreement
for the three years ending 31 December 2024 are RMB27,287,000,
RMB30,989,000 and RMB10,728,000 respectively. The actual amount
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB21,393,000.

*

English translation is directly translated from Chinese and is for illustrative
purpose only.
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Review by and Confirmation of Independent Non-Executive
Directors (the “INEDs")

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2022, and confirmed
that such transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and

(8) according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation by the Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors of
the Company have confirmed by way of a letter to the Board that, for the
year ended 31 December 2022:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;
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(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(8)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in this annual report, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that such
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
set and disclosed by the Company.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any other significant
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should
be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
related party transactions set out in note 33 to the financial statements
which were also connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
Directors/employees of the company are set out in notes 10 and 11 to
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the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, the interest of Directors and their respective
associates in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with business of the Group:

Name of Director/

A — 8 —

TR THF+ZR=+—H EFEKHEB
BB ERER XS (TmEESED B

EENHEFRF 2D

BF PRI RNBRF L EFNEA DU T

Nature of interest in

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
B HMBAMS YNSIEZE REATRPEEZEE EYNCIPA 3
Mr. Ning Qifeng DWCM Interested in underlying shares Engaging in property
representing 0.13% of the development, property lease,
issued share capital of DWCM property management and
investment holding
BEHIERF REBEMRER REENAEEENXEIECDE NEVERL - VEHE - WEE
TR 20.13% 2 A8 RE R (D EBREEER
AT
Mr. Zhang Lin DWCM Interested in underlying shares Engaging in property
representing 0.22% of the development, property lease,
issued share capital of DWCM property management and
investment holding
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Name of Director/ Nature of interest in

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
BE HMBRAUS YNSIEZE REARPHEHRZEE BRATZER
Mr. Han Xu DWCM Interested in underlying shares Engaging in property
representing 0.035% of the development, property lease,
issued share capital of DWCM property management and
investment holding
FRBSLE REBEMEERE REENAERESHEERECE NBVEMZ YEBE -WEE
TRAZ0.036% 2 KM F  EBREEER
BEEED
Mr. He Zhiping DWCM Being a shareholder with 0.55% Engaging in property
interest development, property lease,
property management and
investment holding
AIETFRE REBENEEIE EAERR  #H0.55%H NEMERE - YERE - WEE

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with
business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the INEDs to be independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, subject to the relevant statutes,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless by the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they incur in the execution of their
duty or supposed duty. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2022 and remained in force as
of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance for
the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS

During the year, Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2022 at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting held on 29 June 2022 and to hold office until
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ning Qifeng
Executive Director (Chairman)

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential for the effective management, a healthy corporate culture
and balancing of business risk. Furthermore, it is also essential to the
success of the Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Except for deviation
from CG Code provision C.2.1 as explained in the relevant paragraphs
on page 69 in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2022.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including one Executive
Director, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company has maintained three Independent
Non-executive Directors which represent over one-third of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2022. The Board’s composition
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report is set out as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng (Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi

Mr. Han Xu

Mr. Zhang Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Dr. Chen Yan

Mr. He Zhiping

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their respective fields of
expertise and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 26 to
31 There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
amongst the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD PRACTICE

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company
is managed, its strategic direction and performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to and delegated by the Board.
The Board has given clear directions to the management team that
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions;

—  Treasury, accounting and remuneration policies;

—  Review on internal control system and risk management;

—  Changes to major group corporate structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement;

— Notifiable transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions;

—  Proposed transactions requiring shareholders’ approval;
—  Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities;

— Joint-ventures with outside party involving capital commitment
from the Group of over 5% of the relevant size test of the
Company; and

— Financial assistance to Directors.

Day-to-day operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s management
team.

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, has ensured that the
Board adheres strictly to all rules and requirements for its meetings and
the maintenance of full and proper records. Procedures are established
for every Director to have access to Board papers and related
information, to have the services of the Company Secretary, and to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.
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The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensures that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publications of such
financial statements.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 December
2022, to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and
financial performance of the Group, and to review and approve the
Group’s annual and interim results. At least 14 days’ notice was given for
all regular Board meetings together with the meeting agenda such that
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion
in the agenda. In addition, one general meeting was held during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and attendance of each Director at these
meetings is set out as follows:

EFEHRARERRARTZHMBRE
WHFARRFSGAEERNERZ G5t E/RE
Mk EF G FREKRFEMRETHR
o

BE_Z__H+_A=+—HIFERN &
EEERTHERGH UFmAER 2 BHE%R
B R S E R HBRIT WHER M ERER
ZEERTHREE MAESEREREREE
R+ UEATE L ER G HRZRBA > X
CHBEESHARENEENMASREER
N REEZSE - —F+-A=+—HIF
ERBRIT—RERRERY BEFLHEZZE
EZEREINT
Number of Number of

Board meetings general meetings

attended/held attended/held
EFETERY RERAERE
HE BT HE BT
Executive Director: HMITES .
Mr. Ning Qifeng (Chairman) BHIERE (F/F) 4/4 11
Non-executive Directors: JEBMITESE .
Mr. Ding Benxi TARHEE 4/4 11
Mr. Zhang Lin SRR E 4/4 11
Mr. Han Xu Bt 4/4 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: EIIJEHMITESE :
Mr. He Zhiping AEFRE 3/4 11
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng B EEE L 3/4 1/1
Dr. Chen Yan PREHIE LT 3/4 1/1
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General meeting is one of the channels for communication between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Company’s auditors,
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting held
on 29 June 2022. Other than the general meeting(s), the shareholders
may also communicate with the Company through the contact
information listed on the Company’s website. Measures for effective
communication between the Board and the shareholders are described
in the paragraphs under “Communication with Shareholders” and
“Shareholders’ Rights” in this report.

Mr. Ding Benxi was appointed as Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company on 3 July 2013 and resigned as Chairman on 22 April
2021. Mr. Ning Qifeng was appointed as Executive Director on 17
November 2017 and appointed as Chairman on 22 April 2021. Prior
to his appointment as the Chairman of the Company on 22 April 2021,
although the Company has not appointed a chief executive officer, the
duties of the chief executive officer have been performed by Mr. Ning.
With Mr. Ning’s appointment as the Chairman, such practice deviates
from CG Code provision C.2.1. Considering that the Group’s business
has been in line with its clear strategic direction and the fact that Mr.
Ning has demonstrated suitable management and leadership capabilities
along with his thorough understanding of the Group’s business and
strategy since his appointment as an executive Director in 2017, the
Board believes that vesting the role of the Chairman and the duties of
a chief executive officer in Mr. Ning can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation.
Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code will not be inappropriate in such circumstance.
In addition, under the supervision of the Board in which Mr. Ding, the
outgoing chairman, will continue to remain as a non-executive Director
and which comprises, two other non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, the Board believes that it is
appropriately structured with balance of power to provide sufficient
checks to protect the interests of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in the Board and committee meetings brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests
of all shareholders.

The Company has three Non-executive Directors, an Executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, with the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors representing over one-third of the
Board. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the Non-
executive Directors are three years, from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016 for
Mr. Ding Benxi, from 17 November 2017 to 16 November 2020 for Mr.
Zhang Lin, and from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022 for Mr. Han Xu.
The terms of appointment for all Non-executive Directors are renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company.
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According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are three years, from 29 March
2018 to 28 March 2021 for Mr. He Zhiping and from 12 March 2019 to
20 March 2022 for Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan. The terms
of appointment for all Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. He Zhiping, Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan, are renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
Independent Non-executive Director or the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established and adopted a written nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as set out in
the Nomination Policy (such as reputation for integrity, qualifications and
experience, time commitment and contribution to diversity of the Board
according to the Board diversity policy, etc.), identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment. In
the case of re-appointment of Director, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution, attendance in meetings
and level of participation from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate
is appointed for the position of independent non-executive Director,
the Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence with
reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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Nomination procedures

In appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members for its consideration
prior to the meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall then make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval. The information, including biography,
independence (for nomination of non-executive or independent non-
executive directors only), proposed remuneration and other information
as required under the applicable laws and regulations will be included
in the circular to shareholders. A shareholder may also serve to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong a notice in
writing for his/her intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain
candidate as Director and a notice by the nominated person of his/her
willingness to be elected according to the Bye-Laws of the Company,
without the Board’s recommendation or nomination of the Nomination
Committee other than those candidates as set out in the circular. The
Board shall then consider and have the final decision on all matters
relating to whether to make the recommended candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting. The Nomination Committee shall ensure
the transparency and fairness of the selection procedure.

New Director(s), on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the new
Director(s) more detailed information on the Group’s operations, business
and activities.
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According to Clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if the number of the Directors is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save any
Director holding office as Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors
to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last election but as between persons who became Directors
on the same day shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-
election. The Company at any general meeting at which any Directors
retire may fill the vacated offices. Further, any Director appointed to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board should hold office only
until the next general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at
the meeting.

According to code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to
the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agree to
waive any remuneration during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nomination
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommmendations where
appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned on pages 67 to 69 in the section headed “Board Practice”
above, have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2022 to, among other things, assess
the performance of Executive Director, review and discuss the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors, and the service
contract and remuneration packages of the Directors. The members of
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member at
the committee meeting are set out as follows:

HINEE T

==

[
NEREOIN—=

FHERESEELAMN
CEERG-XEATEH W (EREE
SENTEEZ R B R HEEREY
SN RS - DR E 2 IR A A0 R
R FHERE 2 MANRENALRER
TEHEZBREIINT ;

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEEEIH™

Committee member ZEEHE HFE BT
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng (Chairman) BOREE L (/) 11
Mr. He Zhiping AIEFLEE 11
Dr. Chen Yan [ 1/1

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which was amended and readopted by
the Board with effect from 29 December 2022, in accordance with
the requirements of the CG Code for the purposes of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Company’s remuneration proposals.
The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members, all
of them are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties
and has access to independent professional advice in accordance with
the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
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to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group of which the Company is a member
company;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration of the

members of the senior management who are not Directors are within the

following band:

()

(i)

(i

(vii)

(vii)
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets at least twice each year. In 2022, the Audit
Committee met twice to, among other things, consider the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June
2022, discuss with the auditors of the Company on internal control,
risk management, compliance with rules and regulations, auditors’
independence, auditors’ remuneration and the scope of work in relation
to the annual audit. The members of the Audit Committee and the
attendance records of each member at the committee meetings in 2022
are set out as follows:

BZEEY

BENEZEEREEVAMMREZ - BREE
RS FERITMRERER UL (HFE
B ERAEEBE_ S _—F+_"_A=1—
ALEMBEFEZ2FEXERFEREE"T
TTFEANAZTRHIENER ZHRHAREE B
NEZBET S mABEE  AREE -BTR
AR RGBS ~ 2B EMIB 1L 1% ~ 12 B Em Bl
REEZBTFHRE - R -_"F BZZE
BEMEUKREMEHREZEGERZBNR
HIWTF -

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEEEIH™

Committee member ZEEHE HFE BT
Dr. Chen Yan (Chairwoman) FR&siEt (£/E) 2/2
Mr. He Zhiping AIEERE 2/2
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng BRI B2 4 2/2

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference, which was amended and re-adopted by the Board with effect
from 1 January 2019, in accordance with the requirements of the CG
Code for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Chen Yan, Mr. He Zhiping and Dr.
Teng Bing Sheng.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

(i) to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors;

(i)  to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

(i)  to approve the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services;
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to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

to liaise with the Board and senior management and must meet
with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty

to have effective internal control and risk management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors;

to review the external auditors’ management letter;

to ensure the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letter; and

to review reports on the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in this report.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any matter

under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent

professional advice. It is given full access to and assistance from

management and reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.

The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors at least twice

every year.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2022 to, among other things, review
the composition of the Board, consider the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the retirement and re-election
of directors. The members of the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of each member at the committee meeting are set out as
follows:

RYUEEY

RPEEESFAELAR—RER-RNF
T THERT-RFEEEH U EDPER)
R EEG AN ERBIIFRTEEZE
TMHUKREREZREREE - REEESENE
UKREREHREESEZZIFRHIINT :

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held

ZEEEEIH™

Committee member ZEEHE HFE BT
Mr. Ning Qifeng (Chairman) BHFIEEE (F/EF) 11
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng BRIl B2 E 4 1/1
Dr. Chen Yan [ 1/1

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in June 2005, which was amended and re-adopted by the
Board with effect from 1 January 2019. It currently consists of three
members, including a Non-executive Director and two Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

(i) to review the performance of the Board and ensure that the
Board and its committees consist of directors with the appropriate
balance of skills, diversity and knowledge of the Company to
enable it to discharge its duties effectively;

(i)  to assist the Board in succession planning for the Board and senior
management;
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to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall take into consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in accordance with the
Board diversity policy adopted by the Company from time to time
to achieve Board diversity;

to draw up, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity policy
for the Board’s approval having due regard to the requirements of
the Listing Rules in place from time to time, review and update the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy in the
Company’s corporate governance report;

to develop, review and implement, as appropriate, the policy
for the nomination of Board members, which includes the
criteria, process and procedures for the identification, selection
and nomination of candidates for Directors for the Board’s
approval. Such criteria include but are not limited to the potential
contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity in accordance with the Company’s diversity policy.
The Nomination Committee should disclose in the Company’s
corporate governance report the nomination policy and the
progress made towards achieving the objectives set in the policy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors having regard to relevant guidelines or requirements of
the Listing Rules in place from time to time and, if a proposed
director will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, his/her ability to devote sufficient time to Board
matters;

(i)

)

(vii)
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to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors
and senior management, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive, taking into account all factors which the Nomination
Committee considers appropriate including objective criteria and
potential contributions a candidate can bring with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and skills and expertise required
in the future and ensure that senior management succession
planning is discussed at the Board at least once annually;

to keep under review the leadership needs and leadership training
and development programmes of the Group, with a view to
ensuring the continued ability of the Group to function effectively
and compete in the market;

to evaluate the needs for, and monitor the training and
development of, directors;

to develop the procedures for the performance evaluation of the
Board committees:

(@) review and assess the skills, knowledge and experience
required to serve on various Board committees, and make
recommendations on the appointment of members of the
Board committees and the chairman of each committee;

(b) recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board committees as necessary or
desirable;

(c) review the feedback in respect of the role and effectiveness
of the Board committees arising from the evaluation
of the Board and/or any Board committees and make
recommendations for any changes;

to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board.
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Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length service.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. According to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the above Board
diversity policy of the Company has been approved by the Board
and adopted by the Nomination Committee on 23 August 2013 and
amended with effect from 1 January 2019 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least once a year to
review the diversity of the Board and discuss the measurable objectives,
including knowledge, appropriate professional qualifications, relevant
business background and experience, skills, relevant management
expertise and independence of Directors, and give recommendation
to the Board. During the year, the Nomination Committee takes the
view that the measurable objectives were achieved to a large extent.
It paid particular attention on the cultural and educational background,
professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of
Board and also reviewed the composition between Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so as to ensure appropriate
independence within the Board.
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As at the date of this report, the current Board comprises six male
members and one female member. The Company considers that it has
achieved gender diversity by having Board members of both gender and
the Company will endeavor to continue to maintain at least one female
member on the Board. The Nomination Committee will also seize the
opportunity to gradually increase the proportion of female Directors in
the Board when selecting and recommending a new candidate in the
event of any new appointment of director(s). The Company believes that
the balance of gender in the Board would bring more inspiration to the
Board and enhance the development of the Group, thus gender diversity
is an essential factor when selecting suitable candidate as a Director.

As at the date of this report, approximately 83% of the Company’s senior
workforce (including the Directors and senior management) is male and
approximately 17% is female. The details of workforce composition were
disclosed under the Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this
report. The Company targets to avoid a single gender senior workforce
and will timely review the gender diversity of the senior workforce in
accordance with the development of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Group’s finance department, the financial statements
of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Group. The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern.
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The report of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their KRB)INEZE ML K BN ERM 2 RS
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set ~ MEBRNEEPHRF Z EHRSTEHNFE122

out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report from pages 122 to 129.

External Auditors' Independence and Remuneration

BEF1208 7 B ZHENRES

SNESAZERET 2 I M RN

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the EIZEE R ERERERINEZEN 2Bt
external auditors to ensure the objectivity in the financial statements. MERMBRER2EHE -ZEFHUERAE
Members of the Committee are of the view that the Company’s external NEZINEZEETEBIE - RER BN
auditors are independent. During the year, the remuneration paid/payable FE A A BIMNEZEET 2 Bl &5 T -

to the Company’s external auditors are set out as follows:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Group A ERER 2 RS Bt EEER

HK$'000

FAT

Annual audit services FEZERT 1,169
Non-audit services: JERZBBRTS:

Review of interim report ERF RS 374

Other services HMMAR 151
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Group’s systems of risk management and internal control includes a
defined management structure with limited authority, and is designed
to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provisions of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is put in place to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board has conducted
review of the Group’s risk management by ongoing monitoring of risks
(including ESG risks), and internal control systems during the year ended
31 December 2022 including financial, operational controls and risk
management functions and ensured the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget for the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions at least annually.
The Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and considered them to be effective and
adequate.

In relation to the Board’s risk management and internal control
functions, the Board fulfils its duties by determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors of the Company,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report, and receiving and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company. Where any significant risks (including
ESG risks) are identified, the Board will evaluate and manage such risks
by considering the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s
financial results, the probability that the risk will occur and the imminence
of the risk.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function, but instead shares
and benefits from the internal audit function of its parent, DWCM,
which operates an internal audit function for all of its subsidiaries,
including the Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the efficiency and effectiveness
of the current internal audit arrangement. The situation will be reviewed
from time to time.

The Group has adopted procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner and in compliance with the SFO.
The procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review on a regular
basis. Unless the inside information falls within any of the safe harbors
as permitted under the SFO, the Group is required to disseminate such
information through the electronic publication system operated by the
Stock Exchange to the public in a timely manner. All Directors, officers
and relevant employees are required to take reasonable precautions
for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the
Group will immediately disclose the information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable.

Directors' Training

Pursuant to CG Code Provision C.1.4, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.
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The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual Directors also
participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All the Directors (namely, Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Zhang Lin, Mr. Han Xu, Mr.
Ning Qifeng, Mr. He Zhiping, Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and Dr. Chen Yan)
have participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant
records to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their
knowledge and skills through participation in the training programmes,
which in turn ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the
Board.

Company Secretary's Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided her training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim reports, annual reports,
announcements, notices and circulars, which are published to the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s own website.
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The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman actively seeks to participate at the AGM and
personally chair the AGM to answer any questions from the Company’s
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each propose resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where
a poll is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against have been
received in respect of each resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Company’s
shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Procedures
for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at General
Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws is
available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can put
forward a proposal at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda. The requisition
specifying the proposal, duly signed by the requisitionists, together with
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses.
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The procedure for Shareholders to nominate a person for election as a
Director is also available on the Company’s website. Subject to the Bye-
Laws of the Company, any shareholder wishing to nominate an individual
for election as a Director of the Company at the AGM shall, no later
than 7 days prior to the relevant general meeting, submit a completed
form of nomination to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong, and in default the form of nomination submitted shall be
treated as invalid. Any such form of nomination shall be accompanied
by a biographical profile of each proposed nominee and a written
statement from the proposed nominee consenting to be nominated
and, if nominated and elected, consenting to serve as a Director of
the Company. The biographical profile of each proposed nominee shall
include at least the following information: () full name, age and address
of the proposed nomineg; (i) past and present directorships (if any) and
employment of the proposed nomineeg; (i) the information as required to
be include in the announcement of the Company under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Enquiries from shareholders to the Board

In order to ensure effective communication between the Company’s
shareholders and the Board, the Company adopted the shareholders
communication procedures on 28 February 2012. According to the
shareholders communication procedures, the Board is responsible for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with the Company’s shareholders and
in particular, and using AGMs or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation. The chairman of the Board
should attend the AGM. He should also invite the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the chairpersons of the Audit, Remuneration,
Nomination and any other Committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their
absence, the chairman should invite another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend. These persons
should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

The chairperson of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing, whose contact details are as follows:

The Board of Directors

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Unit 3007, 30th Floor

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

The Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company will
consider the enquiries and concerns raised by the shareholders and
reply as appropriate.

The Board has conducted a review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders communication procedures. Having
considered the diverse channels of communication in place, the Board
is satisfied that effective shareholders communication procedures have
been properly implemented throughout the year ended 31 December
2022.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing
an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review
and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of
our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIG - HEKRERKRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Reporting Scope and Boundary

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“Report”) presents the Group’s initiatives and performance in
environmental, social and governance aspects between 1 January 2022
and 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”), which is consistent
with our financial year. Unless otherwise specified, the data, policy
documents and statements mentioned in this Report cover business
operated by the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), namely
the Group’s hotel services business, the Guilin project (i.e. Guilin Gaoxin
Wanda Plaza, the “Plaza”) and four leased-and-operated hotels, namely
Wanda Moments Hotel Qingpu, Shanghai, Wanda Moments Hotel,
Nanchang West Railway Station, Wanda Moments Hotel Yinzhou,
Ningbo and Wanda Yi Hotel, Wuxi City (collectively referred to as “the
Hotels”). The scope of this Report does not cover the Group’s newly
set up Human Resources Business during the Reporting Period as
its revenue contribution is insignificant and does not have significant
environmental and social impacts.

Reporting Standards

The Group prepares the Report in compliance with the relevant
requirements as stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). We have appointed an independent
consulting firm to offer professional advice for preparing the Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

In the preparation of the Report, the Group has adhered to the four
reporting principles as stated in the ESG Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency.

° Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment
were conducted to identify and prioritize material ESG issues in our
business operations.

° Quantitative: Quantitative metrics are disclosed in this Report to
keep track of and evaluate our ESG performance.

° Balance: This Report provides an unbiased assessment on the
Group’s ESG performance by highlighting both our achievements
and areas for improvement on ESG management.

° Consistency: Unless otherwise specified, consistent
methodologies are adopted for year-on-year comparisons of the
Group’s ESG performance.
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IRIG - HEKRERKRS

BOARD APPROVAL

The Report has been approved by the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
before publication.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

For the sake of sustainable development, the Group takes a proactive
approach to manage its ESG issues. As a responsible corporate in
society, we also devote ourselves to promoting a harmonious society
through continuous contribution and considering our environment,
employees, business partners, customers and the wider community in
our operations.

BOARD'S STATEMENT

The Group has formulated robust and stable ESG governance practices.
The Board is responsible for developing ESG-related initiatives,
managing and monitoring ESG-related risks as well as maintaining
the effectiveness of the Group’s ESG strategies. The management of
regional operations is designated to supervise the daily implementation
of ESG practices, report to the Board as appropriate on a timely basis as
well as ensure compliance with all applicable ESG laws and regulations.
ESG matters are evaluated and prioritized through an annual materiality
assessment. The Board approves the result of the assessment which
is incorporated into the Group’s strategies and plans. The Board
recognises the importance of ESG-related goals and targets set for the
Group’s long-term success. ESG-related targets have been set at the
operational level and the performance against these targets is reviewed
and evaluated regularly. Overall ESG performance is reviewed by the
Board at least on an annual basis through the approval of this ESG
Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group takes an active role in promoting diversity among
stakeholders, including employees, shareholders, investors, suppliers,
customers, tenants and community partners in our business locations.
Sustainable relationship with stakeholders is one of our top priorities.
Therefore, we value their opinions and expectations, and consider their
feedback to promote future improvements in the Group.

We communicated and engaged with stakeholders by organising daily
communication, meetings at all business level and regular ESG related
engagement during the Reporting Period.

Materiality Analysis

Unless fundamental changes are discovered in the Group’s business,
an extensive engagement on ESG-related issues is organised every five
years with a view to ensure feedback from stakeholders is conveyed
effectively to our management and the Board. In 2020, such stakeholder
engagement exercise was conducted by an independent third party.
Key stakeholders including management staff, shareholders and
investors, customers, suppliers and community partners were invited
to participate in an online survey and phone interviews to provide their
suggestions and rank the relevant significance of the ESG issues to them
and the Group. A total of 21 ESG issues were regarded as relevant to
our business of which 12 of them are regarded as material. During the
Reporting Period, an independent third party was again appointed to
conduct peer review on ESG issues identified and regarded as material
by peers.
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After confirmation with senior management of the Group, the results are BRAEENSREIEEBRRE  BRAGERER

used as a guide in the preparation of the Report. SRR SR IS o
Key Areas Material ESG Issues Identified
TEHE B Al E KESGEE
Environmental Protection ° Energy
IRIBIRE AE IR
° Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions
mE RS HEN
. Waste Management
EEEY)EIE
Operating Practices . Anti-corruption
EEEG k&5
° Customer Health and Safety
BREREZS
° Compliance
B
o Customer Data Privacy
EREHEN)
° Product and Service Quality
EmkRBER
° Customer Satisfaction
BEEXRRE
Employment and Labour Practices ° Occupational Health and Safety
BB TER BEERELS
o Employment Relations and Retention
(Y-

o Training and Development

1R 3 =
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Key Areas
TEHR

IR « (LB RERHS

Other ESG Issues Considered
BEEEHNEHMESGEE

Environmental Protection
IRIBIRE

Operating Practices
ZIEIEH

Employment and Labour Practices
BIERS TER

Community
"He

° Water Conservation
7K

o Green Building
AR IR

° Climate Change

RUREME

° Supply Chain Management
Gctlg

o Intellectual Property Rights
N ERE

° Employee Rights, Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Non-discrimination
EEHEN s THEHE » LT LR EAR

o Forced or Compulsory Labour
5838358 HI%5

o Child Labour
BT

° Community Investment
Hers
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group endeavours to protect the environment and reduce
the impacts of our operations on the environment. In view of the
unprecedented challenges posed by climate change, we strive to
advocate sustainable development and manage important environmental
issues in our operations, ranging from appropriate management of
resource and waste to promoting green buildings. To demonstrate our
commitment to minimizing environmental pollution, we incorporate
resource conservation and waste management measures into our daily
operations, as well as formulate environmental targets in the hotels and
a mall managed and operated by the Group. We adhere to relevant local
environmental regulations, including the Environmental Protection Law
of the PRC and the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC. Throughout the Reporting Period, no non-compliance cases
regarding environmental protection were found.

Climate Change

As part of the community, we do not live without caring for the impact
of climate change. The Group manages the issue with respect to
the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD), which outlines four components: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.

According to the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
our governance should be primarily driven by the Board, which set a
clear strategy to achieve eco-efficiency and provide desirable goods and
services while reducing environmental impact and resource intensity. This
pushes us to consider the climate when making business decisions.

The Group recognises the climate-related issues which have affected/
may affect our business. During the Reporting Period, we continued to
identify and assess these climate-related risks.

Acute physical risks such as the increased severity and frequency of
extreme weather events including typhoons and storms may cause
business interruption, increase insurance premium and raise the
possibility of health and safety incidents. In addition, chronic physical
risks from long-term climate change, including increases in average
temperatures, may increase operating and maintenance costs.
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When we consider transition risks, the tightening climate policies
and regulatory requirements may imply higher capital investment and
otherwise non-compliance costs.

In light of these climate-related risks, the Group has implemented various
mitigation and adaption measures. We have property insurance and
public liability insurance to protect our interests and reduce potential
financial loss. In addition, we have formulated operational procedures
to provide clear guidelines on what our employees should do to protect
their own, the customers’ and the Group’s assets and properties under
extreme weather events such as storms and typhoons.

The Group also recognises that climate change can have significant
impacts on our business of hotel management and operations. Our
Wanda Hotel Design and Research Institute takes climate change into
account in its hotel design and management process. For the hotels
located in areas vulnerable to extreme weather events, we seek to
identify and assess possible risks through research and field studies on
suitable mitigation and adaptation measures.

QOur controlling shareholder, Dalian Wanda Group, has developed the
“Wanda Group Green Building and Energy Conservation Workplan”,
which provides guidelines on setting energy saving targets. As its
subsidiary, we refer to the guidelines to set energy saving targets for the
hotels managed and operated by the Group.
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Emissions and Waste Generated EENHIBY R EEEY
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The Group implements robust environmental systems at each of
our business line operations to ensure all environmental aspects are
controlled according to regulatory standards. Emissions of air pollutants,
such as particulate matters, nitrogen oxides and sulphur dioxides, are
not considered significant in the Group’s operations. Therefore, no
relevant data is disclosed accordingly. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with applicable
laws and regulations related to air emissions discharges, hazardous and
nonhazardous waste disposal and handling.

During the Reporting Period, the total GHG emission decreased by 4.7% RIREHEE  BAERBESEREREFRLD

as compared to the previous year. 4.7%->°
Total GHG Emissions and Intensity Unit 2022* 2021
BERBAREREE Bl - S - S —EZ—F
Total GHG emissions Tonnes (carbon dioxide 7,013 7,360
BERBAS KRS equivalent)

AW (ZH]IERES)
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes (carbon dioxide equivalent) 112 138
RERBREENE (F#HEN) R~ (CHRIERES)
Total GHG emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes (carbon dioxide equivalent) 6,901 7,222
RERBBREENE (#HE2) 2 (CHRIERES)
Total GHG emission intensity
BERBAHKEERE
Offices and Plaza Tonnes (carbon dioxide 0.08 0.09
I YNEY =R equivalent)/square meter

AW (CZRIERER) FHK
Hotels Tonnes (carbon dioxide 0.02 0.02
ZEAIE equivalent)/room night
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The data includes GHG emissions from six offices in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, Gullin Gaoxi Wanda Plaza and four hotels in Mainland
China and excludes the newly incorporated companies during 2022.
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USING RESOURCES EFFICIENTLY

Measures to Reduce Energy Consumption

Electricity remains our main source of GHG emissions. In response to
this, the Group has implemented strategies to maximise energy efficiency
in our various businesses.

To conserve energy, we encourage our staff to switch off electrical
appliances including lighting and air-conditioners that are not in use
during non-office hours. We also conduct cleaning and inspection on
the air-conditioners regularly to optimise energy efficiency. We purchase
energy saving appliances with Grade 1 energy labels in offices. To further
improve energy efficiency, we introduce intelligent building management
systems to monitor the electricity consumption of lighting systems in
most of our offices. Although the direct emissions generated by the
Group are small, we encourage our staff to commute by public transport
as much as possible to minimise carbon footprint.

For the Plaza, we installed an electric sunshade to prevent direct
sun rays from entering the room through the ceiling and windows to
maintain indoor temperature during the daytime and reduce the energy
consumption caused by air-conditioners. Dome skylights provide natural
daylight for indoor areas to minimise the use of lighting.

For the Hotels, during the period of low occupancy rate, guests are
concentrated on certain floors, while energy-saving and power-off
measures are adopted on the remaining floors to reduce the energy
consumption of the air-conditioning, lighting and the 24-hour power
supply of the guest rooms. Spotlights and incandescent lights are
replaced by energy-saving lights such as LED lights. We also turn off
the unnecessary and idling lights. The temperature of the hot water
system is adjusted according to seasonal difference. The exterior lighting
of the Hotels is also controlled and adjusted with reference to seasonal
variation to maximise energy efficiency. Filters of the air conditions are
regularly cleaned and replaced to optimise energy efficiency. The Hotels
have formulated individual annual energy saving targets. We are not able
to set a group-level energy conservation target due to the Pandemic
causing the fluctuation of previous data collection. We will consider
setting a group-level energy conservation target when the data collection
and reporting scope become stable in the future. During the Reporting
Period, the total energy consumption decreased by 5.2% as compared
to the previous year.
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Energy Consumption and Intensity Unit 2022* 2021
REREEREE Bl eI ZET—F
Total direct energy consumption - natural gas  Cubic meter 51,985 63,876
HERREEE-—RAR IAHK

Offices and Plaza Cubic meter 0 0
MAERES RVASP/S

Hotels Cubic meter 51,985 63,876
ZERIE 7K

Total indirect energy consumption - electricity ¥ kWh 11,435,061 11,969,987
MR REEE—BN FRE

Offices and Plaza kWh 6,823,355 7,275,656
MAERES TR

Hotels kWh 4,611,706 4,694,331
ZERIE TREF

Total energy consumption GJ 43,190 45,578
RERAEER Bl

Offices and Plaza GJ 24,564 26,192
MAERES Bl

Hotels GJ 18,626 19,386
ZEBIE B

Total energy consumption intensity

HRERHFERE

Offices and Plaza GJ/square meter 0.54 0.58
MAERES H5EFRK

Hotels GJ/room night 0.09 0.09
ZERIE S B

* The data includes energy consumption from six offices in Hong Kong and “ FREEMANRE B RPEAMNSERA

EEMEBREESRURPEAME
MEEEREREE FTEER S 2
FEREMAIIA AT

Mainland China, Gullin Gaoxi Wanda Plaza and four hotels in Mainland
China and excludes the newly incorporated companies during 2022.
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Measures to Reduce Water Consumption

The hotels, shopping malls and office operations of the Group require the
use of water resources. All the drinking water and toilet flushing water of
the Group are provided by municipal water supplies. There are no issues
related to sourcing water.

Apart from optimising energy efficiency, the Group has also formulated
water saving plan for our business operations. We request our staff in
hotel management units to turn off water taps after use and we replace
the water-saving taps. Moreover, we install water-saving appliances
such as shower heads and smart toilets. The hotel rooms are equipped
with smart toilets, which reduce water consumption by 30% compared
with ordinary toilets. The hotels use water-saving shower heads, which
can save about 8 tons of water on average every month compared
with traditional shower heads. In addition, we arrange staff to regularly
check if there are any leakage of pipelines and rectify the problems
promptly. The Hotels have set individual monthly water conservation
targets to motivate water reduction initiatives. With the joint efforts of
staff at all levels and the ongoing monitoring of the management, the
total water consumption during the Reporting Period decreased by 0.7%
as compared to the previous year. Due to the Pandemic causing the
fluctuation of previous data collection, we are not able to set a group-
level water conservation target. We will consider setting a group-level
water conservation target when the data collection and reporting scope
become stable in the future.
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Total Water Consumption and Intensity Unit 2022* 2021
MEKEREE ==Kir} = S —E-—%F
Total water consumption Cubic meter 209,563 211,071
4EFEKE K

Offices and Plaza Cubic meter 127,153 141,224
MAERES 7K

Hotels Cubic meter 82,410 69,847
ZEAE 775K

Total water consumption intensity

HIEKEBE

Offices and Plaza Cubic meter/square meter 2.84 3.44
MAERES MHKSFRHK

Hotels Cubic meter/room night 0.39 0.33
ZEAE YHK B

*

The data includes water consumption from six offices in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, Gullin Gaoxi Wanda Plaza and four hotels in Mainland
China and excludes the newly incorporated companies during 2022.
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Managing Waste Responsibly

The Group recognises the impacts of waste generation from our
business and the importance of sustainable waste management. As
a responsible corporate, we have established a three-tiered approach
in our operations to minimise waste generation. We prioritise waste
avoidance over waste reduction and recycling. Waste disposal
is considered the final unavoidable solution and qualified waste
management companies have been appointed to handle our waste in an
appropriate manner.

To avoid wastepaper generation, the Group encourages employees
to minimise the use of paper and process document through online
systems. We advocate green office and paper-free working environment
in other business units including hotel management operations by
reusing wastepaper and adopting double-side printing. We also
encourage the use of own cups in order to minimise the use of
disposable paper cups.

The Hotels have established waste management strategies to minimise
waste generation while maintaining service excellence. We strictly
implement garbage classification as well as a variety of recycling and
reuse measures for reusable or recyclable waste and kitchen waste.

Such measures include:

° We promote kitchen waste recycling and reduce the use of
disposable plastics.

° We reuse cartons generated during the hotel’'s stock
replenishment for stock storage.

o We reuse used toothpaste, toothbrushes and soap for cleaning.
° We recycle, backwash and reuse hotel guest slippers.
o We have signed an agreement with relevant government

departments on recycling of waste grease.
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During the Reporting Period, approximately 23 tonnes of non-hazardous RER SRR BRAEEL23 AN R EERE
waste was generated, while 3,132 kg of paper, 624 kg of plastics and ¥ EREDRIBIREB A3 132 TR 624
10,086 kg of kitchen waste were recycled respectively. In addition, our NTEB 10,0862 BT &R o tESh > AV E
operations did not create significant amount of hazardous waste. The BURESAKEEEEEY AEENEER
operations of the Group do not require the use of the packaging material, BIERABEEMEL SR T LAEEERAE R SR o
therefore the relevant data is not recorded.

Due to the Pandemic causing the fluctuations of previous data collection, BN B EERAE IR E L IRLE) MR
we are not able to set a group-level waste reduction target. We will VAR EEEEEMEEE BIE  RRBUBERE K
consider setting a waste reduction target when the data collection and REHMEBEIETER HMBEBRILAEY

reporting scope becomes stable in the future. Hi%e

Total Waste Generation and Intensity Unit 2022* 2021

BEEVMEEREE Bl I  ZEZ—HF

Total non-hazardous waste generation Tonnes 23 29

FREEEEEEYESE AME

Offices and Plaza Tonnes 3 3

MAERES YN

Hotels Tonnes 20 26

ZEBE YN

Total non-hazardous waste generation

intensity

BEEEVRERE

Offices and Plaza kg/square meter 0.72 0.71

MRERES YN

Hotels kg/room night 0.09 0.12

ZERE N

* The data includes waste generation from six offices in Hong Kong and “ FUR BN S B K P E P e /<
Mainland China, Gulin Gaoxi Wanda Plaza and four hotels in Mainland NE-EMSHEERS RANPEARM
China and excludes the newly incorporated companies during 2022. NUEBENEEYHE FEERZ

MBI AT o
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Promoting Green Buildings

The Group is committed to minimising our carbon footprint while
maximising resources efficiency in our properties and hotel management
operations. We facilitate decarbonisation in our operations by
implementing green buildings characteristics in design and construction.

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza is an iconic green building project of the
Group. The building integrates the intelligent building management
system, “Huiyun Smart Management System”, which was developed by
our parent company DWCM.

Such system can combine energy consumption, fire alarm, security,
operation and equipment management systems into one platform
which can be monitored centrally. Consequently, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda
Plaza can operate safely, greenly and smartly. This enhances the energy
efficiency of the building while maintaining quality service to customers.
We have been awarded the “1-star” standard certification of the China
Green Building Label, which recognised our effort to create excellent
green building.

The green building features of Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza are
summarised in the following table:

Green Building Features Functions

HEeRRARE ThAE

R EEE

REEE YR RS SRS E RN B
KACBIEIES » TREL R B B - B4
R ES M TR R RR T (BT
ARE IR o

EMBHMBRERSAAEENRSERERE
RIEE 2RREC T HABRDRERERD
FEEMENEEAEEERS— 2282
{EEERR -

IR BE R FE R R BE
RREEERAERSE (AT EHREEZE-
it e EERESFUBRZ 2 IRfF
RERECEE EBEREARREABRTIRM
BERBHRE » {2718 F 8RR an o Hff
ERTESBRRN -2 RERE BT
PR EESFGERRLENS -

EMSHMBEERSNGECRRF AN T
B

Energy conservation device — electric sunshade

Prevent direct sun rays from entering the room to reduce energy

consumption caused by air-conditioners.

ENAER B —BEIEGR

Natural lighting design — dome skylights
BHARCRET—BIEXE

Water saving system — rainwater collection system

KR —FRKNE R
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EREGCEEEFEERN > (MR ZFHE BRI SE R

Provide natural daylight for indoor areas to minimise the use of lightings.

HERMGRBBARACLUR D IR RFRIEA

Collects and reuses rainwater for landscaping.

W K B ARk LUE BB M =R o
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WALK ALONG WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group values our employees in sustainable business development
and success. To attract and retain talents, we offer competitive
remuneration package and benefits. We always strive to provide our
employees with equal career development opportunities and maintain
a zero-tolerant attitude to any forms of discrimination. In addition to
providing a healthy and safe working environment, we also advocate
work-life balance. We continuously invest in our employees by
supporting them to attend a range of trainings to hone their skills and
knowledge, thereby strengthening our workforce. Our employment
management practices adhere to employment-related laws and
regulations. We establish a series of equitable, transparent and
comprehensive employment policies in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong, as
well as the Labour Law of the PRC and Labour Contract Law of the
PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any major
violations related to the labour and dismissal rule and legislation.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 656 employees, after
excluding the employees of the newly-set up human resource business
during the Reporting Period.

IR « (LB RERHS

ES T[E1T

FEESEREEHFEXBERRATIN
BB - R TIRSIREBEAT  RfRMHERRS
HEFIRE B R RN - R —ER N B REER
HITSFHRELERK S BRI BIEAR R
NERTVREE -FTREBREZE2NTFRIR
5> FPITME B MR TIRELLE SRRV 11 o FefFd
FEREERBER ZFMA2M—RIE
Al > LR FH I B H52 BE Fe R 38 > A T 0 58 3 AP
WEXE] - HFINEREERSRTSLEER
BBV ERRER - R FIRBEE B (RRIRE])
EBEAEETE) UKR(PEARKENESH
E)VR(PEARKENBESHSREE) FIE—F
SR BEREEBERER RS HE
P 75 [ 0 A R ) L B S5 B e AR S A AR A
BN EREREREF-

N B _HF+_RB=+—H>A&EEFE656
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*Employee Distribution

*BT 5

As of 31 December 2022
HE_Z_—_HF+"A=+—H

Number of employees by gender

BB SHNESEHE

Male Female
B 2z
359 @ / 297

Number of employees by age group

RERENBSNEEHE
Aged above 50
‘\ Aged 30 or below

soﬁui
o 30T
J 152

Aged 41-50

41E505% /
121

Aged 31-40

31E405% /
341

Number of employees by geographical location

Number of employees by employees type

EtEE SRS B RESENZSNESHE
Hong Kong Part\Time

o ¥

7 e 0 ®
Mainland Full Time
China S
~ B Pyt /656

/ 649
* The data includes the Group’s hotel service business in Mainland * R IR AR B AL 7S P B A it Y B S AR TS

China, one office in Hong Kong and the Hotels and excludes the newly

incorporated companies during 2022.
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Labour Standards

In compliance with the Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter
57B of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour, our employment policy strictly prohibits the employment
of child and forced labour in our business operations. We conduct
background checks on every job applicant. If any child labour or forced
labour is discovered, the management will take follow-up actions based
on the interests of the relevant individuals.

Any form of discrimination, harassment or bullying is not tolerated in
the Group. We extend our commitment to our suppliers by requiring all
business partners to take measures to avoid and eliminate any form of
forced, bonded or compulsory labour, or human trafficking. The rights
and freedoms of every individual are protected as no worker is asked to
surrender identification documents nor lodge deposits as a condition of
employment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has encountered no incident of
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to anti-child
and anti-forced labour practices at all operating regions.

Talents Acquisition and Retention

The Group values people as our greatest asset and hires with a fair and
transparent recruitment process based upon candidates’ capabilities.
We dedicate to create a diverse and inclusive workplace for our
employees and support them along their career paths with care and
equal opportunity.

IRIE s HEREBRS
TR

AN ERRBERBERNEFEETBRAET
RoRiBEE LRFRET(BRARERMN) &
BERBIE57BE) ~ (FEARKEMBESEZ) -
(PEARHENBEFEGRE) R(RLERE
THRE) - HPIBFAERBEETEHRAE M
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To ensure talents are retained, our employees are rewarded with
competitive remuneration package after considering their performance,
experience and market salary level. The payment bonus depends on the
financial performance of the Group and the employee performance. We
also provide our employees with a wide range of benefits including social
insurance, personal accident insurance, medical insurance, retirement
plans, education subsidy, annual health check, medical welfare and free
working meals or meal allowances. In addition, we are committed to
promoting an inclusive workplace. For example, we provide maternity or
paternity leave to eligible employees in compliance with local laws and
regulations. Housing allowance is granted to employees and expatriates
whose have different work locations before and after employment. We
also offer meal subsidies and special arrangements for ethnic minority
employees.

A structured and clear promotion path is believed to be vital in talents
retention and recognition of their contributions. The Group conducts
performance appraisal for our employees on an annual basis. We
also provide appeal channels to maintain a fair review process. In
addition to external recruitment, we recommend employees to be
promoted internally when there are vacancies in order to recognise their
contributions to the Group and increase their career mobility.

The Group seek to cultivate a culture of healthy work-life balance.
All working hours comply with national laws and benchmark industry
standards, and overtime work is voluntary. The Group assists staff to
balance commitments outside of work by offering a range of leaves,
which include annual, marriage, maternity, paternity, compassionate and
others.

The Group emphasises on maintaining close relationship with employees
and ensuring their wellbeing. Therefore, we organise a range of team-
building activities and develop effective communication channels with
employees including birthday parties, team gatherings and festival
celebrations. To encourage social bonding in the workplace, the Group
has also arranged recreational events during the Reporting Period, such
as afternoon tea, cooking activities, night run and anniversary food
festival. We have also arranged regular meetings with employees to listen
to employees’ opinions.
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Turnover Rate in 2022*

B ERKEE

Employee

Category Unit Turnover Rate
8551 B BIMKLEE
By Gender
R 2
Female % 26
e
Male % 38
Lk
By Age Group
HEERER R S
Aged 30 or below % 46
30 AT
Aged 31-40 % 30
31Z2408%
Aged 41-50 % 25
41E 5058,
Aged above 50 % 24
50 M k=
By Geographical Location
&l by
Mainland China % 33
R g 3
Hong Kong % 0
55
- The data includes the Group’s hotel service business in Mainland . UK B IR A B F AP B P9 3t BB TS AR 75

China, one office in Hong Kong and the Hotels and excludes the newly £ UREBANMAERZEBL F8

incorporated companies during 2022. ER S FHEMRIIN AR
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Non-Discrimination and Diversity

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate
on the basis of age, sex, physical or mental health status, marital status,
family status, race, skin color, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation. We have taken account of diversity and inclusion in
our employment policy to build a respectful workplace, where equal
opportunities with regard to recruitment and promotion are given to
staff with disabilities. Necessary accommodations to work environment
are also carried out to meet their needs. At office in Hong Kong, all
personnel staff receive training related to non-discriminatory practices.
The Group strives to ensure a safe and secure workplace with zero-
tolerance to any form of abuse and/or sexual harassment in the
workplace. Staff grievance and disciplinary procedures of the Group
have been established to ensure all submitted cases are treated with
confidentiality and fairness.

Training and Development

The Group values the importance of employee’ job-related skills and
knowledge. We provide our employees with a variety of training and
development opportunities so that they can thrive in their career paths.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has delivered a total of 9,908
hours of training for employees, with an average of 15.1 hours per
employee.
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To promote the professional development of our employees, we have
arranged a series of trainings for which all employees are eligible whilst
there also are trainings tailored for different ranks and positions to better
accommodate their personal and team-specific goals. For example,
we have launched “Talent Scheme” and “Quality Talent Scheme” to
equip both our employees and managers with skills to advance to
higher positions. For financial roles, we provide training on total budget
management and financial knowledge etc. As for roles concerning
operational management, we provide training on sales negotiation,
branding, complaints handling procedures as well as marketing
promotion for hotel management units to enhance their understanding
of brand management. For engineering staff, we provide training such as
energy saving of central air conditioning, construction regulations and the
use of heating, ventilation and air conditioning during summer times. For
all staff, we provide work-related injury training for all employees of the
front-line operation department to enhance the employees’ awareness of
the work-related injury insurance and related regulations. We provide our
corporate culture training and employee manual training to enable new
staff to quickly integrate into the working environment.

To motivate our employees to pursue career development, our
employees may reimburse expenses including course fees and related
expenses. Our employees are also paid during on-the-job training. For
example, we have supported our employees financially to attend training
related to accounting and updated Listing Rules hosted by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI). Our Board members
and full-time employees in Hong Kong receive training on business
management provided by the Group’s company secretary.

IRIE « HEKRERKRS
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The Hotels regularly arranges training courses for employees to improve
their service quality.

ZFBEERRE T ZIHEIIERE LIRS tPIRRBES

Average Training Hours Completed per Employee*

B% B & R RN TR

Average training hours per employee
by employee category
REEERNE NS RES THZ IR

Average training hours per employee
by gender
BRERIBI DI E R EE TI9ZIRE

40 35 20 18
e 30 o 15 13
o 20 o 10k
g b g

ol I I sk

0N 0 O o 0N o O

Top management  Middle management General staff Male Female
BREEAS FREBAS —RET Bt 27

*

The data includes the Group’s hotel service business in Mainland
China, one office in Hong Kong and the Hotels and excludes the newly
incorporated companies during 2022.
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Unit 2022* 2021
==Rir} B & —E-—4F
Percentage of employees trained by employee
category
RESHENBSNZIETERE
Top management % 94.4 100
SHREEAE
Middle management % 85.3 94.0
RAREIEAR
General staff % 95.3 92.9
—MRET
Percentage of employees trained by gender
BERETHNZIETT DL
Female % 91.6 88.0
peqlid
Male % 93.6 97.4
S
* The data includes the Group’s hotel service business in Mainland * R B IE AR & B A1 5% FP B A it BB S AR 75

China, one office in Hong Kong and the Hotels and excludes the newly
incorporated companies during 2022.

Taking Care of Employees’ Health and Safety

The health and safety of our employees are an indispensable part of
our business. The Group strictly complies with the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
legal requirements on occupational health and safety stipulated in the
Labour Law of the PRC. For our hotel business, the hotel management
team have established “Safety Mandatory Provision” which outlines the
responsibilities of safety personnel, daily safety measures, and safety
related policies. All employees are required to strictly comply to lower the
inherent occupational health and safety risks.

To further enhance our employees’ health and safety awareness, safety
programmes and trainings during induction are provided by the Group.
Employees engaging in high potential hazard activities, such as entering
construction sites and performing maintenance work, are provided with
adequate personal protective gears to minimise occupational accidents
and risks. To monitor health and safety issues at construction sites, we
also communicate with our contractors regularly.

N URNEBNPMRERZEBE T8
BN - —EMEMI AT

ERETRRERZE

BETHRERZEERFIEB I HRE—
B - AEBEBRRET (BEZEREEERAG)
(BEBEGFE5098) k(hEARHAMES

E)PFEIAERBERERLEEER
RePOBEES BEEEERDHIE (L2’
HFINERSO)  BHIRE L2 ABHNBS HER
ERMU R RZ 2ENER REMBEEL
BRET UEREARERERZEAR -

FEER/BETIN AR ZEZ 258 KRiEl
ME—SRSMPINRERZEEH  HFID
REEEEE CUEATHAETHEBIE B
ETRHEENNEALEERE BEMDBE
EHRR - IR ER EHER DL
BERTHRERZRERC

BEAERRERAT 113
—ZEHER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIG - HEKRERKRS

In response to COVID-19, the Group has taken a proactive role in
securing a safe working environment for our employees. Our offices, the
Plaza and the Hotels are comprehensively cleaned and sanitised every
day and all staff is required to wear masks and monitor their own health
condition. For our offices, we have adopted flexible work arrangement
in several business units. For the Hotels, we continue to follow the
COVID-19 Prevention Guidebook, which we co-edited with the Huashan
Hospital of Fudan University in Shanghai for the Hotel Industry. We
provide free medical supplies such as hand sanitisers and masks. The
staff and guests are required to check their body temperature before
entering the Hotels. Employees are required to take shifts to reduce the
risk of infection during work. We arranged COVID-19 testing all the staff
and we followed the local government institution to provide the epidemic
prevention training to the staff.

The Group did not have any serious work-related injuries and no lost day

BEHCOVID-19> AEFEBIBAS TIRHEL2
M TERBE -BANHAE BB RZEES
SHETETEEERNMES FIEETEHWY
AE FOSWESAIE DBIREERR - LE MY
MANEMS B EEFEIFIIREGESE T
ZH o MEZEBIEMS > R EEBIERM
B FBEEREHBELERMSRIEN (R
[EEMTMAFEFM) - HMREREEF
BhOBEEFERM BT REFEAZSEH
[ERINESEMPIRIEE R TIER BT NA
I UUPE B EMREER - KM ZEEEE
T 3#2COVID-19188] » i BR BE & H BT 18 2
B TIRMHHELE e

FERRKSHBRTEZEEARETS

due to work injury during the Reporting Period. There was no record of MERTEEATFHE I = (EERFEL
work-related fatality in the past three reporting years. BERTITHAAC T
Unit 2022* 2021 2020
B R F & ZEIEE
Number of work-related fatalities Number 0 0 0
FETERAETMIETHI AR AN
Rate of work-related fatalities % 0 0 0
FTERAEMIE T AILEE
Lost days due to work injury Days 0 0 0
RITHEEETIERE BHE&

*

The data includes the Group’s hotel service business in Mainland
China, one office in Hong Kong and the Hotels and excludes the newly
incorporated companies during 2022.

RESPONSIBLE OPERATIONS

A safe, sustainable and responsible operational culture is crucial to the
delivery of our high-quality products in an efficient manner. The Group
strongly believes that high ethical standard and close relationship
with our customers and suppliers support the Group’s continuous
improvement. We highly respect the intellectual property rights of third
parties. Thus, our internal policies are reviewed on a regular basis to
avoid any infringement on intellectual property activities and ensure our
compliances with relevant regulations and laws. During the Reporting
Period, we are not aware of any non-compliance relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided.
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Maintaining Ethical Conduct

The Group upholds integrity in the workplace and adopts a zero-
tolerance attitude towards corruption by implementing a range of anti-
corruption policies and strategies, which prohibit the provision and
acceptance of bribes. Our members and employees must obey such
policies and measures, as well as behave in accordance with the
requirements. The Group regularly reviews our business practices to
ensure compliance obligations.

At Wanda Hotel, we uphold integrity, fairness, inclusion and respect in all
our operations. We tolerate no misconducts including bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Internal policies are well-established to
ensure our compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Anti-money Laundering Law of the PRC. Apart from our
internal policies, the Group has implemented whistleblowing system for
all employees to report any misconduct. Detailed investigations will be
conducted, and resolution will be immediately implemented. Department
managers are responsible for handling of any reported cases. The cases
will be escalated to the Group’s management where necessary.

The Group maintains zero-tolerance stance for corruption. Trainings
are provided for our employees on anti-corruption to ensure they fully
understand the Group’s expectation on ethical standards and to mitigate
possible corruption risks. The company secretary provides regular
training on corporate governance to directors and the management
of the Group to strengthen their ability for supervision and monitoring.
Regarding our hotel operations, we provide either online or offline anti-
corruption training to our staff.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate any anti-
corruption laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
operation of the Group, and the Group and its employees were not
involved in any concluded lawsuits regarding corruption.
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Managing Our Supply Chain

Our relationships with our suppliers are the keystone for our high-quality
products and services. During the Reporting Period, 560 suppliers from
the Mainland China were engaged.

Engaging Our Supplier

We have the Tender and Procurement Policy in place to standardise and
provide detailed guideline on suppliers and subcontractors tendering
and procurement procedures. We have provided guidelines for staff
involving in procurement activities to take into account cost, time, quality
and continuity of supply as well as suppliers’ compliance with laws,
regulations and other prescribed standards concerning product/service
quality/legal regulations for safety, business ethics, labour practices, the
environment, anti-corruption, data protection and intellectual property,
among other issues, when selecting and engaging our suppliers. We
clearly communicate our expectation with our suppliers and define in
contracts. For instance, contracts are attached with the “Partnership
with Integrity Agreement”. Suppliers are subject to initial selection,
audit and open bidding processes before being included in our List of
Suppliers.

Identifying Social and Environmental Risks

We are aware that our sourcing activities are associated with risks,
including environmental and social risk that pose negative consequences
to the natural environment and our stakeholders such as our employees,
customers and neighbouring communities. In order to minimise these
risks, supplier assessments which involve site visits and questionnaires
are conducted when selecting new suppliers and regularly thereafter
We will consider terminating the partnership if the supplier fails to meet
the Group’s standards and if no corrective actions are taken. For the
Hotels, major suppliers are chosen by Wanda Hotel Management for
better management and reduce risks. The procurement team conducts
monthly market research and annual supplier assessment to evaluate
social and environmental risks along the supply chain. For offices and
the Plaza, suppliers, contractors and service providers’ performance
is closely monitored to ensure they meet the legal requirement and the
Group’s standard on areas including but not limited to labour rights and
occupational health and safety.
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Promoting Environmentally Preferable Products and Services

The Group encourages our procurement team to prioritise products
which have lower impact on the environment, including products
that have low embodied carbon, sourced locally, produced with
renewable energy, durable and repairable, contained materials with
high recyclability, minimised the use of virgin material in products,
minimised energy and/or water consumption, minimised or eliminated
packaging and replaced disposable/single-use items with reusable or
recyclable ones. For instance, the Hotels provide guests with supplies
of biodegradable paper packaging instead of plastics. In addition, all
suppliers are required to comply with the national environmental laws
and regulations.

Enhancing Services

Addressing customers’ feedback properly is our major way of improving
our service quality. At the Plaza, we have established a customer
complaint hotline for our customers to make inquiries and voice their
opinions. To keep a record of their overall satisfaction of our services
provided, formal customer satisfaction surveys are conducted twice
a year. We do our best to reduce possible complaints at all costs by
constantly improving our complaints handling procedures. Our operation
department is responsible for reviewing all customers’ complaints very
carefully. Once complaints are accepted, they will be directed to relevant
departments for further handling to ensure the compliance with internal
policies. To further maximise our customers’ satisfaction, all complaints
are expected to be responded within 24 hours and have to be handled
in a professional manner. We also arrange monthly meeting with our
tenants to address their needs and provide special training to the teams
who are responsible for serving our tenants.
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For the Hotels, customers’ reviews and ratings on online travel agency
(OTA) platforms such as Huiping and Ctrip remains our major tools
for service quality evaluation. Through genuine customer feedbacks,
we can understand customers’ needs, enhance customer satisfaction
and build loyalty, ultimately promote our brand image. We have
set an aggressive target of achieving 4.8 out of a 5-point scale on
all of these OTA platforms. To motivate our better service quality,
employees’ performance pay is linked to such target. Internal guidelines
including “Hotel Service and Quality Standards” and “Hotel Employees
Appearance and Service Attitude Standards” have been established to
stipulate our requirement on appearance, behaviour, service attitude,
operation knowledge and problem-solving skills. To evaluate our
service quality, we actively seek feedback from the guests after check-
in and check-out by telephone calls. Moreover, mystery guests are
also engaged. There are mainly three types of mystery guests. They
include frequent guests, guests who rated low on OTA platforms and
professional third-party mystery guests. We conduct daily evaluation
meeting to discuss and follow up on the customers’ scoring lower
than 4.8 points and formulate improvement plans accordingly. A
monthly meeting is also held to evaluate the implementation of these
improvement plans and review monthly targets on different service
quality indicators.

Recall procedures are not material to the Group’s operation. During
the Reporting Period, we receive and properly handled 29 complaints
relating to our products and services, none of which were substantial
complaints from external parties or regulatory authorities. There were no
recalls concerning the provision and use of the Group’s products that
have a significant impact on our operations and no recall due to safety
and health reasons for the Reporting Period.
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Maintaining Health and Safety

The Group has always prioritised the health and safety of our guests. We
have well-established policies including but not limited to hygiene and
disinfection, fire safety and food safety.

To ensure the health and safety of hotel guests, we have established
Wanda Hotel Management policy to ensure the Hotels are fully comply
with relevant laws and regulations including but not limited to the Fire
Protection Law of the PRC. Sufficient emergency plans with fire drills and
trainings are arranged for our staff. Furthermore, dedicated personnel are
responsible for regular monitoring of the Hotels’ fire safety systems.

In response to Pandemic, the Group has strengthened cleaning and
disinfection in the Hotels and the Plaza. In the Hotels, employees
are required to undergo daily COVID-19 nucleic acid testing and
present their health certificate before duty. The utensils and cutlery are
disinfected regularly. Disinfectants are provided in public areas such
as elevator entrance and front hall. Free masks are provided for each
employee and guest.

Raw ingredients must also be traceable, ensuring food safety. The Hotels
are also prohibited from buying or processing wildlife animals and their
by-products.
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Our staff regularly disinfect the dining
equipment and ensure that the source
of raw materials can be traced and the

food is healthy.
RMMB L EHRHAREREETHES
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Safeguarding Privacy

It is our responsibility to protect customers’ data privacy. The privacy and
confidentiality requirements of our internal policies ensure the compliance
with relevant local regulations, in particular, the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests of the PRC. All employees are required
to strictly follow the requirements when collecting, holding and using,
disclosing and transferring customers’ confidential data.

For the Hotels, we cooperate with third parties for privacy protection
capabilities such as Green Cloud, Wanyue Club and Yuniji to prevent
leakage of customers information. All new employees are required to
attend privacy protection training. In compliance with the requirements
of the Ministry of Public Security of the People’s Republic of China, we
have ceased the use of face recognition technology on customers in our
designated systems.
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During the Pandemic, all staff stick to their posts and insistently provide high-
quality services to our valued guest.
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CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

To send a message to the society about the threat of climate change,
the Group across the country actively participated in the World Wide
Fund for Nature’s “Earth Hour” global environmental protection action
on 26 March 2022. During “Earth Hour,” our hotels across the country
participated in a variety of public welfare environmental protection
activities, including turning off unnecessary lights inside and outside the
hotels.

The Group believes that supporting the local communities and those in
need can positively influence the development of sustainable cities. We
actively engage in impactful community investment activities targeting
the underprivileged groups in regions where we operate. During the
Reporting Period, we have recorded a total of 3,036 hours dedicated
to volunteering activities which include participation in volunteering
work in local societies. We also donated approximately HK$27,800
and participated in book donation event jointly organized by the China
Charity Federation and Star Youth Development Centre to raise funds
and donate books for rural children in need.

We actively organize volunteers to participate in voluntary work and give

back to our communities.
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To the shareholders of

Ernst & Young kG st EFEFR
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

AN —E2T71E

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 130 to 277, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audiitor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters

BB EE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RPN ESHNAERERRESEE

Fair value of investrment properties

REYEZ A nEE

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of investment
properties, which were stated at fair value, was approximately
HK$1,407.2 million. Management engaged an external valuer
to support its determination of the fair value of the investment
properties. The valuation of the investment properties is
highly dependent on estimates and assumptions, such as
prevailing monthly market rents, prevailing market prices,
the reversionary yield, capitalisation rates, occupancy rates
and market knowledge. The use of different estimates and
assumptions could result in significantly different fair values.

The disclosures about investment properties are included in
note 3.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”, note
4 “Significant accounting judgements and estimates” and
note 16 “Investment properties” to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing
the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
external valuer; reviewing the valuation report and having
discussions with management and the valuer to obtain
an understanding of and assess the relevance and
appropriateness of the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions applied; and obtaining
and verifying the underlying data including comparable
market transactions used by the valuer. We also involved
our internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating
the assumptions and methodologies used and assessing
the reasonableness of data used in the valuation report,
by comparing the prevailing monthly market rents,
prevailing market prices, reversionary yield, capitalisation
rates, occupancy rates with comparative cases in active
markets.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters

BB EE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RPN ESHNAERERRESEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

B G BRIIRR A EER R E L

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross carrying
amounts before any impairment losses of trade receivables
and contract assets of approximately HK$325.7 million and
HK$113.5 million, respectively, for which the impairment
provisions were HK$116.7 million and HK$13.4 million,
respectively.

Significant management judgements and estimates were
involved in determining the amount of expected credit losses
for these receivables as at the end of the reporting period for
impairment assessment.

Given the materiality of these receivables and judgemental
nature of the recoverability assessment, we considered this a
key audit matter.

The disclosures about the impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets are included in note 3.4 “Summary
of significant accounting policies”, note 4 “Significant
accounting judgements and estimates”, note 20 “Trade
and bills receivables” and note 21 “Contract assets” to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology used by the Group;
obtaining an understanding of management judgements
involved in assessing the creditability of debtors and
discussing with management about the status of
significant overdue individual debtors’ balances and
any disputes between the parties involved; reviewing
management’s provision matrix and checking the
calculation of expected credit losses (“ECLs”) made
for the debtors. We also obtained direct external
confirmations from the debtors and reviewed the
timeliness of subsequent settlements from the debtors
after the end of the reporting period.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report
VR R S GlIES e

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yee Chung Man.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

29 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
frm A4 L
w3 EIIIL

Year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —_E - F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (3 A=EBRSN » HLUETHITR)

2022 2021
—EC —E-—F
Notes $°000 $°000
Mk T T
(Restated)
(RRE5))
Revenue & 6 816,780 873,659
Cost of sales THEMAK (473,474) (411,733
Gross profit EA 343,306 461,926
Other income and gains, net HA A K s 558 7 128,139 211,864
Net valuation loss on investment KREYEGEREZE
properties (24,549) (563,049)
Selling expenses HEMRX (18,112) (17,117)
Administrative expenses THMAX (96,640) (158,088)
Finance costs BB R A 9 (33,353) (54,612)
Share of profits of joint ventures B EEhEEF 240 =
Profit before tax BRAR A A 299,031 390,924
Income tax expense FTiRiRRE s 12 (66,055) (139,664)
Profit for the year EEE G 232,976 251,260
Attributable to: T &AL :
Owners of the parent ISYNSTEZZ=DN 14 193,242 233,070
Non-controlling interests JEIERE T 39,734 18,190
232,976 251,260
Earnings per share attributable to BT E@ERITHE AEMW
ordinary equity holders of the SRR B
parent (HK cents) 14
Basic and diluted B E 4.1 5.0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEREERAR

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E —Z - _F+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5 A =B34t » LB TTAIMR)

2022 2021
$’000 $'000
T Tt
(Restated)
€s=l))
Profit for the year REE @A 232,976 251,260
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hihzm (58 WA
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that HEABENDET ABRERZ
may be reclassified to profit or loss Hitzm (518 WA
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation HMEBINER 2 ERERR
of foreign operations (211,579) 115,736
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEEEMBE (5B WA
for the year, net of tax (NpRIR1E) (211,579) 115,736
Total comprehensive income for the year ZNEEZEUTALLEE 21,397 366,996
Attributable to: T &AL :
Owners of the parent BREHEE A 32,927 306,604
Non-controlling interests R RE R (11,530) 60,392
21,397 366,996

EEEE%EEF
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EEMBFIRR

At 31 December 2022 A —_ZE__&F+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B&5 75 =B34t » LB TTAITR)

2022 2021
—E-= T
Notes $°000 $°000
M=k T T
(Restated)
C==gl)
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BB R E 15 147,140 169,972
Investment properties "B 16 1,407,212 1,563,122
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17(a) 323,441 378,206
Intangible assets mLEE 18 10,088 3,586
Investments in joint ventures REETLEIRE 230 =
Long-term receivable REAEW IS 20 1,783,937 1,694,415
Deferred tax assets REIRIRE B 19 79,064 67,883
Total non-current assets EREEEEE 3,751,112 3,877,184
Current assets MEMEE
Inventories 78 207 1,836
Trade and bills receivables E A EREN e 20 214,665 170,295
Contract assets BHNEE 21 100,157 62,769
Prepayments, other receivables IR IE s HtE R ERIE
and other assets REMEE 22 112,733 84,524
Income tax recoverable AR EIPFIER 1,410 231
Restricted bank balance ZIRHIIRIT AL ER 23 13,210 =
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEFEY 23 1,067,711 3,008,545
Total current assets MENE EAE 1,510,093 3,328,200
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables, other payables B S REARIE Hth A =IE
and accruals K FEst &R 24 1,303,500 1,683,341
Contract liabilities HHBEE 25 62,401 44,181
Receipts in advance TEUWRIE 7,360 11,762
Loans from an intermediate — B RIERABER
holding company 26 11,404 873,000
Lease liabilities HEaRs 17(b) 31,808 19,690
Income tax payables FEI T8 60,091 36,298
Total current liabilities MENBERE 1,476,564 2,668,272
Net current assets MENE ERE 33,529 659,928
Total assets less current liabilities #2% ER RS & & 3,784,641 4,637,112
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EEMBFIRIR

At 31 December 2022 RZE__F+_"_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5 A =B34t » LB TTAIMR)

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Notes $’000 $'000
B sE FT Tt
(Restated)
(B E 7))
Non-current liabilities ERHERE
Contract liabilities HHBEE 25 65,835 65,765
Lease liabilities HEaE 17(b) 356,189 404,746
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEF 19 175,134 218,980
Total non-current liabilities RSB EEE 597,158 689,491
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,187,483 3,847,621
Equity WS
Equity attributable to owners BATHEE AELER
of the parent
Share capital [N 27 469,735 469,735
Retained earnings RE8 i F 678,436 512,011
Other reserves HAuhfa 28 1,419,177 1,552,675
2,567,348 2,534,421
Non-controlling interests JEIER 620,135 1,313,200
TOTAL EQUITY BN 3,187,483 3,847,621
Ning Qifeng Han Xu
EHIg Cy)le)
Executive Director Non-executive Director

HITEE FFHITEE




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SaREEER

Year ended 31 December 2022 H#E T - " F+ "B =+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B&5 75 =B34t » LB TTAITR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

SYNSE PN/
Non-
Share Share Special  Exchange  Statutory Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
FFER
Bx  RDEE RAEE BEREE LTHE SHHE  REER st s ks
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T Fr T T T T T T T
(note 27)  (note 28)  (note28)  (note28)  (note 28)  (note 28)
(Wstor)  (fwstes)  (Wyskes)  (Maies)  (Wates)  (Hi&tes)
As at 1 January 2021 RZIEZ—-F—F—H 469,735 1,947,082 218,809 (29,841) 46,455  (799,947) 367,688 2,219,981 566,612 2,786,593
Effect of business combination SHEGNERAHNTE
under common control - - - (5,273) - 61,546 (48,437) 7,836 - 7,836
As at 1 January 2021 (restated) “E-—F—F—H (&E5H) 460735 1,947,082 218,809 (35,114) 46,455  (738,401) 319,251 2,227,817 566,612 2,794,429
Profit for the year (restated) KEE R (EE5) - - = = = - 233070 233,070 18190 251,260
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEERA 5
for the year (restated):
Exchange differences related to RN BBz ERES
foreign operations (restated) (i E5l) - - - 73,534 - - - 73,534 42202 115736
Total comprehensive income AEEXENALE
for the year (restated) (=51 = = - 73,634 - - 233070 306,604 60,392 366,996
Appropriation to statutory BRELTHES
reserve fund - - - - 40,310 - (40,310) -
Capitalisation of debt EXLER - - - - - - - - 686196 686,19
As at 31 December 2021 (restated) R-ZB-—F+-A=+—H
&=7) 469735 1,947,082 218809 38420 86765  (738,401) 512,011 2534421 1313200 3,847,621
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rE R

Year ended 31 December 2022 &

Eom——

S

F+ZRA=t—HLEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5 A =B34t » LB TTAIMR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

SYNGIEZ PN
Non-
Share Share  Special Exchange Statutory Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
El32d
Ba  RDVEE RRRE BERRE EERE SHRE  RDER @ ;37 el 3
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T Fr Fr Fr T T T T T
(note 27)  (note 28)  (note 28)  (note 28)  (note 28)  (note 28)
(Mste7)  (ftstes)  (Mf3E28)  (Mizk2s)  (Mfstes)  (ffsfes)
At 1 January 2022 RZE__&—HA—H 469,735 1,947,082 218,809 43,571 86,765  (799,947) 567,884 2,533,899 1,313,200 3,847,099
Effect of business combination SHEZFINEREHNTE
under common control - - - (5,151) - 61,546 (55,873) 522 - 522
As at 1 January 2022 (restated) RZE__&—F—H
(i E=51) 469,735 1,947,082 218,809 38,420 86,765  (738,401) 512,011 2,534,421 1,313,200 3,847,621
Profit for the year REE R - - - - - - 193242 193242 39734 232,976
Other comprehensive income AEEHMZEMRA
for the year:
Exchange differences related SN EBERZ
to foreign operations ERER - - - (160,315 - - - (160,315  (51,264) (211,579)
Total comprehensive income AEEREBALRE
for the year - - - (160:315) - - 193242 32927  (11,530) 21,307
Appropriation to statutory reserve fund EEZE AT HES - - - - 26,817 - (26817) - - -
Share capital reduction of a subsidiary — 1@ 2 BIBIRAH] A - - - - - - - - (487,225) (487,225)
Dividends paid to anon-controling ~~ BYFFZERRERE
shareholder - - - - - - - - (194310)  (194,310)
At 31 December 2022 RIE--H+-H=+—H 469,735 1,047,082 218,809* (121,895 113,582* (738401)* 678436 2,567,348 620,135 3,187,483
These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of . ZERBRP BREESMBRRIERAIITR
$1,419,177,000 (2021: $1,552,675,000(restated)) in the consolidated B4R S H i #1,419,177,0007 (B - —
statement of financial position. £ 1 1,552,675,0007T ((EEF))) o

BREBEZRE
-$_=




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
l\\Tmiﬁ;@;ﬁE

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E —Z - _F+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B&5 75 =B34t » LB TTAITR)

2022 2021
—EzC T
Notes $°000 $'000
ik Fr Frt
(Restated)
(=51
Cash flows from operating activites & EEBFEZHRERE
Profit before tax: PREQET A - 299,031 390,924
Adjustments for: TR IEEE
Finance costs FRE R A 9 33,353 54,612
Other interest income from financial assets ~ # A AEBEABRIRZ
at fair value through profit or loss BRE E 2 HhF BUA 7 (8,375) (3,787)
Interest income on a long-term receivable R ERFEUTIE Z R B UL A 7 (119,323) (111,239)
Bank interest income R1TH EUA 7 (21,726) (62,748)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE BRERREER
plant and equipment W= 8 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME--BEMRERTE
equipment 8 14,173 10,406
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESEINE 8 32,928 32,922
Amortisation of intangible assets B EES 8 1,650 319
Impairment of trade receivables, other B 5 EWEIA e E
receivables and a long-term receivable K EHEWEIERE 7 39,546 79,180
Impairment of contract assets BHBEERE 7 6,279 6,557
Net valuation loss on investment &ﬁ%%ﬁfﬁéﬁf FER
properties 16 24,549 53,049
302,093 460,195
Decrease/(increase) in inventories SR () 1,629 (1,836)
Increase in joint ventures AA/\ﬁi m (230) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 RWEIER B =R
bills receivables agm (68,537) 113,634
Increase in prepayments and FE{ITRIE K B fth FE U RR B 1 0
other receivables (32,727) (17,500)
Increase in contract assets BHNBEEEM (48,718) (46,361)
Decrease in receipts in advance FAWER IR (4,077) (1,935)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, B S ENRIA HfENRE
other payables and accruals RIEStER G / i"'?]l] (48,746) 135,867
Increase in contract liabilities BHEGIEM 23,960 16,388
Increase in restricted bank balance R R T4 BRI A0 (13,210) =
Cash generated from operations RETEFREZIRE 111,437 658,452
Taxes paid BNRIE 30(d) (79,915) (125,817)
Net cash flows from operating activities &2 & ZBIFIS 2 REHE R 31,522 532,635

136 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited

Annual Report 2022



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
l\\Tmfﬁﬁ;ﬁE

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E —Z - _F+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5 A =B34t » LB TTAIMR)

2022 2021
—EzC T
Notes $°000 $'000
B E Fr Frt
(Restated)
(g %)
Net cash flows from operating activities && ZBFIE 2 HEHEBEE 31,522 532,635
Cash flows from investing activites =~ REZEFIEZIREHRE
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BEMREEER
plant and equipment 15 (8,745) (26,638)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE -BERREEEZ
property, plant and equipment FT7IE 28 98
Additions to intangible assets hERVEE 18 (4,841) (3,859)
Bank interest received BUWERITHIE 7 21,726 52,735
Interest income from financial assets BAREBESABERZ
at fair value through profit or loss TRBEEZMNEWA 7 8,375 3,787
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with ~ ZIEAH BB =182 2 EH
maturity of more than three months fEar (g (67,170) 245,933
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing &% E8) (FrF) /FriE2
activities REREBHE (50,627) 272,062
Cash flows from financing activities  REEBELEZRERE
Repayment of loans to an intermediate BE—HTEERABEMN
holding company 30(b) (861,596) -
Repayment of interests to an intermediate  1&3&— P REIER AT 2
holding company 30(b) (194,765) -
Decrease in amounts due to an e —BREERABZIE
intermediate holding company VS 30(b) (121,075) =
Dividends paid to a non-controlling BEN—RIEERRERRE
shareholder (194,310) -
Capital withdrawn by a non-controlling — IR RS
shareholder (487,225) -
Principal portion of lease payments HEMNRZAEI D 30(b) (13,355) (14,987)
Interest paid BIF 8 30(b) (18,827) (20,692)
Net cash flows used in financing MEEZBMAZRERERE
activities (1,891,153) (35,679)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBESEY (RL) /18m
cash equivalents JPEE (1,910,258) 769,018
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ E#ZRE RIS EEY
of year 3,008,545 2,149,365
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net FER &8 2 /2 » 348 (97,746)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBAERREEEY
at end of year 1,000,541
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\7l' (== EE@/)IL%%

Year ended 31 December 2022 &2 —_E - F+_A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (3 A=EBRSN » HLUETHITR)

2022 2021
—EzC T
Notes $°000 $'000
ik Fr Frt
(Restated)
(=51
Analysis of balances of cash and RERREEEMERIIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances W& KIR1TEE R 1,000,541 3,008,545
Time deposits TEHESR 67,170 =
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ~ ZIERP G EHER IR ZBEE KM
the consolidated statement of ReEEY
financial position 23 1,067,711 3,008,545
Less: time deposits with maturity of more 8 : REBARZIHHBB=1E
than three months when acquired ZEHEN (67,170) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated FERREGEAREHRERZEER
in the consolidated statement of RELEEN
cash flows 1,000,541 3,008,545
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREERER
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a BEAEERARRAE (ARF) &
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered REREZIMBRILZBRAB AR
office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Bl 7 s M= EE AL Victoria Place, 5th
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda. Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda e
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred FRARBRENB AR UTHRE
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in hotel operation and IREH)) FTERPEASHME (TR
management, hotel design and construction management services B REBIMEEBEEERER VEE
and investment properties leasing in the People’s Republic of BT R EREIERBENEEY RS-
China (the “PRC”) and overseas during the year.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), XRBEE (EF) RAE > ARBElZE
the immediate holding company of the Company is Wanda BERABDIABEREMEBIERA
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited (“Wanda Overseas”), a g (MEEEIN)  — BN EBRELEE
company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), and (TRBEZEE)) ML ZAB ; KAF
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Dalian Hexing ZRIEER AR ARNEGSHIEERRA
Investment Company Limited, a company established in the PRC. 8 —ER BRI Z A B °
Information about subsidiaries btE AR E R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB EEMB AR ZEFBNT -
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT
and business share capital EEE St Principal
Name MM ERTZER Direct  Indirect activities
%18 B RE £, S AR 2 BiZ ik TEEH
Wanda Properties Investment BVI US$53,050,000 51% = Investment
Limited holding
BEEXRERRAT EBEREES 53,050,000 ¢ REZK
Wanda Commercial Properties Hong Kong HK$409,900,000 = 51% Investment
Investment Limited holding
BERENERERR AR 58 409,900,000/ 7T REEK

BEBEREEAMRA
B FFE



Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

N REERER @

EBATER @

FATEEMBAR ZHBEUT © (@)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT
and business share capital EZERL Principal

Name AR BRTLER Direct Indirect activities

&8 B RkEEMES iR A A BE# i TEEH

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza PRC US$53,672,000 — 51% Property
Co., Ltd.* (note i) leasing

EMETEERSER FE 53,672,0003 75 MEHRE
AE* (HEE)

Wanda Americas Real Estate Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Investment Co., Ltd. holding
(“Wanda Americas RE”)

BEEMNMELEERAH HHE 17T REER
(TBEE M ZE))

Wanda Chicago Real United States of US$212,200,633 — 60% Investment
Estate LLC America (“USA”) holding

EHESRE 212,200,633% 7T REZER
(T=E)

Wanda Hotel Management Hong Kong US$1 100% — Hotel
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited management

BEBLEEE (58 BRAS HHE E BIE B

Wanda Hotel Management PRC US$10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (note i) management

BEALEERE (LB BRAR I 10,000,000 75 BIEEE

(B &)

Wanda Hotel Management PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.* management

BEALEEE (KB BRAS HmE AR10,000,0007T BIE B
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARKREREN @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B ABER @)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB EENBABZFEBNOT : (&)
(Continued)
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT FEM
and business share capital EZERL Principal
Name MM BRTEER Direct  Indirect activities
&8 B RkEEMES iR A A B i TEEH
Horgos Wanda Engineering PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Construction Management consulting
Consulting Company Limited*
&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%LI&LEﬁE i E AR #10,000,0007T EEER
BB RAT
Wanda Engineering Management PRC RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Construction
Consulting Co. Limited” consulting
BEIREEAZHARLAE HE  AR#50,000,00070 R
Wanda Hotel Design and PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Research Institute Co., Ltd. consulting
BEEERFAMARERAT HE  AR#50,000,00070 R
Wanda Moment Shanghai Hotel PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
Management Co., Ltd.* operation
tEERNEREERALERE HE  AE#%10,000,00070 BIEEE
BIRAE
Wanda Moment Nanchang Hotel PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
Management Co., Ltd.* operation
HEREEEREEERARAR HE  AE#%10,000,00070 BIEEE
Wanda Moment Ningbo PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* operation
BRENEREEAEEE HE  AER#%10,000,00070 BIEEE
BIRAE
Wanda Jin Wuxi International PRC RMB10,000,000 —
Hotel Co., Ltd.*
EHRERERREESERAT fE  AK#10,000,0007%

EEEE&EEF

———

—_—




Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIRERER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B ARER @
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB EENBABZFEBNOT : (&)
(Continued)
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT
and business share capital EZERL Principal
Name AR BRTLER Direct Indirect activities
&8 B RkEEMES iR A A BE# i TEEH
Wanda Moment Changzhi Hotel PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Hotel
Management Co., Ltd.* Operation
RABEZEREEERARAT E AK#10,000,0007T BIEEE
Shanghai Wantao PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Sale of
Trading Co., Ltd.” goods
tERBBERRAT HE  AER#%10,000,00070 i &
Xiamen Wandefu Catering PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100% Sale of
Management Co., Ltd.” goods
EFEEEENEEFRAT HE  AER#%10,000,00070 i &
Beijing Jingdefu Catering PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd*
EREBEERENEEARAT HE  AE#%10,000,00070 B
Baise Wandefu Catering PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd.*
BEEERENEEERAT HRE] A K 5,000,000t BN
Taizhou Jingdefu Catering PRC RMB5,000,000 — 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd.*
RINRERENEEFRAT HRE] A K 5,000,000t BN
Shanxi Jiajin Manpower PRC RMB5,000,000 — 100% Hotel staff
Co., Ltd.* provision
services
LFERRAEBRKERRAT alEd AR #5,000,00075 — 100% BIE S
TKEART

* For identification purpose only

142 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



1.

Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

These entities are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established
under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Wanda Hotel
Management (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Hotel Zhuhai”), a
subsidiary of the Company and Dalian Wanda Commercial
Management Group Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Commercial
Management”), an intermediate holding company of the Company,
on 11 February 2022, Wanda Hotel Zhuhai has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Wanda
Hotel Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd (“Hotel Design and
Research Institute” or “the Target Company”), an wholly-owned
subsidiary of Wanda Commercial Management, at nil consideration
(the “Business Combination”). The Business Combination was
completed on 20 April 2022.

The acquisition of Hotel Design and Research Institute was
considered to be a business combination under common control
as the Company and the Target Company are under common
control of Wanda Commercial Management both before and after
the Business Combination. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
of the Target Company have been accounted for at historical
amounts and the consolidated financial statements of the Group
prior to the acquisition of the Target Company have been restated
to include the results of operations and assets and liabilities of the
Target Company as if the business acquired had always been part
of the Group.

1.

RA TS = MY 5L

(BrB AR » BHLUBTTIIMR)
N RERER @

MEBARER @

s -

anp

ZEBRARBREVERMIIZING
BER*-

EERR LERRTMBATZT%E
HAEBRAFEXEREATENGL
EEBEEFEZERBD BEFAIRTY
EEMM B AT 2 BERERIREN T
Eo

SR T EB AR
BuEE

REARBIZHBABSIEEZBEEE @
78) AFR/AB)(Wanda Hotel Management
(@huha) Co., Ltd) (TEBZEBEEENE)) B
REIZHEER AR EREDEEIE
EERNEBERAE (BEREEE) R
“ECHF_A+T—HITUMNHE 8
EBRRNEERRGEMEREUSHAER
BEERECTE 2EWNBLADEE
AL R ETH I ZERR A BR /A Bl(Wanda Hotel
Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd) (&
[EERETIRZERL B AR 2288
BITRA (EBEM) - EBaHER
“ECHFAZ+HERe

W B B 5 BR BRI ST B AR a0 7 JBB S TE R
HTEBEH RERELATRERA
BINEHAHRIRIEESERREEL

EERZ T Al BERABDZEER
BECRELTEAR MEBEEREA
BRI AR ZEGREMBREREEIUE
EERARZEEREREENER"
BBz FH—EHE A EE 2 —Af

5o

BEBEREEAMRA
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

2. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 2. HREEZ&HITERSHRE

CONTROL AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION %g’ﬁ @)
(Continued)
The operating results previously reported by the Group for the AEBERBRSEHE_E_—F1+_4
year ended 31 December 2021 have been restated to include the —t+—HIEFERSXECESEY
operating results of the Target Company as set out below: MEFEUTHINBERB 2 REHEE .
The Group
(as previously The Target The Group
reported) Company (as restated)
TEH TEH
SRR E) HEEAH (&==51)
$'000 $'000 $’000
Tt Tt T
Revenue Wz 873,659 - 873,659
Profit/(loss) before tax BrIRETER], (518 398,360 (7,436) 390,924
Profit/(loss) for the year REE RN, (Fi8) 258,696 (7,436) 251,260
The financial positions previously reported by the Group at 31 NE B ST H $l§iﬁ\_v ——F+ZA
December 2021 and 1 January 2021 have been restated to =t+—HEZZEZ—F—B—B2ZU%
include the assets and liabilities of the Target Company as set out MR BEESY UEFEUTHIEZER
below: BZEEREE:
31 December 2021 T —H+-A=+—H
The Group
(as previously The Target The Group
reported) Company (as restated)
TEE TER
(CUPETE =) HIEAH (#e=51)
$'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tz
Non-current assets ERMENEE 3,877,184 - 3,877,184
Current assets MENEE 3,324,111 4,089 3,328,200
Current liabilities mEas 2,664,705 3,567 2,668,272
Non-current liabilities IERBBE 689,491 - 689,491
Equity T 3,847,099 522 3,847,621
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

RA TS = MY 5L

(RS AR5 > HLABTIIR)

2. HEHEHITERSHELR
BEE

(Continued)
1 January 2021 —E-—H—A—H
The Group

(as previously The Target The Group
reported) Company (as restated)
TEER EE
(tnSaiERE) BHEAT (&)
$000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Non-current assets JERENEE 3,762,487 = 3,762,487
Current assets MBNEE 2,806,267 44,308 2,850,575
Current liabilities nEaE 3,127,135 36,472 3,163,607
Non-current liabilities JERBAas 655,026 - 655,026
Equity HEm 2,786,593 7,836 2,794,429

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“$°000”) except when otherwise indicated.
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3.1
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Staterments with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
business combinations that occurred on or after 1
January 2022. As there were no contingent assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of
the amendments arising in the business combination
that occurred during the year, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items as determined by
HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use
on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale
of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

150 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

3.

RREERGSTER @

3.2

St ERBARBEZ 28 (@)

BAEESHERE 165 (BET
F) BIEBRIEYE -BEK
& IR BB R A HIBRE
MHEERE EREEETE
BETEE P EFRUE R
RYBRRREL) ISR
Bk BEOEREMLE
ZEFEENMEMERZS
BRI A (BEBESHER]
BORAFEEE) NEm PR
RoAEEEHN T " —
F—A—BEZBAIHER
ZHME- -BERREHEEREE
MERAZEES] - HNEY
- BEKRRERHERR
BMEHEERE &FETT
EHAEBM R NLRE
B ERR &



Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

©

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfiling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
1 January 2022 and no onerous contracts were
identified. Therefore, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(d)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative

Exam

ples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.

Details of the amendments that is applicable to the

Group are as follows:

152 Wanda Hotel Devel

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there
was no modification or exchange of the Group’s
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment
did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and L easeback?

Insurance Contracts'

Insurance Contracts'®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)>*

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments’)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction’
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition,
as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply
it on initial application of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

154 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2022

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

3.

RREERGFEER @

33 B
HHR

ERREMZEERM

SEER) 2

== R P AN

N_E_=—F—HA—HZZE
BRI E R A

AT TOE—B—HHZE
BRI E BRI 4 3K

EEN: PG v =p: R )
AR

HR - _FE:I4x —_F
TEFEEITANERBEAER
EE_MNME—B—HZZ%E
HEEHB N AR
TEBIIAR T _FEE]
> BERREESRYFEHREE
H—EFINGHH BT KR EE
B2 BEHEMZ 7HEEEY
BT UEEENEARTEE
EoR
HREBTERSENE 17
EEITAR S _TFE+HE
> AV BREEERF4575E
BT LIBREBRHFRRARZ
2 —F—B—HzAR®RZ
FEAENERSA G ELSE
SOMMIEFE AU BRE LS
QSR BT B 2
BRIZEAREZEIAFREND
PEEREEANAEEREENE
BETVSTERBSBMBERSE
ZERI 5B 7SR PF e P s BRI

B EAR A EEN RS E S
B RS 9 2 R A0 L RS
T



Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(RS AR5 > HLABTIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

RREERGFEER @

3.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 3.3 BlEMERRERZEEG

Reporting Standards (Continuea)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale
and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

RREERGSTER @

3.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 3.3 BlEMERRERZEEG

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in particular
the determination over whether an entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. In
2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of
that liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022
Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity
that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements
as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of
those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity that
applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments
and whether existing loan agreements may require revision.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(RS AR5 > HLABTIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

RREERGSTER @

3.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 3.3 BlEMERRERZEEG

Reporting Standards (Continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments
is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @

POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 3.3 BlEMERRERZEEG

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit
is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(RS AR5 > HLABTIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @

POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGSTEREE
Investments in joint ventures RegtxznNKRE

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in joint ventures are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwiill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

RREERGSTER @

34 FEZHHEME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continuead)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in a joint venture is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations under common control are
accounted for using the merger method of accounting.
Under the merger method of accounting, the net assets of
the combining entities or businesses are combined using
their existing book values from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value
of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of investment at the time of common
control combination. The consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income includes the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under common control, where this
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEZHHEME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Other business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @

POLICIES (Continued)
34 FEGSHEREE @

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEZHHEME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cashgenerating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGSHEREE @
(Continued)
Fair value measurement RAEEE
The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at REBNRZRGPREHKEY
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that (RN DEBEETSE-AAEBE
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability DR EHHETEHE2EEREHR
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the FRZFPHE—IBE =& IS
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based EE—IHAENZAHNERK AR
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or BEFEBRRHEEENEES
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market BENRZN%EEXEENEE
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal MG HEBRFEMHSNBERLT >
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or RNEZEESEERENNTS
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must ET - AREENBEARZEETS
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or FREANTGETRZ BEEHE
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market BENARBENRKETSE2HEE
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, REENEBBEEEFAANRE
assuming that market participants act in their economic best 2 BBRXME2EERERE
interest. R R TR
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into FEMEBEEANBEZGENR
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic EMIZ2WEENRERZEES
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by HrEekrENRA IBZEE
selling it to another market participant that would use the EFE—AREAXEERIR
asset in its highest and best use. BRREMBZMZ2EEME
A2 R ©
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in rEBRMNESTHEEEAEGRD
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available HEUETEARBENGEES
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant % BEFAARTERBAZH
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable BERLVERRUHERFGAS
inputs. Bl
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RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

3. MREERTEHER @

34 FEZHHEME @)

NREEE @)

FIERRBEREAMBHREE
WIKBHNEERBRDERHEA
ANEBEFEEEMSBERNR
BEAASHEBUTLAABES
ARD4E

E—H — ERERBEZE
RIE TSR
B CREEHRE)

B/ — EBERHEAAEES
EMEBEKRNA
Bx (BEE%ER)
REEHASHL
HER%

B=Hk — EBERHEAAEES
EMEBEKRHT
ABRRRBEEHA
SHBLERE

PIRE B MR BN A RRAE
SRNBEERBENES  AEEEE
REREHAREMFE DR ER
HAREBEFEEREMSBEK
MREBBASH BERTEE
TRIFRER




Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGSHEREE @
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets JFEMEERE
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual HMEERENR N EEFHE
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than EGFE - SHNEE -REREE
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial E-tmMEE -BREMERIER
assets, investment properties and non-current assets), BERI EREANSR EEN
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s AW EIEEESE T Ut BENA
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash- WElEBEHEENIREELESN
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of NEREE UREAREERE
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless ERARSE > Wt EREEET
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely BE MRIFEETAEERAEE
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, BRI HEMEENEEARND
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the WERA ELERT ATl ElE
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a EREEMBENRESELENT
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying MEE -TARREEEEMR
amount of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual BE MEEEENBOREER
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable BEE-—RNEESE H¥gE
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of PEEENNIREEEEN  HE
cash-generating units. PEER/NIREEEE AR
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount BESEENREENRETEL
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing BE AU O] & BAPFFE SR o 1E ST 6
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted BEER mstHRBIIREMERE
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that R ERMEHERRERZE
reflects current market assessments of the time value of BERTE R R 2 575 B FRIR AT AL
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment IR EAIRE  BEBEFT AR
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period EXHENEERRNEERER
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with ERE—R B dER A -

the function of the impaired asset.
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RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEZHHEME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(

) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

FEMEERE @

REHRSHAR B EEETHIR
BT ZAERHREBERET
FEXFEERD - HEEZZD
£ AJREIEER G T LUES o 48
MUEEEER P R0 &Y (G5t
LIRS SR EE (9
BERID RERE S PR Mz
HEITSEBEAEREENBESF
AR A b SR E R R T T LU
ERIRESE CGORERFTE
i) o R {E RS 1R Y R[5S 2 £ BT
Bt ABm& e

REAL

— IR RE R R EE AR
5

@ BARFE—ATHEALIX
&Rz At

RS EES &
M ;

=
=

) HEEEEEEAY
7

i) HAEEBHEERE
RNEIZTEEEAS;




Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

()

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. AAREERSHEE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGSHEREE @

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as
follows:

RREERGSTER @

34 FEZHHEME @)

ME BB R sk A R EE

(&)

TENREMGE I ERFHUE
ORI R B E R FHIEE
ZHAEHREE - RUETHA
ZESRERPIERFHNT

Useful lives Residual values

BIEFAEHA BE

Leasehold improvements HEYFEE Over shorter of the lease Nil
terms and economic life

TRHA R A 5 6p 2 BUE HAR =

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1Rl ~ £ & K2 3-10 years 0-10%
3E104E

Motor vehicles RE 5 years 0-10%
5%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEZHHEME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents renovation works in
progress and software under development and is stated at
cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost mainly comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets when completed and ready
for use. Intangible assets that is not yet available for use are
assessed for impairment annually.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

RREERGFEER @

34 FEZHHEME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Computer software

Purchased computer software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continueq)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains

a lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group

adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease

component(s) and to account for the lease component

and the associated non-lease component(s) (e.g., property

management services for leases of properties) as a single

lease component.

@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Office 2 to 6 years
Hotel buildings 15 to 20 years

Machinery 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continueq)

RREERGSTER @

34 FEZHHEME @

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE =

FEEEAABA (B

Group as a lessee (Continued)

©®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement

®)

HEER

HE&EHREER) B

date of the lease at the present value of lease EH’\$E‘fHHWH%7TT”EﬁZ$E
payments to be made over the lease term. The ENRZIRERRD -HEN
lease payments include fixed payments (including in- TEEEENTR (BIEEEE

substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on

FE AR BUPT UL ER 2 (R R FE UK
HEEE BRI IE#EF]

an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid K7 BHENIH UKTE
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments REFGREERFRETX
also include the exercise price of a purchase option NS -HENRITEHE
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and SERER FITHEEEE
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the BZTEE RMEEERR

lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured

BRAEE 1T M AR LE
HE BEEmRILEEESR
T Z SR o WIFBURINIEH
ERIESSEIE-ZiEi=ENENEYN
MRS MRz B IR (3 E
Z AAREIRESR SRS

RetBHREMRZIRER
HRREEFRES 2RSS
EE WAEEERAENRE
ERMBHBAZEEEER
KRB BERE HEAR
RGN > DU BR A S 12 0
REFHEENRRLD I
o MNAIER - THEREE)

if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, EEAEMRES) GNAETEH
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future ﬁﬂf"‘@j}ﬁﬁiﬁzﬂﬂﬁﬂ
lease payments resulting from a change in an index TR Es) EEERAEES
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to EERZTHES AEE
purchase the underlying asset. BEZIREOESENTE-

The Group’s lease liabilities are presented separately
from other liabilities in the statement of financial
position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

©

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of offices,
warehouses and staff dormitory (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for
leases of low-value assets to leases of office, office
equipment and plant that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its

leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

RA TS = MY 5L
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. RBIEEREHNE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGFERME @

(Continued)

Leases (Continueaq)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as

subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. RBIEEREHNE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEZHHEREBE @

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. RBIEEREHNE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGFERME @

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. RBIEEREHNE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

RREERGETEER @

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGHEREE &

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (‘ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

RREERGETEER @

34 FEZHHEREBE @

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The
Group considers that there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. RBIEEREHNE @

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject

to impairment under the general approach and they are

classified within the following stages for measurement of

ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which

apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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Stage1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk FIEE — EEREBVRE
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recognition and for which the loss allowance MEIZEEER+Z
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month (EVSRE RNy = g
ECLs T 2R E R
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Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has BIREE — EERRBERE
increased significantly since initial recognition SOLLR A MEIE AN{E
but that are not credit-impaired financial WIEEERETRH
assets and for which the loss allowance is BEMMZIEERTE
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ETRIAEEREN
ECLs ERESTERERE

HNEmTH
Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at F=MEE — REBEHBEER
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the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. RBIEEREHNE @

POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 3.4 BETBEREIE (&
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) EREERE &
Simplified approach B %
For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that ML MBAMERDAAERD

do not contain a significant financing component or when
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and interest-bearing
loans from an intermediate holding company.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEEHHERBME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued) Bt =K
Subsequent measurement BEs=E

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FETHHEHME @

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continuead)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEEHHERBME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

B

HERBEFEHERIRAEE (52
HIEE) RBRAEFEAERM
HUBEITEE RIESERE Bo
RRcP] Sefhet ARAE SRR

AR R EBE R AIFER 2 &
BTRESTRRARFETEEZR
HRSZ H RS RIR 2 TR {8 - R
TS B P R 3R IR (B S BR AV IR D
et AR KRBV E R A o

PR1S3

PRSI B IR BN B R AR SEAR T8 o Bl
FRBmRERZEHBE AR ZT
"RERTIFEmERZHMER
WA E R P hEsS o

B REE R B REURRAA T
Welel gl s {1 F MBS 1 R =~ & B 5t
B St EZBEERRREHRAE
EHREE LEERZIRE (iR
) EBAEBREEMERAR
RITZ 2R RIER -

BRIEMIBFEREREMRS IR
EERBBEZMEBREFMFHHR
BRARZEREBEZEEEZ )
HRIEERIFLBRE




Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEEHHERBME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continuea)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGHESREE @
(Continued)
Income tax (Continuea) FRigi )
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax EEMIBEEREE HIREBNRE
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset REFRBERIEE LEEK
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and ZIRE (RIRE) o RTAHRE RN E
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by REENECEEBRHRBE RIS
the end of the reporting period. Bo
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if R EERERB O] KIEBREIH
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off TN ERRBEEERE
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred HRIBEaEEE IR R IEERIE
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes BERREREBESEEHARB R
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same B EE —ERREREARE
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either HERRERRFTEWBMEREA
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or B M&EEREREHERSER
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, STEARFEEIERIESEEEFE
in each future period in which significant amounts of IR ERIRIER IE & & 7] LAUL[E] BY
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or A R R A FEEIRIE
recovered. BENREE JEFERZEERK

BEZER IEIERIEE E A
EER AR R R AR -

Government grants B AT Eh

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where EEMNSIERE S ERBEIBER
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received EFMEMRTGRGR S EREAR
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the BB BT BN © i fEEh L —I8
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income X IEE AR BIZMEEhERmEE
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for ZRAZHEZ AR AR EER
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. ZETESBAUA ©
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RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEEHHERBME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@)

Hotel management services

Hotel management services mainly include the
following:

The day-to-day management services, and the
different kinds of management service fees are
generally calculated as certain percentages of the
total revenues, room revenue or operation profit of
those hotels under management. Such management
service fees are due and payable on a monthly basis as
services are provided and revenue is recognised over
time as services are rendered.

Central reservation system usage fees, other system
maintenance and other support fees are typically
billed and collected monthly along with the base
management service fees mentioned above, and
revenue is generally recognised over time as services
are provided.

Pre-opening services, which include providing services
(e.g., installing IT information systems, providing
standardisation hotel management system and central
reservation system, providing access to purchase
platform, helping to obtain operational qualification,
and helping to recruit and train employees) to the hotel
owners to assist in preparing for the hotel opening.
These fees are typically collected upfront and are
recognised as revenue over the whole management
contract period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

Hotel design and construction management services

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Hotel operation income

Revenue from room sales and other ancillary guest
services is recognised over time on a daily basis, and
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the goods is transferred
to customers.

Loyalty program management service fee

Revenue from the loyalty program management service
fee is generated from the services provided in relation
to the loyalty program. The program reward members
with points for each stay at the hotels or certain other
consumption at the hotels, which are then redeemable
for free hotel nights and other goods and services.
The Group defers the cash amount received from
participating hotels as the future redemption obligation,
and such points that will eventually be redeemed as
revenue when they are used or on the expiry date.

Hotel staff provision services fee

Revenue from hotel staff provision services is
recognised over time when the services are rendered
to customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEEHHERBME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(RS AR5 > HLABTIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGHESREE @
(Continued)
Contract liabilities aHaE

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
pension schemes operated by the respective governments.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to pay the required ongoing contributions.
Contributions under the schemes are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the pension schemes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @

POLICIES (Continued)
34 FEGSEREE @

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

s

Borrowing costs (LD
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MBEERELEZF B REMA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs

in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

34 FEEHHERBME @)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. GEHRIEERENE @
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FEGHESREE @
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued) ShiE @)
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical BINEDES R AGTEZIEEE
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange BEEEERR S ARz EXRE.
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary BINEDNRBEFEZIEEEE
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are BEREFEANBEEHZE
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair KRB - MEMUARBESTEZIE
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation EWMIEBMESE NG HEEZ
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated SR AR BEAEE Z 20
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change BEEMELE 2 WmEE Bk
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the BEESIREAABEZRE
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other BEERHEME2EWANBmRE
comprehensive income or the statement of profit or loss 0 IR R EMEEm WA KB R
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or the RMESIZIEE) PTRAE—Ke

statement of profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of MEATE A EERAK LEIBIES
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition BEEIIFEEEaREMmE  NEE
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating BEEEE AW AN AT
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction EEER YA 5 HEi AR EEY)
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non- THBRBNRKEMEENIES
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the WBEENFEEBEZH - HEE
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or ZLEFRMMIBHFENFIE  KER
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction MEEENNEBRIBE N UWETEN
date for each payment or receipt of the advance RERBEEERXZHA-
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are BT EINB AR ZINEEER
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of BN B  RIREHER =&
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities EEREERBENEREH
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange RERzEXHE RSB Hifn
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their FRAZER S BEBITEERRY
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong ZERME A B ITo

dollars at the exchange rates that approximate to those
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

4.

200

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value of
the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the
fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g. construction of significant leasehold improvements to
the leased asset).

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar

properties, the Group considers information from a variety of

sources, including:

(@)

current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2022 was $1,407,212,000 (2021: $1,563,122,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value

measurement, are stated in note 16 to the financial statements.
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RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
contract assets

Management evaluates the credit risk characteristics of individual
trade receivables and contract assets when its credit risk identified
deteriorates significantly, otherwise the Group uses a provision
matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets
collectively. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
20 and note 21 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on a long-term receivable
The policy for provision for expected credit losses on a long-term
receivable is based on an ECL model. A considerable amount of
estimation is required in assessing the available information which
includes information about historical speculative grade default rate
and average senior unsecured bond recovery rates, which were
announced by certain statistical rating organization, as well as
the macroeconomic factors of the United States and the value of
mortgage to estimate the ECL. The net carrying amounts of the
long-term receivable in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022 was $1,783,937,000 (2021:
$1,694,415,000), further details of which are set out in note 22 to
the financial statements.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to CIT in Mainland China. As a result of the
fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgement based on
currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the CIT provision to be made. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will have an impact on the CIT
expense and CIT provisions in the period in which the differences
are realised.
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RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Further details are given in note 19
to the financial statements.
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RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB ARSI » HILUGETTHIMR)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group’s operating businesses
are structured and managed separately according to the nature
of their operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are subject
to risks and returns different from those of the other operating
segments. The Group has three reportable operating segments
and particulars of the Group’s reportable operating segments are
summarised as follows:

(@)  hotel operation and management services;
(b)  hotel design and construction management services; and

(c) leasing of investment properties held by the Group for long-
term investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is measured by adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that non-lease-related finance costs, other
income and gains, net as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, income tax
recoverable, restricted bank balance, cash and cash equivalents
and corporate and other unallocated assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, loans from an
intermediate holding company, income tax payables and corporate
and other unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KEQEER @

(Continueq)

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE_E-__S+"H=+—HILHFE

Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management  management property
services services leasing Total
BIERE
BIEEER kE® REME
BEERH% EERE e a5t
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Fr
Segment revenue: (Note 6 ) S - (fi5E6)
Sales to external customers HETINEER 536,424 182,165 98,191 816,780
Segment profit Ak kil 130,917 33,850 34,501 199,358
Reconciliation: o)
Other income and gains, net (note 7) ~ ELtIA Rl » 7528 (f5E7) 128,139
Finance costs (other than interest REMA FEAERNERN
on lease liabilties) (note 9) (Ff5£9) (9,535)
Corporate and other unallocated AR RHMARDEHZ
expenses (18,931)
Profit before tax BRiRED R A 299,031
Segment assets NHEE 638,642 238,061 1,427,116 2,303,819
Reconcilation: 73
Corporate and other unallocated assets AT REMANEEE 2,957,386
Total assets BEE 5,261,205
Segment liabilities aHafk 885,709 151,454 42,165 1,079,328
Reconciliation: iR
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ‘A F) R E MK A E & E 994,394
Total liabilities FASTS 2,073,722
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RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EDEER @
(Continueq)
Other segment information HithAEE R
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_S__F+-BA=+—HILEE
Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management  management property
services services leasing Total
BIERE
BEEER k% REME
EERE EERE e st
$000 $°000 $°000 $000
T T T T
Impairment loss recognised in the ERBRREIZAESR
statement of profit or loss, net: (note 7) 348 © (Fff3E7)
— Segment assets —DHEE 1,308 14,865 127 16,300
— Unallocated assets — KPEEE 29,525
45,825
Depreciation and amortisation (note 8)  #rEE R84 (Hi3E8)
— Segment assets - PYEE 46,570 430 142 47,142
— Unallocated assets - KOEEE 1,609
48,751
Capital expenditure* BAS W
— Segment assets —NHEE 12,610 975 - 13,585
— Unallocated assets — KDEEE 1
13,586
- Capital expenditure consists of additions of intangible assets, - EATHEEAREETLEE - WE K
property, plant and equipment, construction in progress and EREE TRIEREEMELEE.

leasehold improvements.
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RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KEDEENR @
(Continueq)
Year ended 31 December 2021 (restated) BE_E_—H+-HA=+—HLEE
(#=E75)
Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management  management properties
services services leasing Total
BIE AT
BEEER KR K&
EER% EER% HE a5t
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Segment revenue: (note 6) A EE - (56)
Sales to external customers HEFINEE R 565,478 200,916 107,265 873,659
Intersegment sales DEEHE - 341 — 341
565,478 201,257 107,265 874,000
Reconcilation: 73
Elimination of intersegment sales HIEDIEHE (341)
Revenue Wi 873,659
Segment profit SEEF 167,471 37,751 30,542 235,764
Reconcilation: s
Other income and gains, net (note 7) ~ ELAIA Rl 2 748 (His7) 211,864
Finance costs (other than interest HEmE BESENERN
on lease liabilties) (note 9) (¥f3¥0) (34,824)
Corporate and other unallocated AR REMFDERR
exXpenses (21,880)
Profit before tax FRiRAD &R 390,924
Segment assets SHEE 652,680 178,247 1,596,930 2,427,857
Reconcilation: 73
Corporate and other unallocated assets  ARREMANEEE 4777527
Total assets mEE 7,205,384
Segment liabilities AHaR 965,994 156,128 57,496 1,179,618
Reconcilation: s
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties AR REMANEEE 2,178,145
Total liabilities F=LE 3,357,763
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RREDEENR @
(Continued)
Other segment information HithpyzpE Rl
Year ended 31 December 2021 (restated) HE_ZE-_—S+"RA=+—HILEE
(#=51)
Hotel
Hotel design and
operation and construction Investment
management management properties
services services leasing Total
BER
BEEER RER REME
BERE BRI g st
$000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T

Impairment losses recognised in the EREaRES 2 RERE
statement of profit or loss, net: (note 7) 348 © (RfzE7)

— Segment assets —-HHEE (1,246) 67,591 4 66,349
— Unallocated assets —KPEEE 19,361
85,710

Depreciation and amortisation (note 8) 1T EE K&K (izE8)

— Segment assets —-NHEE 41,465 291 %4 41,850

— Unallocated assets -k EE 1,797
43,647

Capital expenditure* BASH

— Segment assets —-NHEE 29,911 575 - 30,486

— Unallocated assets -k REE 6
30,492

- Capital expenditure consists of additions of intangible assets - BEASTHEREAEBEETLEE - WE K

property, plant and equipment, construction in progress and EREE TERIEREEYZEEE.

leasehold improvements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continueq)

5. #KZBNIER @

& ik

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical TR BRI EBRBIEZTRZ
WK\ EBIEREE E (FEIERLE
MEEE) (FEEIERBEE)) 2B
EER RBINE L 2 W 2 B
B IREFTRHRF B EY =2 T
HME IEEIEREEEZ HIEMETD
REEZERUE GIBEEEMS) &
EDELZ EEMETE ©

locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets)
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of
revenue from external customers is based on the locations at
which the services were provided or the properties were leased.
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets is
based on the physical locations of the assets, in the case of fixed
assets, and the locations of the operations to which they are

allocated.
Segment revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENEERZ
3 EB UL = EEERIEE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E_C _F—F B B
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
T T T T

The PRC HE (BEER)
(including Hong Kong) 813,698 873,659 3,672,048 3,809,301
Overseas y=A 3,082 — — —
816,780 873,659 3,672,048 3,309,301
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RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continueq)
Information about major customers

During the year, the Group made sales to certain groups of major
customers, which are known to be under common control, the
revenue from which individually contributed to more than 10% of
the Group’s total revenue. The analysis is as follows:

KB PEER @

EREERERZEH

Fr AEERETEESZFAER EM
RHEER) ETHE  REZFFTAH
W B RG2S EE B AR U 278 10% © D4R
mr:

2022 2021
—E-_ B4

$°000 $'000

FrT T

Customer A ZHA 183,527 272,858
Customer B =FEB 116,267 167,984
299,794 440,842

REBEZRERA
— 2
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(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

L
6. REVENUE 6. Yz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Revenue from contracts with customers ’EERSHZ K
Hotel management services JEE B IERTS 371,624 423,392
Hotel design and construction BER T R EREIERT 182,165 200,916
management services
Hotel operation income JEE = E WA 164,800 142,086
718,589 766,394
Revenue from other sources Bk ez iz
Gross rental income from investment REREYELERE
properties operating leases: AW ALREE .
Variable rent FEEE 3,950 6,599
Base rent BEAME® 94,241 100,666
98,191 107,265
816,780 873,659
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

A
6. REVENUE (continuea) 6. u&ﬁﬁ #)
() Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from () REFFREQNZWETZWE
contracts with customers SIFER
2022 2021
—E-C EC—F
$’000 $'000
FT Tt
Recognised at a point in time 1S B 18] BRF ) B R BT
Hotel operation income from REERHE VIREHEGN
sales of goods, catering AR#S M HAth >
services and others B IS EEUA 102,267 77,806
Recognised over time R—ER R R
Hotel operation income from rooms RKERERZBEEERA 62,533 64,280
Hotel management services revenue  REBIESL
from management contracts BEBIEARF W & 356,689 423,392
Hotel management service revenue R EAIE S FIGERTE 2
from hotel staff provision services BIEEERB WS 14,935 =
Hotel design and construction BIEET R EHR G IR
management services 182,165 200,916
Revenue from contracts with REBEFEHNZWE

customers 718,589 766,394
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6. REVENUE (Continued)

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information for revenue from
contracts with customers (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue

recognised in the current reporting period that were included

in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting

period and recognised from performance obligations satisfied

in previous periods:

U #s

0]

REERENZ W mZ W
DiFER @)

TREIINFRERESHARS
MU ENERREBERBEMN
BHOSEERZ EEA WSS
B

2022 2021
—E”_C —E—F
$’000 $'000
T T
Revenue recognised that was STARSHTZ
included in contract liabilities BHBEZ
at the beginning of the SRR -
reporting period:
Sale of goods EmiE 335 285
Loyalty programme management B E B EERTS 18,144 15,343
services
Hotel management services BIEEER 14,891 12,104
Hotel design and construction IS RN B IEARTS 8,686 5,626
management services
Others HAth 632 363
42,688 33,721
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Hotel management services, hotel design and
construction management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 90 days
from the date of billing.

Hotel operation income

The performance obligation is satisfied as services are
rendered or goods are delivered and payment is generally
received in advance.

Hotel staff provision services

The performance obligation is satisfied as services are

rendered and payment is generally due within 10 days from
the date of billing.

6. U&=

(if)

BHEE

ERAEEBENSEZE R
mr

BIEEEARTS BIE R RE
REER

AR ERHRS A—RIERER
HAREST L+ B AR ERI R RIE/E
HEER — BB EER

ARERERFAECRTERR
—MRFASIRERIE » BRI RA BT
EiEnko

B S B 5K E IR S
AR ERHRS A—RIERER

HRES+ B M BRI R ERILEFEAY
BEEEM-

REBEERAMSZ
Sl
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L
6. REVENUE (continued) 6. Was
(i) Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BHNET ®
Loyalty programme managements services B st B BIERTS
The performance obligation is satisfied as members’ points HRgB8RBNEFERANARRE
are used or expired, and the payment from hotels who AR 2 B B 5T 8 2B 2 BE
participated in the loyalty program is received in advance. Rt S EREER ©
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining RIE_ —_FR-EFE_—F+_
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) B=1+—8> nEEAILHRTxE
of hotel design and construction management services as at REERBZRTRBOEM CRE
31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: ERSE D REENR 2R FEE
ERENE
2022 2021
== TR
$’000 $'000
Tt T
Amounts expected to be recognised  TEHAG FESD A UL &
as revenue: Z2E8
Within one year —FRN 155,671 155,529
After one year BE—F 110,244 117,103
265,915 272,632
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7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 7. EAWRA R 7 EE
An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains, net is as AERZ EMMUA KW FEED TN
follows: T 6
2022 2021
—EB-C BT
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Notes (Restated)
B EE (&= 7)
Bank interest income RITHRI S WA 21,726 52,748
Interest income on R UWEIE Z FI B WA
long-term receivable 119,323 111,239
Other interest income from BRARBESIAEBRIEZ
financial assets at fair value TS EZ HF B WA
through profit or loss 8,375 3,787
Exchange gain/(loss), net ERUE, (§58) > $48 6,753 (12,046)
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment &R & ESHNEE (AE)
of financial and contract BB FER
assets, net
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EREIERE 20 (10,114) (59,809)
Reversal of impairment of H fth FE W R I8 (B ]
other receivables 22(b) 93 17
Impairment of contract assets BHEERIE 21 (6,279) (6,557)
Impairment of long-term receivable EHBFEWIERE 22(0) (29,525) (19,361)
Other income due to breach of RAEFREBAMEEZ
contracts by customers HA A 1,505 142,535
Government grants BT 8D 13,680 —
Others Hith 2,602 (689)
128,139 211,864
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. FRMIRDEF!
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REE 7 BRMRADEF TN RTIEE
BE
2022 2021
—s=-= B
$’000 $'000
T T
Notes (Restated)
B 5 (#RE5))
Cost of goods sold B &M 92,196 66,122
Cost of services provided FTiEARTE 2 A 341,276 319,267

Direct operating expenses (including BREVFEE 2 K EYEEE 2
repairs and maintenance) arising BEEKERY (BEEERK

from rental-earning investment RE)
properties 40,002 26,344
473,474 411,733
Depreciation of property, M- BB RREITE
plant and equipment 15 14,173 10,406
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {EFIEEEITE 17(a) 32,928 32,922
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E#H 18 1,650 319
Lease payments not included in SrEHEaER T EST A
the measurement of ZHEMR
lease liabilities 17(c) 6,829 7,084
Decrease in fair value of KREYMERDEERD
investment properties 16 24,549 53,049
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN &
— Annual audit services — FEZEBRTE 1,169 1,145
— Non-audit services — FEIZBAARTS 525 861
Employee benefit expense BERNHEX
(excluding directors’ remuneration) (8 #E = S 5 )
— Salaries, wages and — e TEREMER]
other benefits 78,894 109,414
— Contributions to defined — AERRHFERIARETE
contribution retirement plans EH Z 1= 6,574 4,474
85,468 113,888
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9. FINANCE COSTS

9. BAERLZAS

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs is as follows: REBZHEMREDTAT :

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt

Interest on loans from an intermediate — B EERABERF B
holding company 9,535 34,824
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(b)) HEAEEHN S ¢HEE170) 23,818 19,788
33,353 54,612

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

10. EFFEN

FARELHRAUREBRBRHFE
383(1)@) « ) « OKMFRAT] (REES
M ER) RPIE280 IR E 2 E=FHW
T

2022 2021

== T

$°000 $'000

Tt T

Fees W& 738 807

Other emoluments: H b=

Salaries, allowances and e R REYRT

benefits in kind 9,838 10,146

Discretionary bonuses BYIBTEAL 1,064 2,515

Pension scheme contributions RIREFH AR 163 157

11,803 13,625
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10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continueq) 10. EEFI @
Directors’ remuneration is as follows: EEHMWT -
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e 2MR BihE
g BMET RBTEA HEEA Hiaast
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T T Tr T
2022 BT CF

Chairman and executive director; FERITES:

Mr. Ning Qffeng BH L - 9,838 1,064 163 11,065
Independent non-executive directors; B FFHTEE :
Mr. He Zhiping WELRE 246 - - - 246
Dr. Chen Yan BT 246 - - - 246
Dr. Teng Bing Sheng BREET 246 - - - 246
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Ding Benxi TRHEE - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Lin RREE - - - - -
Mr. Han Xu BERE - - - - -
738 9,838 1,064 163 11,803
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10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EFFHM @
Directors’ remuneration is as follows: (Continued) EEHMOT - @)
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and bengfits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions ~ remuneration

e 2R BihE
e ENET HBita HEG b Felay
$000 $000 $000 $000 $/000
T T T T T

2021 “ET-%

Chairman and executive director; FERUOTES:

Mr. Ning Qifeng BEHELE - 10,146 2,515 157 12818
Independent non-executive directors; B JFHTES :

Mr. He Zhiping mEERE 269 - - - 269

Dr. Chen Yan Bt 269 - - - 269

Dr. Teng Bing Sheng BnEEL 269 - - = 269
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:

Mr. Ding Benxi TRHRE - - - - -

Mr. Zhang Lin RRLE - - - - -

Mr. Han Xu BERE - - - - -

807 10,146 2,515 157 13,625
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11.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

.

Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one of

them is a director (2021: one director), whose emoluments are

disclosed in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the remaining four non-director highest paid employees (2021:

four non-director highest paid employees) are as follows:

hamEHES

IaReHES HF—2RE5F CF
& —REP  HEFEMWFEERN L
XHEE10°F A RIgrH R REHIFES
BE CE—F  NaReHIFEFE
B) ZFMsFIEI T -

2022 2021
—E-= =&
$°000 $'000
F T

Salaries, allowances and e IR EYER
benefits in kind 14,560 14,884
Performance related bonuses FIFHMATEAL 1,233 2,964
Pension scheme contributions BIREFHEIIERR 461 440
16,254 18,288

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

RemIFEERFERTHRARBREZ
NN FUTER :

$2,500,001 to $3,000,000
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000

2,500,0017t%£3,000,0007T
3,000,00175%23,500,0007T
3,500,0017t%4,000,0007T
4,000,0017t %£4,500,0007T
5,000,00175%£5,500,0007T
6,500,00175%27,000,0007T

Number of employees
EEAH
2022 2021
== T
1 -
— 1
1 1
1 1
1 —
— 1
4 4
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Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

PA
12. INCOME TAX 12. FR18
2022 2021
- T
$°000 $'000
Tt T
Current tax BENERfR A
Corporate Income Tax (note (iii)) R ZERRSHR (BEE(ii)
— Charge for the year —REERX 106,801 134,661
— Underprovision/(overprovision) in —BEFERETE
prior years (HBZE# ) 1,201 (5,562)
108,092 129,099
Deferred tax IRIERRIE
Origination and reversal of temporary TR E R 2 EE R ED
differences:
— Revaluation of properties —WEE G (55) (6,989)
— Effect of HKFRS 16 —BBAMBREERIE165
T (3,092) (5,767)
— Effect of withholding tax at 5% on —HAREETHKE AT
the distributable profits of B TR A U %
the Group’s PRC subsidiary FEIIRZ & (23,823) 42,964
— Others —HAth (15,067) (19,643)
(42,037) 10,565
Total income tax expense for the year KEEMSHRHESERE 66,055 139,664

REBEERAMSZ
Sl




Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the BVI, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in Bermuda and the BVI.

Except for the income tax provided at the applicable income tax rate
of 28.505% (2021: 28.505%) on the assessable profits for Wanda
Chicago Real Estate LLC, a subsidiary of the Company registered
in the USA, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax or overseas
corporate income tax has been made as the Group did not have
assessable profits in Hong Kong or overseas for the year.

Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for the PRC CIT has been made at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% (2021: 25%) on the assessable profits of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China, except for the subsidiaries
of the Company established in Horgos, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
region, which enjoy PRC corporate income tax exemptions in
accordance with the relevant tax rules, and the subsidiary of the
Company established in Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, which enjoy
a preferential tax rate of 15% and certain subsidies are subject to
preferential tax rates for small-scale taxpayers. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and

the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates

(i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:
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(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

12. FR1518 @

MI5E

U

(i

(i)

REARERRBELEERKZE
RORERRBREREBRLES
BRBMERRSR

R AR EERHGZMZME LS
Wanda Chicago Real Estate LLCIE{E /&
SRR m  $4 8 F PSR %£28.505% (=
T —4F [ 28.505%) ReEFIERHN
It B BN ISIRBINMEEMSR
EEEE REARKAERNEAEER
BB EINE FEFERIRIEN] o

SR (TREFER)

R XEMERZEBELREAER
RABERMZ B AR EEREF
RBERFTEME2L% (CB_—F
25%) fE MR TBHEHEARE
BRI ZANBEWNB AR EHiRE
HEEAMBHRAUZTEPECEFRERE
%) RN ERE SN2 A A B E
NE) EHEBEERE15%) UKEHR
INEEARMABERENE THEA
BBRIN o M & 2 FERIR BT TL 3%
AEBREXEBMERR 2 BRI E
ST

BRARBREFTEN B AT EMMILZ
BB ZEAERKTAFERANRFRA®
MZMBERARBRNRAT NG
BERZHRKBERRE EUEERX) &
BREREZHIROT :
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. PRSI @
2022 2021
—ZE== T4
$’000 $'000
Tt T
(Restated)
(fRE%))
Profit before tax BRAR A A 299,031 390,924
National tax calculated at rates applicable to #Z#EAN B RAKRKEEEEE 2 imh)
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned ZREFEZER 67,495 103,307
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BEHERI RN ERFR B 2 A %R
previous periods 1,291 (5,562)
Profits attributable to joint ventures BEREEEET] (60) =
Income not subject to tax DA Z A (8,995) (8,026)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENGIE Rk dr 7,306 13,301
Tax losses not recognised RSB 2 MIEE 1R 542 4,410
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the HAREEFEHEAT
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC AR m A U5 %
subsidiary RNz 28 1,615 42,964
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BB ESBRIBEIE (661) (10,730)
Tax losses recognised from previous periods @1+ EARS B HERIR B 18 (2,478) =
Tax expense at the Group’s effective rate BAEENERREAEN
MIAR X 66,055 139,664
13. DIVIDEND 13. KR
The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of AARESTERALUE—S
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021 Nil). ToA=THIESEZAMRE CF

——F e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 4,697,347,000 (2021: 4,697,347,000) in issue during the
year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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14. BRABEBRTE ARG

4

(=3

(a)

()

A

czatbl

BRRERRET

SRELABALDEEANF AT
ZERFTEAEBRGHENRER
BECTEBERZMEFTEH
4,697,347,0008% (ZE = —4 !
4,697,347, 0008%) 5t& o

EREERT
BE_Z_"_H#+-"FB=+—H

HFE AERTEETHEZS
HTEBR CTE—F 18-



(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

15. ¥~ B ekt

(BRSB=EER5 > HUATIIR)

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Leasehold Construction
equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
R RE HE
K& HE IEEE(E FRIE st
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
T Fr T Fr T
31 December 2022 —2-_"#+”A=+-H
At 1 January 2022 N — ey = R =
Cost DN 46,416 2,716 158,896 7,141 215,169
Accumulated depreciation R ERRIE

and impairment (21,959) (2,716) (20,522) — (45,197)
Net carrying amount IREFE 24,457 — 138,374 7,141 169,972
At 1 January 2022, net of RIZE-"F#—F—H

accumulated depreciation (0P EFHTE KR E)

and impairment 24,457 - 138,374 7,141 169,972
Additions NE 3,783 — 3,013 1,949 8,745
Disposals HE (16) - - - (16)
Depreciation provided FREHRZITE (&)

during the year (note 8) (4,081) — (10,092) — (14,173)
Transfers to intangible assets EREELEE (:F18)

(note 18) — — - (3,544) (3,544)
Exchange realignment ERAE (1,899) - (11,340) (605) (13,844)
At 31 December 2022, net of ATETF

accumulated depreciation T=E=E—=

and impairment (0FREEHTE KR E) 22,244 - 119,955 4,941 147,140
At 31 December 2022 = —

+-A=+—H
Cost DN 45,571 2,716 149,027 4,941 202,255
Accumulated depreciation and R ERRIE

impairment (23,327) 2,716) (29,072) - (55,115)

Net carrying amount REFE 22,244 — 119,955 4,94 147,140
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continues) ~ 15. ¥ ~ R B 5% 15 @

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Leasehold  Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
R HEE &
HiE AE YIEEE EEIR Rt
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
T T T Tt T
31 December 2021 —E-_—-&%+-A=+-—H
At 1 January 2021: R-E-_—&%—HF—H:
Cost DN 40,622 2,716 118,327 19,090 180,755
Accumulated depreciation and R ERRIE
impairment (13,912) (2,716) (14,533) - (31,161)
Net carrying amount REEE 26,710 — 103,794 19,090 149,594
At 1 January 2021, net of RIZEZ—F—F—H 0k
accumulated depreciation and K MERAE
impairment 26,710 — 103,794 19,090 149,594
Additions hE 1,065 — 2,582 22,991 26,638
Disposals HE (98) = = = 98)
Transfers R 938 = 34,767 (35,705) —
Depreciation provided during the ~ FERFHEZ 7 E (HizE8)
year (note 8) (4,873 . (5,533) - (10,406)
Exchange realignment fEREE 715 - 2,764 765 4,244
At 31 December 2021, net of RZE_—F+"B=+—H
accumulated depreciation and (OB RFHINERAE)
impairment 24,457 — 138,374 7141 169,972
At 31 December 2021: RIZE_—F
+ZBA=+—H:
Cost DN 46,416 2,716 158,896 7141 215,169
Accumulated depreciation and R ERRIE
impairment (21,959) (2,716) (20,522) - (45,197)
Net carrying amount REFE 24,457 - 138,374 7,141 169,972
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEERRSN » HLGBTTHIR)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. IREY) £

$°000

T

At 1 January 2021 R_E_—F—HF—H 1,570,800

Net loss from a fair value adjustment (note 8) NABERAEEEFE (I:E8) (53,049

Exchange realignment PE A% 45,371
At 31 December 2021 and T2 —HF+"A=+—HBk

1 January 2022 - "#—H—H 1,563,122

Net loss from a fair value adjustment (note 8) NABEAEESEFEE (T:E8) (24,549)

Exchange realignment bE 2 FEE (131,361)

At 31 December 2022 A S _F+_"_HA=+—H 1,407,212

All the completed investment properties, including both land and
building elements held by the Group, were revalued at the end
of the year based on valuations performed by an independent
qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Shenzhen Valuation
Co., Ltd. (“Cushman & Wakefield”). Cushman & Wakefield is an
industry specialist in investment property valuation, which has the
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation for the
completed investment properties was arrived at by considering
the capitalised income to be derived from the existing tenancies
and the reversionary potential of the properties, where appropriate,
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions. There were no
changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 17 to the financial statements.

FIBEBTIREYE BIEAERTF
BERNLTHEREFHERFELRRER
I A ERE{EMCushman & Wakefield
Shenzhen Valuation Co., Ltd. (FCushman
& Wakefield 1) EITHIGEETEM -
Cushman & Wakefield 2 & &Y h1T
X¥NER > THEBBEENEEMILE
OF 71 75 48 BE 3 BE Y 48 L) F ST B
BoBRBIHREMEHEINREREY
XRBRANBEENER WA REE
WAES WER) - 2E EE R ik
MEVEE L EMN BB S F A
EEL L EE A&

REMEDRBEKEREHRETHE =
73 HE—S s BEEN M B REN
170
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F&5AEBRIL » LB TTHIR)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. IEME @)
Fair value hierarchy RREERER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TREFAEFREYEZ AR EES
of the Group’s investment properties: EEK

Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2022 using

RIBZZE+"A=+—HAZAAGEEFERR

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERT S EAUHEE EATUEE
ZHE HWAZHY HAZH

(BE—#R) (€t )] (FE=4R) “mst
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000
Frx T T Fr
Recurring fair value REEANEETE !
measurement for:
Commercial properties ik YES - — 1,407,212 1,407,212

Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2021 using

RIB-—E+"A=+—HZAREEFERR

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

ET R BEARAIHRE BEATIRE
ZHRME BASH BAZH

&E—H) (EZR) E=%) #ast
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T Tt Tt
Recurring fair value REMANBENE:
measurement for:

Commercial properties [k ES — — 1,563,122 1,663,122
During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level TN FE—AREE TR 2 B e
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). The Group’s policy MEBE=REANE L CE2T—F:
is to recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy B o AEEBRANBLEEMR RS
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur. BARIER A R EEBARE 2 8o
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 16. ILEYIZE @
The Group’s management has discussions with the valuer on the RERSHRETHER AEEEIE
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is BEGEMNmEERR REES
performed at each reporting date. Ro
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and UTEEREMEGERERZEER
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: A mEEBADE 2Bt
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
BEARAHR
HEAR BWAZY &
2022 2021
== T
Shopping mall Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB61 RMB60
market rent —RMB290 —RMB292
per square metre
5% BB SREFTHK ARMB61TE ARK6E0TE
RIThmiZHEE AR #§2907T ANE 1529271
Reversionary yield Mall: 7.0% Mall: 7.0%
Store: 6.0% Store: 6.0%
BRIl mE &% 1 7.0% B8 7.0%

5 : 6.0% [T : 6.0%

Car parks Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB370 RMB393
market rent per lot
(== BEE SRS @E®EN AR¥3707t AR3937T
WiThiEHAE
Reversionary yield 5.0% 5.0%
ElIl GRS
Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent RIT IS ESHIREE L (A EME T
valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject ENEREMAELER XN HE
properties and other comparable properties. The higher the rent, RZ2Z2 B Rt - HEHS  AnEEM
the higher the fair value is. The reversionary vield is estimated by B o BB N a2 T R IE L (L E MR IR AR
the independent valuer based on the risk profile of the properties EEYEZ BB LEST o S

being valued. The higher the yield, the lower the fair value is. RABERE
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17. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office, hotel
buildings and machinery used in its operations. Leases of offices
generally have lease terms between 2 and 6 years, and leases
of hotel buildings generally have lease terms between 15 and 20
years, while machinery generally has lease terms between 2 and
3 years. Other office space, equipment and warehouse generally
have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low
value.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

17. &
KEBEAKRHBEA

FEBBEERARNEEHFEEZMAE
BIERT BERESZHEGH A
EZHABEAZEREVEEEFZ
BHRBEATRAE_+Fmikas 2 HH
BES_E=F -HMPAEZRE RHE
HREZHRPBEE S T EARRUTR
/AR BEEE

() EAEEE

rEBEERAEESEZREERTE

the movements during the year are as follows: BT -
Hotel
Offices buildings Machinery Total
MAE BIEEF %25 4aEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
As at 1 January 2021 HRIZIZ—fF
—HA—H 30,951 378,475 301 409,727
Additions =T 598 - 679 1,277
Effect of lease MEBITHNEE

modification (3,895) - = (8,895)
Depreciation charge EERASE (MI5E8)

(note 8) (8,878) (23,589) (455) (32,922)
Exchange realignment  FERHEE 729 3,289 1 4,019
As at 31 December 2021 — & ——4

and 1 January 2022 +—-A=+—H

B HF
—HB—H 19,505 358,175 526 378,206
Additions nNE 8,795 - - 8,795
Depreciation charge TEERSZ (MI5E8)

(note 8) (9,023) (23,483) (422) (32,928)
Exchange realignment  FER:HEE (1,264) (29,342) (26) (30,632)
As at 31 December 20223 — & — " F+

B=+—H 18,013 305,350 78 323,441
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17. LEASES (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

17. HE @

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

HEEE

(BRSB=EER5 > HUATIIR)

HEARZREAEKRFRESHN

™

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$°000 $'000
Tt T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—BZREE 424,436 441,773
New leases HEIHEE 8,795 1,277
Accretion of interest recognised FRERZ RIEFHE
during the year (note 9) (H5%9) 23,818 19,788
Payments (note 30(c)) IR (MFEE30(c) (32,182) (35,679)
Effect of lease modification HEEITNEZE - (4,990)
Exchange realignment bl D SE EE (36,870) 2,267
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZB=+—HZEKEE 387,997 424,436
Analysed into: DT
Current portion BPEA 31,808 19,690
Non-current portion JEBNER 356,189 404,746
387,997 424,436

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 36

to the financial statements.

HE&RZEHEDTRFHR

RMIEE36HKEE ©
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17. LEASES (continuea) 17. #HE @&
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases © RiEmERZEAEHREBEENT
are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= =&
$’000 $'000
T T
Interest on lease liabilities (note 9) HEaEH S () 23,818 19,788
Depreciation charge of FREEETERS
right-of-use assets (note 17(a)) (MFs¥17(a)) 32,928 32,922
Expense relating to short-term leases G HATA S AERI 2 FI 2
(included in cost of sales and GTAHE A RITEES)
administrative expenses (M 5E8 52 i 5E30(c))
(note 8 and note 30(c)) 6,777 6,898
Expense relating to leases of BREESEMNEHEMZES
low-value assets (included in cost of (5T ASHE B 4s K 1T RE %)
sales and administrative expenses) (B 5282 FiI5E30(c))
(note 8 and note 30(c)) 52 186
Total amount recognised in profit or ~ FA 183 FESD 2~ 48 %8
loss 63,575 59,794

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 30(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) in Guilin
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was $98,191,000 (2021: $107,265,000), details of which
are included in note 6 to the financial statements.
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d MHERSHREEENRPYHFREW
SE30(C)I B ©

FEBEREEA

AEERBLERELH HBE A E
MZIZEYE (1:516) - ZFAE Z 16X
—RAERAZMRESLREER
MR EHRRERE AERFEANERZ
FHL U A #98,191,0007T (& ——4F :
107,265,0007T) > B RIS SRR
Ffz¥6
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17. LEASES (continuea)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments

receivables by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

17. HE @
KEBEALBEA @
RIBE__F#+_-_B=1+—HB &~&H

RIFRBEF T Z A RIHEEEERER
R Z FEUCRREIRAAE R0 T -

2022 2021

—E-C BRI

$’000 $°000

T Tt

Within one year —FR 68,676 92,974
After one year but within two years —FEEMERN 45,532 64,158
After two years but within three years MERB=FAN 30,853 39,411
After three years but within four years —FBENERN 21,213 28,052
After four years but within five years MEBERERN 18,031 19,367
After five years HEE 71,837 92,520
256,142 336,482

REBEZRERA
— 2
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. MIZEE

Computer
software
BREER M
$°000
T
31 December 2022 —E__H#+”“HA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated N2 _F—B—HZmE
amortisation bR RET#EH 3,586
Additions NE 4,841
Transfer from property, HBEEYE BB KRB (ME15)
plant and equipment (note 15) 3,544
Amortisation provided during the year (note 8) FRFHRZ #H (5E8) (1,650)
Exchange realignment bE 2 S (233)
At 31 December 2022 2 _F#+”-HB=+—H 10,088
At 31 December 2022 2 _&F#+_”-_HA=+—H
Cost DS 11,964
Accumulated amortisation Rt (1,876)
Net carrying amount ERmEFE 10,088
Computer
software
EIEER
$°000
Tt
31 December 2021 —E-_—fH+-H=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated RIZEZ—F—HA—HzZml%
amortisation NPR R EE -
Additions NE 3,853
Amortisation provided during the year (note 8) FREHEZ #H (HEE8) (319)
Exchange realignment PE R sHEE 52
At 31 December 2021 N2 _—F+_HB=+—H 3,586
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 RIE2EZ—F+"A=+—HK
B 4—F—H
Cost DN 3,909
Accumulated amortisation Rty (323)
Net carrying amount BREF(E 3,586
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Notes to Financial Statements

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and

the movements during the year are as follows:

19. i

RA TS = MY 5L

(BRSB=EER5 > HUATIIR)

ERIEEERER

REBPR S M BRI R D 2 EIER
HEE/ (B RO RENEINT !

Withholding
tax on
distributable
Revaluation profits
of fromaPRC Lease
properties subsidiary liabilities Others Total
HeE
MEAT
AHK
ptlie= 0
MEER IR HEAE Hith ezt
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2021 R-B-—F—F—H (174,929) = 7,088 31,185 (136,656)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ AEEFt A/ (OB E)
to the statement of profit or loss 18 & Z IEIERIE
during the year: 6,989 (42,964) 5,767 19,643 (10,565)
Exchange differences ERERE (7,770) - 294 3,600 (3,876)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE_—%
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—Bk%
“E-"&F—-HF—H (175,710) (42,964) 13,149 54,428 (1561,097)
Deferred tax credited to the AEEFA/ (BE)
statement of profit or loss BR&RZIELERIE
during the year: 55 23,823 3,092 15,067 42,037
Exchange differences ERERE 14,881 4,274 (1,246) 4,919) 12,990
At 31 December 2022 “E__#+-B=+-8H (160,774) (14,867) 14,995 64,576 (96,070)
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AN AN =] ==
19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. IRIERIEE EREBE @
(Continueq)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: GEMBIRRZHER
2022 2021
—E-= B
$°000 $'000
T T
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIEE EE 79,064 67,883
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIBEE (175,134) (218,980)
(96,070) (151,097)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the KRB AU TIE B BRIELERIES
following items: 23
2022 2021
T T %
$°000 $'000
T T
(Restated)
(BRE5))
Unused tax credits REARIERE R 2,169 17,640
The above tax losses mainly arose in the PRC (2021: the PRC). LRIBEEFENHE CE T —F
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the B ELE o HINER AN KA REB FERIR
above items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will A PN A IE B 3K EE > sk p E
be available against which the above items can be utilised. IS B MR IE S EE o
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continueq)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
PRC and the jurisdiction of treaty the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5%. As at 31 December 2022, except
that the deferred tax amounting $1,615,000 (2021: $42,964,000)
being recognised for withholding taxes on dividends will be
distributed by a non-wholly-owned subsidiary established in the
PRC in respect of a portion of its earnings, no other deferred tax
has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion of
the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
earnings associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC
was approximately $1,731,628,000 as at 31 December 2022

(2021: $1,570,526,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment

19. BERIBEERE R @

RIEFPEEEMERZE MBI ERE
BREZEERKRENFEBILZINE DR
= BIBE BB 0%FEI0 R o fie HR B B2 5h
EREEFMBR B EERARKE
= A B BRETEIN MR EMR - A
EEMS BRMEAR % - RZZTZZ
F+ZA=+—H"F1,6150005T (==
——%F 1 42,964,0007T) HIEIERIBE R
—EERERINIEEERBASME
D BAE T IR SR EINRIN
TR AEBREPEA LB ATE
BTN AREHBAMASL TN
FEINMREREMIEERIE - EERA %
LB ABN A RS IRBEERFR
WERAk R B+ -"F=+—
B S8R HPENEASNEERENE
RE R 48RE4Y41,731,628,000 7T (=
——% 1 1,570,526,0007T) °

2 /A B E R SRR A A 8 3 KB P AS

of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. Mo

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 20. B ZEWFERIE K BN EE
2022 2021
T —E-—F
$°000 $°000
Fx T
(Restated)
(B FE5))
Trade receivables B S EW A 325,706 277,232
Impairment A (116,742) (117,048)
208,964 160,184

Bills receivables ENEE 5,701

214,665

BEBEREEAMRA
B FFE
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continuea)

Receivables from leasing properties are normally settled on an
advance receipt basis, where the lessees are required to pay in
advance for several months’ rental payment and pay a security
deposit as well. However, in the case of long-standing customers
with good repayment history, the Group may offer these customers
credit terms.

For the business of hotel operations, receivables are normally
settled in advance. However, the Group may offer credit terms to
certain corporate clients.

For the business of hotel management services, hotel design and
construction management services, the Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit. The Group has set out
policies to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group also reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable balance to ensure that adequate
provision for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over such trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

20.

B 5 R KR R R
4@

REEEYERBUTRE—RIUTAW T
NEE  AEARBAXNBAEEL
ARG o 2AT > B A RIFIERGC R Z
REAPME AEENERAZERR

RHEEERR

BOBE R ERHMS  ERERE— T
STESAEE AT AEEREETAD
TR IR S E R

FOBE BIERT  BERT REREE
BHEEFMS  AEERATFZES
FREEUEELLET - ~EECH
R BER MR (RERENER 1T B UK OB HR R
B rEETEHMERZRERE SR
WORRIE S R < PT UK O] 28 > DURE (R FL A
I eI RREH TR 2 R ER IR o
AER I ELZF E 5 BUBRUIRE RS
EREABRRNFHEMEREERE
Hro BHBUGRIAT TS

RIFHZE RS HRNREERE
B2 B RUBRIEZ REC DTN T

2022 2021

T %

$’000 $'000

Tt Tt

(Restated)

(fRE5))

Within 3 months —EB R 101,658 82,159
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=EABE/NMEAN 15,350 7,641
Over 6 months but within 12 months BEsNEEE+—EAN 15,682 26,872
Over 12 months BiE+—EAs 76,274 43,512
208,964 160,184
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continueq)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

20. B 5 EUGRIE K FEIR E 5
4@

B2 RN BERBEREEEH
T

2022 2021

—E-= BT

$’000 $000

Tt T

(Restated)

(#2E%))

At 1 January K—A—H 117,048 54,702
Impairment during the year, net (note 7) FREE FRE 7)) 10,114 59,809
Exchange realignment bE 2 R (10,420) 2,637
At 31 December w+—ZA=+—H 116,742 117,048

The increase in the loss allowance was due to certain outstanding
contractual amounts which were considered as default and the
Group is unlikely to receive such outstanding contractual amounts
in full.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
reference to the credit risk characteristics of receivables, either
individually or collectively. For receivables with credit risk identified
deteriorated significantly, management makes provision on the
individual basis, otherwise, management uses a provision matrix
to measure expected credit losses for the rest of the receivables.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

EREFEEMSERETREESNE
BRRIFRA R A LR T KA SEEHUL
BAERAREESOEER-

RERSHRSERURIBEZEERR
BREETRED T (FamERSHHEE)
PEERREERICZBBRIEMNS
EEEERENEEFHER HEH
TEREREREBHREWRRIEZE
HEEBE - BHEXDRERLER R
UBEERNZ ZER R D EET 2 AT
B2 B G 8 o &&st B RREAKND
BER EEBERNRSBHIEZ
BRIBREEIE BRIF M R AR RAE T %
HFRAZ GEKRAIFEER
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=X i)
20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. B Z WA EWRERE
(#&)
As at 31 December 2022, the trade receivables amounting to RZE_—_F#+"HF=+—H B5
$102,196,000 (2021: $105,377,000) were assessed individually FEWERIE102,196,00070 (& ——%F :
and considered to be unlikely for the Group to receive the 105,377,0007T) TH 3% M@ Bl & 2 5 (8 - b 47
outstanding contractual amounts and were fully impaired. REBBRABFERCKREZSHNEEEE
There are no credit enhancements held by the Group on such E2BRE AERTEMZERER
outstanding amounts. TR A EEIRRTH-
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure REBEREREEMET 2 E FEWRT
on the rest of the portion of the Group’s trade receivables using a Bz HipHnmAER 2 EERmERE
provision matrix: FIET
As at 31 December 2022 RZE__F+”"H=+—8H
Past due
Less than 3to6 6to 12 Over
Current 3 months months months 12 months Total
b ==F AE el
) =fER ~ER +Zf@R +Z@8 HeH
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEE 0.814% 1.537% 2.200% 3.311% 22.056% 6.508%
Gross carrying amount ($'000)  4&ERME(E (F7T) 102,464 15,554 13,863 37,567 54,062 223,510
Expected credit losses ($'000) BHEESHE (T 834 239 305 1,244 11,924 14,546
As at 31 December 2021 (restated) NZE-—F+ZHB=+—H &&F7))
Past due
Ik
Less than 3106 61012 Over
Current 3 months months months 12 months Total
YN =2 NE B
DA =) NMEB +ZER +-ER 1@t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 0.686% 0.715% 0.942% 2.310% 30.728% 6.791%
Gross carrying amount ($'000)  4BEREE (F7T) 83,846 7,697 11,672 35,755 32,885 171,855
Expected credit losses ($'000)  TBHAEERE (Tio) 575 55 110 826 10,105 11,671
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Ay
21. CONTRACT ASSETS 21. BNEBE
2022 2021
—ZE== T4
$’000 $°000
Tt T
Contract assets arising from: UTEBMELZEHNEE !
Hotel design and construction BIERT R EREEIRE
management services 113,524 70,803
Impairment HE (13,367) (8,034)
100,157 62,769
Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from BAIE & 5 AR R i (A B R 5T AR F5 PR
hotel design services and the provision of related design services BN WmV R AENEE RE
as the receipt of consideration is conditioned on having reached EAEBABHNWE LUERE TRTE
certain milestones of the design and customers confirming the R EE DR ERBAIE STl
design results. Upon completion of certain milestones of the ETHRAERBISEREMNE B
design and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised SEERIBEZSBEENNIEAES
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. FEUS R IE
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets R+ZB=+—BWEH&EEENEE
as at 31 December is as follows: Z TERABRFRIU0E ¢
2022 2021
g —E-—F
$’000 $'000
Tt Tt
Within one year —FRN 87,925 59,185
After one year — B 12,232 3,584

100,157 62,769
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21.

244

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

(FR53 AR > HLUETAIR)

21.

BHNEE®
EIZ\ :ﬁ

BREEZREBEREESHNT

2022 2021

—E-= B

$°000 $'000

Fr Tt

At 1 January R—A—H 8,034 1,342
Impairment losses (note 7) BEETE (5E7) 6,279 6,557
Exchange realignment bE S (946) 135
At 31 December R+-_B=+—H 13,367 8,034

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
reference to the credit risk characteristics of contract assets,
either individually or collectively. For contract assets with credit risk
identified deteriorated significantly, Management makes provision
on the individual basis, otherwise, Management uses a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses for the rest of the
portion. The provision rates for the measurement of the expected
credit losses on the contract assets are based on those of the
trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables
are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

As at 31 December 2022, the contract assets amounting to
$11,759,000 (2021: $7,221,000) were assessed individually and
considered to be unlikely for the Group to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts and were fully impaired. There are no credit
enhancements held by the Group on such outstanding amounts.
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RERSHASEENEEZFERR
BREETRED T (FamERSHHEE)

EEEERENEEFHER HEH
TEREFHERESEHERE D ZRIE
BEEE -ANENEEKRE S BIRIE
TWRENERERE BUSGEENEE
BREEREZBEXTREES B
MRZAREEBREAERH -aE
EZBHXDRERER ELSEERER
B D2 ZERRDE 2 E 5 BIRIEE
HiZ BEG 8 - At B RS AR
ER -EERERNRSERAISZAE
BTSSR BRE R ARKEEER
Az BB KA EER

RIEZZHF+ZRB=+—H>ak&
#11,759,0007T (Z & ——4 : 7,221,000
7T) Th ¥ @ Bl B 2E 5T o M4 A E R
AREREBIRERESOEEACR2ER
B AEETERZESAEESETE
EEEBZ -
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21. CONTRACT ASSETS (continuea) 21. EEE @
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure REBERRBERGTESNEEHR
on the rest of the portion of the Group’s contract assets using a Rz EERBREREHIUWT :

provision matrix:

2022 2021

g —_=E_—
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Expected credit loss rate FBHAE BEs1aLE= 1.580% 1.279%
Gross carrying amount ($’000) “ARmEE (T 101,765 63,582
Expected credit losses ($'000) FERREERIE (o) 1,608 813

22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. FEFIE ~ EthEURTRRIA

OTHER ASSETS REMEE
2022 2021
g BT
Notes $°000 $°000
B & T Tt
(Restated)
(BRE5))
Current portion BIEFZS 73
Prepayments B RIE 37,251 13,108
Deposits and other receivables B & R EMMEWEIE 70,249 58,187
Amounts due from related parties ~ FEURRAE A\ LFIE () 5,315 3,811
Amounts due from intermediate FEUR RS $ERR A B R0 IE
holding companies (@ 14,982 25,163
127,797 100,269
Impairment allowance B (o) (15,064) (15,745)
112,733 84,524
Non-current portion FERIEFEE 5
Long-term receivable REAE K FIE (© 1,832,874 1,713,833
Impairment allowance BERE (©) (48,937)

1,783,937
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22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. FAFIE ~ EfthEURTRIA

OTHER ASSETS (continued) REMEE @

(@ The amounts due from related parties and intermediate @ FEWREEALETEIZERASZ
holding companies are unsecured, interest-free and REEEF - REREERE
repayable on demand. iRo

(b) The movements in provision for impairment of other b FAEMERFIBEZ REREE
receivables during the year are as follows: EUH

2022 2021
—s-= B
$’000 $'000
T T
(Restated)
(#RE5))
At 1 January K—E—H 15,745 15,528
Impairment during the year FARIEE
reversed in profit or loss, net (note 7)  Z MB35 (F5E7) (93) (17)
Exchange realignment bE A% (588) 234
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 15,064 15,745
The above provision for impairment of other receivables is a A E A E U EIE 2 R B T B E B
provision for individually impaired other receivables. EREZ EfERFIEMHE 2 B o
Other than the aforementioned impaired other receivables, P& bt BB AR H A B U EIESN » 5T A
the financial assets included in the above balances relate AR ERBY & BB 2 BT A SRIE AV B0
to the receivables for which there was no recent history of B KA EA S RAR FE U RIE AR R

default and past due amounts.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

(©

The long-term receivable amounting to approximately
$1,832,874,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$235,078,000) represented the deferred amount arising
from the disposal of the Company'’s interest in Parcel C LLC
(“Parcel C”) and the relevant interest generated. The deferred
amount is secured by a mortgage on certain condominium
units under development of Parcel C. An increase of
impairment of long-term receivable of $29,525,000 was
recognised during the year. Further details of the repayment
terms have been set out in the Company’s circular dated 29
September 2020.

The movements in provision for impairment of long-term
receivable during the year are as follows:

RA TS = MY 5L

(BRSB=EER5 > HUATIIR)

22. TA{ITRIA ~ EAthFEGRIE
REMEE @

©

+%E491,832,874,00070 (BER
#9235,078,000%=7T) 2 RHBFEIK
FIBIEHE A A B fRParcel C LLC
(TParcel CJ) Z REZFTES 2 IRIE
SEARABRAF) B o 52 FRIEZRAL
Parcel CERBIB A TABEMZ
ZIBEIRIR - FNE R RIE
TUE R B N29,525,0007T © &
BERZE—THBINEAF
HEA—ZZFHLAZ-+1H
AR o

ERNRIAERFIEZ REREE
E) N

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

$°000 $'000

Fr Tt

At 1 January n—B—H 19,418 =
Impairment during the year recognised N FESRAYRIE (izE7)

(note 7) 29,525 19,361

Exchange realignment BE AR (6) 57

At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 48,937 19,418
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23. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE AND CASH 23. ZPEHIERITAEERIA

248

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REMRTFEY

2022 2021
—E_C B
$°000 $°000
Fx T
(Restated)
Gee=—gil)
Cash and bank balances B MIRTT4EER 1,013,751 3,008,545
Time deposits THAFER 67,170 =
1,080,921 3,008,545

Less: restricted bank balance W EFEARMZ
for a litigation case ZPREIERTTA (13,210) -
Cash and cash equivalents RWERIREEEBY 1,067,711 3,008,545

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to $893,494,000
(2021: $2,889,332,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates or the agreed deposit rates. The time deposit
is made for period of three years. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a bank balance under
restriction for a litigation amounting to $13,210,000 as disclosed in
note 32(b).
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RIBEHR  REBUARBHEZIR
S RIS H(EY)A893,494,0007T (T &
——%F 1 2,889,332,0007T) ° ARMEAT
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2 SN B IR AR 0 e 45 B ~ 5 BB e (T B
EEEE AEREETEBRERE
SNEXEZIRITEARBRRAHEME
ﬁlﬁgo

IRITERRBERBRTERNRIANE
FERA KRBT BN E - ERERSH
= F o SRITH R N EERF AL
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24, BEENTRIE HMFES

= 2
ACCRUALS RIE K fE St & A
An analysis of trade payable, other payables and accruals as at the RERSHIRE 5 B RIE BB IR
end of the reporting period is as follows: ERESTERZ 2T !
2022 2021
—EB-C BT
Notes $°000 $'000
B &5 T FT
(Restated)
(#2E%))
Trade payables B ENRIE a 23,479 23,290
Other payables and accruals HihENRIBREE B 254,864 314,280
Interest payable to an intermediate  FE{J— B R REIZER AT FIE
holding company b 71,350 256,589
Amounts due to an intermediate e — P EIER A B FIB
holding company © 665,734 786,930
Amounts due to related parties FE(SRAE A TFRIE c 288,073 302,252
1,303,500 1,683,341
Notes: Bd5E -
a. None of the Group’s trade payables are expected to be settled after a. B A B 5 I RUIBETERR R 8

more than one year (2021: Nil). B—FREE CE—F 8o

BBEEZEE RREPAREFE
RIBZIREG DT

The ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2022 2021

$°000 $'000

T T

Within 3 months =EAAR 15,099 14,814
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=1EBEMER N 2,899 19
Over 6 months but within 12 months BENERE+ZEAAN 11 556
Over 12 months BE+_EA 5,470 7,901
23,479 23,290

b.  The amount of $71,350,000 (2021: $256,589,000) in interest b EN—RBAEERL2IFE

71,350,000 (Z & = — & :

256,589,0007T) BIEE R (EE o e

M B AR BBL(TER
-“

FE(S — B PR A B K R

B AR BERER >

A EITRR RS o ]

payable to an intermediate holding company is repayable on
demand. The interest payable is unsecured and not subject to
compound interest.

@ The amounts due to an intermediate holding company and related ©
parties are repayable on demand and all these balances are
unsecured and interest-free.

BEBEREEAMRA
B FFE
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. 5NEE
Details of contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period BHBBENRBERARZFBUT !

are as follows:

2022 2021

—E-= B

$°000 $'000

F Fr

Sale of goods EmifE 4,419 335

Loyalty programme management services  Hii st I B EIRFS 38,463 45,340

Hotel management services BIEEER 66,600 52,113
Hotel design and hotel construction IS 52 5t R B S i R B TR AR

management services 17,534 11,302

Other services HMARF 1,220 856

Total contract liabilities BHEaEREE 128,236 109,946

Analysed into: DA

Current portion BREAER > 62,401 44,181

Non-current portion JERNHAER 7 65,835 65,765

128,236 109,946
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26. LOANS FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

Loans from an intermediate holding company were repayable as

26. —FHEIZER AT ER

—EPEERATNERZERRLT !

follows:
2022 2021
g TET—HF
Notes $°000 $'000
B sE F T
Current; BNHA:
Loans from an intermediate — BB ERABER
holding company 11,404 873,000

Notes:

a. The carrying amounts of all the Group’s loans from an intermediate
holding company during the year were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$”). The denominated amounts at the year end are as

MI5E

a. FRorEERE-—BTEERASZE
BERZERAEBEYLGET (TET) 5t
B-REXRZERSHEZZEWT ¢

follows:
2022 2021
—E-C BT
$’°000 $'000
T Tt
HK$ loan and borrowing BITERRER 11,404 873,000

This loan bears interest at a rate of 4% per annum.

b. Interest incurred during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
interest payable to an intermediate holding company as at 31
December 2022 are set out in notes 9 and 24, respectively.

LENIREGF4% IR R

b. HE_Z-__F#+"HA=1+—HIL%E
EEXZANBERR_ZE__F+_A4
=t+—HEM—BPBIZERAEZF]
BB HI5E0R24 ©
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

27. B&A

2022 2021
- T
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Issued and fully paid: BETREE:
4,697,346,488 (2021: 4,697,346,488) 4,697,346,488 (— & ——4 ©
ordinary shares 4,697,346,488) IR A% 469,735 469,735

28. RESERVES

(a) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 134
to 135 of the financial statements.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in the PRC is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and foreign operations
whose functional currencies are different from the Group’s
presentation currency.
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the Company’s subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in connection with
the Group’s reorganisation; and (i) adjustments made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
the change in the relative interests as a result of changes in
the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a
loss of control.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents (i) the difference between the
fair value of the consideration paid to Wanda Commercial
Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Wanda HK”), an
intermediate holding company to the Company, for the
acquisition of the entire interest in Wanda Hotel Management
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited and its subsidiaries which are
under common control of Wanda HK, and the carrying
amounts of the net assets acquired; and (ii) the difference
between nil consideration and carrying amounts of the net
assets of Wanda Hotel Design and Research Institute Co.,
Ltd, which was acquired under common control of Wanda
Commercial Management.

Distributable reserves

The Company’s share premium, special reserve and retained
earning as at 31 December 2022 may be distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by Section
54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
was $1,330,893,000 (2021: $1,147,185,000).
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. ER EAIFIEIE R RYED
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS DHEENRB AT
The following tables list out the information relating to subsidiaries TR AEERBEAFERER
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). (MR )) BIME A B &Rl e T
The summarised financial information presented below represents Frm B E R E R R 5T EE R A M
the amounts before any inter-company elimination. MEERY S EE ©
Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group

REEXRE BEIMHERE
BRABEE BERQBER

$°000 $°000
T T
2022 g
Percentage of equity interest held EERERITENET B DL
by NCI 49% 40%
Profit for the year allocated to NCI PDEFIEERER
KEE @A 14,941 24,793
Dividends declared to NCI EIRTIFERERNE S 194,310 -
Accumulated balances/(deficit) RS B IEER R
of NCI at the reporting date Ketidss (B4t 656,924 (36,789)
2021 —EB_F
Percentage of equity interest held EERERIFAENER BT
by NCI 49% 40%
Profit for the year allocated to NCI DT IR ERRY
REE A 1,937 24,127
Dividends declared to NCI BT IFERERAIR) = =
Accumulated balances/(deficit) RERE HEIEZER 7%31
of NCl at the reporting date REt#EER (B5AL) 1,374,676 (61,476)
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. ¥ER E R I IRz AV 1

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NHEENEAT @
(Continued)
Wanda
Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group
BEEERE BEINHERSE
BRABEER ABRATEH
$’000 $°000
T T
2022 —EC
Revenue g 98,191 -
Total expense and other net (loss)/gain 428 x & Elfth
(B518) W F 2R (67,699) 61,983
Profit for the year AEEn i 30,492 61,983
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AEE2@E (BE) A LLEE
for the year (73,916) 61,718
Current assets MBNEE 153,964 3,360
Non-current assets JEMEEE 1,407,214 1,792,410
Current liabilities mEaE (46,426) (1,887,741)
Non-current liabilities SEREEE (174,091) -
Net cash flows from EEXZREREFHE
— operating activities — TR 26,474 345
— financing activities — RREEH (1,390,885) -
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E R &S~ 8/ £ (3,676) -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERBFEEEYD
and cash equivalents CRiL) /18 % EE (1,368,087) 345
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. VEBE B RIEFERRERAVER
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS DHEBWB AT @
(Continued)

Wanda

Wanda Americas
Properties Real Estate
Investment Investment
Limited Limited
Group Group

BEEXRE BEFMNMERE
BRABEHR BRABER

$'000 $°000
T T
2021 —E-—f&
Revenue uﬁz* 107,266 -
Total expense and other net gain/(loss) 48 & H iz, (B548)
,ﬂE (103,313) 60,317
Profit for the year REE i 3,953 60,317
Total comprehensive income for the year Z<EE 2 EUR A 4258 83,226 67,610
Current assets REEE 1,523,735 3,015
Non-current assets JEMEEE 1,563,276 1,694,415
Current liabilities ViEZII=NE] (64,536) (1,850,297)
Non-current liabilities ERENEE (217,014) (823)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEE/ FiR) 2HERE 38
— operating activities — R 92,228 (5,291)
— investing activities —EEH 245,034 =
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXEE) > 22 & (1,860) 31
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERIREEEY
and cash equivalents 1w, ORiZl) /358 336,302 (5,260)
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions
During the year of 2021, a subsidiary of the Group
capitalised its debt from an intermediate holding company
as non-controlling interest amounting to $686,196,000. No
such transaction during this year.

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of $8,795,000

30. &2 H

(a)

R MERMEE

EXIFRERS

A — e —
N,

—F  AEE—REWER
R —EFREERATDERER
{62 FEFE AL #E22686,196,0007T © 4%
FEBERARARS -

FM AEERD
——fF:

3 Al #38,795,000

T (ZF 1,277,0007T)

(2021: $1,277,000) and $8,795,000 (2021: $1,277,000), %%8,795,0007Tt (ZZ&Z—% :
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements. 1,277,0007t) B E 2R E
AREERBEABZIFRER
=,
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)) RBEFEFMEENEEES
2022 —ECCHE
Loans Interest Amounts
froman payable to an due to an
intermediate  intermediate  intermediate
holding holding holding Lease
company company company liabilities
—ff FEfd—Fd FEfg—F
REZERAR PEERAT PEERAS
ZE® ZHE ZHE HERE
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T T T
At 1 January 2022 R_E-_"#—-A—H 873,000 256,589 786,930 424,436
Changes from financing cash flows HEREREEH (861,596) (194,765) (121,075) (32,182)
New leases IEIHE - - - 8,795
Interest expense MBS - 9,535 - 23,818
Exchange realignment EREE - @ (121) (36,870)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+ZA=+-H 11,404 71,350 665,734 387,097

BEBEREEAMRA
B FFE



Notes to Financial Statements

RA TSR MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BR53A=EERSN » HLUBTHR)

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  30. 28 IRE&REaRM T =
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BEREFTELXNEEEE
(Continued) #)
2021 - S=

Lease liabilities

HEas

$'000

T

At 1 January 2021 A2 —F—F—H 441,773
Changes from financing cash flows MBERTREEE (35,679)

New leases MEIHEE 1,277

Interest expense MERZ 19,788
Effect of lease modification HEEINEE (4,990)

Exchange realignment FE R A% 2,267

At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+ZHB=+—H 424,436

() Total cash outflow for leases (0 HEREBMLIERE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of FARERERZEERERY
cash flows is as follows: HEREONE

2022 2021

—g-= —E-—f

$°000 $'000

T Tt

Within operating activities (note 17(c) A= EEA (Fi5E17(c) 6,829 7,084

Within financing activities (note 17(b))  BRESEBNA (Mi5E17(0)) 32,182 35,679

39,011 42,763
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  30. 28R nEaRMT »
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d) Total taxes paid (d BfRI#RIE4E%E
The total taxes paid during the year were: FRBENIRNIEARZE .
2022 2021
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Operating activities: KEEE:
PRC CIT paid B HEIEERSIR 79,915 125,817
31. COMMITMENTS 31. K
The Group had the following commitments provided to joint NEEEGE RERERAENT
ventures:
2022 2021
== T4
$’000 $'000
T T
Contracted, but not provided for: EHESEES L

Capital contribution to joint ventures AaErETE 4,366 =
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. AAR
(a) Financial guarantees () HAFEHE(R
2022 2021
—Eo= =
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Guarantees given to banks for: MITEIEMAS FIRTT 2R -
Mortgage facilities granted to BPFARERMEERZ

purchasers of the Group’s BIBIRE

properties 1,057 1,692

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of the
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks to the
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantee arrangements, in the case of default
on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then
entitled to take over the legal titles of the related properties.
The Group’s guarantee periods commence from the dates
of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and end after the
execution of individual purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher
of the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised
less the cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL
allowance is measured by estimating the cash shortfalls,
which are based on the expected payments to reimburse
the holders for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the purchasers. The
amount initially recognised representing the fair value at initial
recognition of the financial guarantees was not significant.
The Group did not incur any material losses during the
financial period in respect of the guarantees provided for
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s
properties. The directors consider that in case of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and
therefore, no ECL allowance has been made in connection
with the guarantees.
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continuec)

(b) Litigation

In August 2022, a plaintiff, a hotel owner who had engaged
a subsidiary of the Group to provide hotel management
services, commenced a legal proceeding against the
subsidiary, alleging that the subsidiary of the Group was in
breach of the hotel management services contract signed
previously. The plaintiff is now claiming loss and damages
in the sum of approximately RMB11,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately $13,210,000) against the subsidiary of the
Group. The operation of a bank account of the subsidiary
of the Group with a bank balance of $13,210,000 was
therefore restricted by the court as disclosed in note 23 to
the financial statements. The hearing has not yet been held.
Given the internal assessment and the legal advice from an
independent legal advisor, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the outcome of the hearing cannot be
certain.
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 33. EAREALRS
TRANSACTIONS
(a) The Group had the following significant transactions with (@ AEBMREREREALETIU
related parties during the year: TEARRS !
2022 2021
== T
Note $°000 $’000
Mk Tt T
Companies controlled by ERARPERG IR BRI 2
the ultimate controlling NI
shareholder:
Sale of goods EmiHE () 26,108 22,024
Purchases of goods R 0] - 57
Financial shared service MBEZRFHAZ
expense (i) 1,075 470
Property management service 4% EIBARFERIS
expense (i) 4,613 4,061
Hotel service received B A S RS (i) 570 2,098
Hotel design service income  JEE R 5T ARFS WA () 28,014 61,401
Hotel construction BIEEFEERBUA
management service income (i) 1,236 15,073
Hotel management service IS EERARF YA
income (i) 55,002 63,505
Rental income HEWA 0] 5,907 7,255
Rental expense MHEMxZ (i 14,191 12,256
Advertising expense BER% () 307 621
Training expense BB 0] 44 250
Maintenance cost HEER A () 7 10
Entrusted management R EERBHY
services expense (i)/(if) 25,008 10,720
Interest on loans BFFHE () 9,535 34,824
Capitalisation of debt BERMEER () - 686,196
Recharge of entertainment (BB EERR
expenses (i) 21 -

Annual Report 2022
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) The Group had the following significant transactions with

related parties during the year: (Continued)

U

(i)

The above transactions were made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

On 24 August 2021, Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza
Co., Ltd.(“Guilin Gaoxin”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
entrusted management agreement with Zhuhai Wanda
Commercial Management Group Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Wanda”) and a subsidiary. Pursuant to the entrusted
management agreement, Guilin Gaoxin agreed to
entrust Zhuhai Wanda and a subsidiary to manage
its commercial property located in Guilin City and the
entrusted management services expense recognised
accordingly.

(b) Transactions with key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors,

is as follows:

33. EXFABEALTRG @

(@)

FEBRFERNEBEALTETIN
TERRZ : (&)

()

PR ZTHIRIEE S ER
REMTAERETEERZ
PR¢FfEL -

A TE_—HFN\B=-+WX
H> &AABZEZIF2EM
BAREMBHEEESS
Ra® (MEMEH) BEkE
BERXEEERRMAR
~E) (MHkEEE) h—EKH
BABGMELEEERZ
RIBEBEERBRE  EME
MEREZEKREEER—
BB AR EEAREMT
ZEEYFE > METLEER
F5h sz SARFERESS -

() EFBEBAEZRS

FERZTEZEEASHW (B4
ENFTAREFZRIB) WF :

2022 2021

= BT

$°000 $'000

F Tt

Short-term employee benefits CHREBEF 16,371 18,316
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EERFTETHAEMEZE—

emoluments are included in note 10 to the financial

statements.
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 33. ERBAEALTRS @
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (0 EHIRFEEALTZREBERR
2022 2021
—E=-= BT
$°000 $'000
F Tt
Trade receivables due from WU TALTZEZHIE
Fellow subsidiaries B&RMEAE 147,077 110,257
Prepayments and other FEUA T AL ZFEGRIER
receivables due from HfthpE U whI8
The intermediate holding companies ~ HEIZE A E 14,982 25,163
Fellow subsidiaries EENEVAE] 20,493 6,927
Receipt in advance from WERA T AL ZFE{IRRIE
Fellow subsidiaries BRMEBAE 143 171
Contract liability EHN8aE
Fellow subsidiaries EENEVAE] 4,148 -
Other payables due to FEF LT AL Z EfthzkIE
An intermediate holding company — IR AT 737,084 1,043,519
Fellow subsidiaries EENEYNE] 288,073 302,252
Loans from a8
An intermediate holding company —REREER A E] 11,404 873,000
Except the loans from an intermediate holding company, the RIRE—RBAPBEEZERASDZER
other balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed Sh B RAEIRIR - R ERE
terms of repayment. b=k
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33. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of the sale of
goods, property management service expense, hotel
design service income, hotel construction management
service income, hotel management service income, rental
income, rental expense and entrusted management services
expense disclosed above constitute continuing connected
transactions or connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of loans and
interest accrued from an intermediate holding company
and other related party transactions disclosed above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

33. EXAEALTRS &

()

FERZFIERZ EHRAY

FARBEREMRBE WMEEE
ARFS RS ~ RS R 5T ARTEURA N B
[ERREERFWA S BEEEER
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B LEHRAE+HASPIERZ
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. R D 2 ERT A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REISHR FENEMT A REE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: I
Financial assets EREE

Financial assets
at amortised cost

RBHEHM AT IRz EMEE
2022 2021
== -
$°000 $'000
T Tt
(Restated)
(#&E=7)
Long-term receivable RHEAFEWIE 1,783,937 1,694,415
Trade and bills receivables B 7 UWGRIE & R UL R4 214,665 170,295
Financial assets included in prepayments A FE RIE K E AR IE
and other receivables ZEMEE 61,908 54,736
Restricted bank balance T IRHIERIT AL ER 13,210 =
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 1,067,711 3,008,545
3,141,431 4,927,991
Financial liabilities THEaE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
HBHEHA ST IRz EMEE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
$°000 $'000
T T
(Restated)
(#RE5))
Lease liabilities HEaE 387,997 424,436
Financial liabilities included in trade payables, =t A B 5 FE {78 ~ EthAE (T
other payables and accruals TERETERAZE/RIAE 1,168,382 1,508,046
Loans from an intermediate holding company — R FR 3R A B &30 11,404 873,000
1,567,783 2,805,482
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

36

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of long-
term receivable, cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balance, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments and other receivables, lease liabilities, financial
liabilities included in trade payables, other payables and accruals
and loans from an intermediate holding company approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of

these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and loans from an intermediate holding company.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables, long-
term receivable and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The directors review and agree policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below:

35.

36.
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EEE SN L RABKMRE - BE KRR
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BEREWREE sTARYRIBEREME
Rz sHMEE HERR FTAES
R HthE B REETERZ
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TREERERZAANBERIERE
BERZHEFEITZ AR S WLIFEH
FERLE) AR FRIAT SRR
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. SRR GEIEEELREE

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business was principally conducted in RMB. The
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC was
RMB and these subsidiaries do not have significant monetary
assets or liabilites denominated in currencies other than their
respective functional currencies.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk during the year was
primarily through the long-term receivables and the amount
payable to an intermediate holding company that are denominated
in USD.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the

(%)
SN LB

FEBZEBIEUARBET K&
ERPEZNBARZNEEE /AR
> BZENBATLRFAEURES
BINEERLUNZ ERFHEZEAER
BENERE

AEERKTEFENTERZUETHE

2 REIBWRIRR BN —BREZERA
BlFIEZ G EE -

TRITREER Z BN IRESHAREE

reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange X7 BN EEB 2 BRHE
rates on the Group’s equity.
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
exchange rate in equity
EXREFH A RS,
(T GrE2L)
% $'000
T
2022 —E-=
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against US$ WA TRETRE 1 10,597
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against US$ i 78 7t %2 £ 7o i E (1) (10,597)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB Bt AR E 1 7,828
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 3755 A R H5 18 (& 1) (7,828)
2021 (Restated) BT —F (K&
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against US$ METRETRE 1 9,655
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against US$ 87t 5% E oI E (1) (9,655)
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB 4Bt ARIEE & 1 26,788
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB & 7T 57 A R ¥ 18{E (1) (26,788)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk. The extent of the
Group’s credit exposure is represented by the aggregate balance
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank balance, trade
and bills receivables, contract assets, prepayments and other
receivables and long-term receivable.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to
credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

36. TRLEEEIE B REER

(&)
EERE

AEBUTEETANENEERR AEH
ZEERBSRRERRESFEY X
FREVERITAE R B Z EUGRIR R B E
B aNEE  RYRUAREMETIE
DUR R AP URRIE ©

B o0 [\ e SR A PR R

TREIRELAERFERRLEER

REAER CRIFEEME R E AN

TAERAHBHZIER TEER) » K

R+ZR=+—BNFEEREROERSE

ZEEEERRBEERR -FIE52Z

TEAREMEEQREERMBER
GREERR-
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. iR EIEEHERKE

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022

=1

RIEB__H+"HA=+—H

B = ERR By SR AE P ER ()

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1288
HEHiEE
B FERREEHE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
FPEE FPEER HIMEE MR E #ast
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
Fr T T ¥ T
Long-term receivable** R WRE 1,832,874 - - - 1,832,874
Trade and bills receivables® BB REWFIBREWNEE
- Normal — g - - - 229,211 229,211
- Doubtful — AJ5E - - - 102,196 102,196
Financial assets included STABRNRIER
in prepayments and HitIEW I
other receivables™ JEREE"
— Normal — % 61,908 - - - 61,908
~ Doubtful L - - 15,064 - 15,064
Contract assets* BNEE
— Normal — % - - - 101,765 101,765
~ Doubtful L - - - 11,759 11,759
Restricted bank balance ZIREISRITA R
— Not yet past due — R 13,210 - - - 13,210
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BE&KRIREZHEY)
— Not yet past due — i ARAH 1,067,711 - - - 1,067,711
2,975,703 - 15,064 444,931 3,435,698
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= LA 45 &
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. =Rt E G EI1E B2 RIEER
AND POLICIES (continuea) #)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) = RS R AR (@)
As at 31 December 2021(Restated) N2 —F+ZA=+—H &&%)
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{88
BHEE
518 FERREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
SE1PEER SEOREER HIMEEL kY st
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT Fr Tt Tt Tt
Long-term receivable*™ RHEAEW G IE™ 1,713,833 = = - 1,713,833
Trade and bills receivables* ElaAlevElddle sy
- Normal — =g - - - 181,967 181,967
— Doubtful — AJ&¢ - - - 105,377 105,377
Financial assets included STATENTIER
in prepayments and HitiEWIEZ
other receivables™ SREE"
— Normal —E8 54,736 - - - 54,736
— Doubtful — AJ&¢ - - 15,745 - 15,745
Contract assets* BHEE
- Normal — g - - - 63,582 63,582
— Doubtful — AJ&¢ - - - 7,221 7,221
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY
— Not yet past due — R 3,008,545 - - - 3,008,545
4,777,114 - 15,745 358,147 5,151,006

For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 and note 21 to the
financial statements respectively.

o The credit quality of the financial assets included in long-term
receivable, prepayments and other receivables is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables, contract assets
and prepayments and other receivables are disclosed in notes 20,
21 and 22 to the financial statements, respectively.

. AEBEABIECRER ZZE3E
WRIBEBRSHNEEMS * BIREEHR
fe 2 Bkl Bl S B 75 #R AR Y £ 20 ¢ Bt
FE2175E o

o EE ARBBWEIAE AN RIERHE
AEWCRIR 2 RS A Y R H B
BENMETZEETRAEZEERR
B MERLUREEZ IR N A HEE
BEEGEAEE  GAZEETHE
EZEEERBARRRIE -

75 B 2 o [ 6 S A,
A0 EEUREN AR
AL B2 EERB RS
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. iR EIEEHERKE

AND POLICIES (continuea) #)

Liquidity risk mMENE £ RS

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring REBFRRE RS ERETALRE

liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both RHEFTRMRZAR -ZTAB A&

its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade and bills EEvEMTARSHEE BFIUNEBZE

receivables) and projected cash flows from operations. WERIE R FEU R 15) 2 ZlIHA B MUK FERA A
EEERERE

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity rEEBRARBESENRIERA

of funding and flexibility through trade payables and other HRENHRIE - ER—BTPEIERAEE

payables, use of loans from an intermediate holding company and AR EEaGREFESRREREEHEE

lease liabilities. e 1 A -

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end RESHR > AEEERBETARITIR

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted NRzeRaBIREROT

payments, is as follows:

2022
—EC
Less than
1 year or on 1to2 2to5 Over
demand years years 5 years Total
—FERH
BEX —EWNE WELE BBRIE szt
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Lease liabilities HEaE 53,490 44,086 112,726 355,358 565,660
Loans from an intermediate ~ —RRREIER AR ER
holding company 11,860 - - - 11,860
Trade payables and B EAHIER
other payables Hth IR 1,168,382 - - - 1,168,382
1,233,732 44,086 112,726 355,358 1,745,902

272 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to Financial Statements

RA TS = MY 5L

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bx57AE=£B34b » HHLIATTAIR)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. iR EIEEHERKE

AND POLICIES (continuea) (&)
Liquidity risk Continued) mEEEREE @

2021 (Restated)
“TT—F (K5

Less than
1 year oron 1to2 2t05 Over
demand years years 5 years Total
—FRE
BERK —EWmE WERF BBEF Azt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tt T
Lease liabilities HEEE 44,364 43,467 125,379 429,711 642,921
Loans from an intermediate ~ —FEFHEIERATER
holding company 907,920 = = = 907,920
Trade payables and BEENTIER
other payables HitfE[NRIB 1,508,046 - - - 1,508,046
2,460,330 43,467 125,379 429,711 3,058,887
Capital management BEAXREE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEFESAEE TEBRARELRE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and BIGER AL T E R ERFERE
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business BARLER  ULTFHHEEBRBERSR
and maximise shareholders’ value. R EBE
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEBBEEEARRE WIZLHEER
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk BERARBEE 2 BB BEHRARE -
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the AT NRAEEAREE AEENEH
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to BEEREIKE BREROEARLIEIT
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. HRMD o AREETEMENSIENBEZE
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for BER S EFEHES)

managing capital during the year.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. iR EIEEHERKE

AND POLICIES (continuea) #)
Capital management (Continued) BEXREE @
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and a debt- rEEFHERAABRLEEREBHE
to-asset ratio. The gearing ratio is defined as net debt divided ELEXEEER - BXRERLEEXERS
by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises loans from an MEaEFEFRUEEGNaEFE 8
intermediate holding company, less cash and cash equivalents. BEFREEE—EPEERABREIRIR
The debt-to-asset ratio is total liabilities net of advances from ERIBEEEY - EHRHBEELLERBU
customers and contract labilities divided by total assets. The MEBERRPBRRLRENaERUESR
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as follows: Eo-RBREHARZEAGBLEENT -
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
g BT —F
+=A=+-B +=A=+—§
$°000 $'000
Tt T
(Restated)
(#2=E%1))
Loans from an intermediate —RIPEIER A BB
holding company (11,404) (873,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents* B RERIREEEY 1,080,921 3,008,545
Net cash R FER 1,069,517 2,135,545
Total equity 4EREES 3,187,483 3,847,621
Gearing ratio BARBREE N/A RiEH N/A 78
. including restricted cash - BIEZREIRE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

37.

38.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The debt-to-asset ratio as at the end of the reporting period was

36. wRLEMEEIEBIERBER
#)

BAEE ®

REIRERZEHBHEELRNT

as follows:

2022 2021
T T4

$°000 $'000

F Tt

(Restated)

(#&E7)

Total liabilities wam 2,073,722 3,357,763
Less: Advances from customers B BE R (7,360) (11,762)
Contract liabilities HREE (128,236) (109,946)
1,938,126 3,236,055

Total assets BEE 5,261,205 7,205,384
Debt-to-asset ratio ERHEELE 36.8% 44.9%

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date that these consolidated financial statements were
approved, there is no event after the reporting period which should
be disclosed.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As stated in note 2, comparative amounts have been restated to
reflect the effects of the Business Combination under common
control, as if the Business Combination under common control had
been completed at the beginning of the comparative period.

37. RSB EIE

REZFEEVBRREMLEZ R BIE
ATREZHREHERER

38. LEEREEE

AN EE2FA 8 > EEEREERE EH LU IR
HEES TEBGHZEE BUHF
ER T EB A ER LB
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. AABITERTR
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the R|EIR > AR B M BRI RERY
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T 6
2022 2021
—E-- BT
$°000 $'000
T Tt
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - B Bk B - 6
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 3,612 877
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARZIRE 1,087,035 1,592,204
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,090,647 1,593,087
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Other receivables H eI 3,059 3,699
Amounts due from an intermediate FE W — RS FR S 422 AR A B) 7B
holding company 5,382 1,871
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EPNIE O] 1,099,777 1,100,388
Cash and cash equivalents BENRIBEEEY 90,268 105,766
Total current assets MENE EEE 1,198,486 1,211,724
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENaE
Other payables HhpEmIa 5,739 4,062
Amounts due to subsidiaries P& B A B =R I8 467,698 =
Amounts due to an intermediate FE — R PR A B FIE
holding company - 205,275
Loans from an intermediate holding company —RIHRRIIERE AT B 11,404 873,000
Interest payable to an intermediate FE—B P EIERABF 2
holding company 24 104,569
Lease liabilities MESRE 1,399 985
Total current liabilities mENaBERE 486,264 1,187,891
NET CURRENT ASSETS TMENEERE 712,222 23,833
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT mEERTEAE
LIABILITIES 1,802,869 1,616,920
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENAE
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,241 =
Net assets BEFE 1,800,628 1,616,920
EQUITY 1
Equity attributable to owners BATHE AELER
of the parent
Share capital f& s 469,735 469,735
Reserves G 1,330,893 1,147,185
Total equity Mt 1,800,628 1,616,920
Ning Qifeng Han Xu
EHIg F2E
Executive Q/recz‘or Non-execut/ve*D/recz‘or
HITEE FEHITEE
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. ARBMFHFRIR @
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: BosE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABNEBHEUWT -
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B 1R EHE LEFlIlEL REtEE #azt
$’000 $’000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
At 1 January 2021 R_E2-_—F—H—H 1,935,266 127,961 (889,033) 1,174,194

Loss for the year and total NEERBBRAERE
comprehensive loss T EASIBAEEE

for the year - - (27,009) (27,009)
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—H+Z“A=+—H

1 January 2022 —E-—&—AF—H8 1,935,266 127,961 (916,042) 1,147,185
Profit for the year and total REE R RAFE

comprehensive income 2HEWN R AERE

for the year - - 183,708 183,708
At 31 December 2022 RZIE2EZHF+ZA=+—H 1,935,266 127,961 (732,334) 1,330,893

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  40. Ht/EBATSIRR

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MBERAN_SEI=F=RF=+EK
by the board of directors on 29 March 2023. EETHERIRRET) o




Financial Summary

T2

Year ended 31 December
HE+-RA=1+—HLEFE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—\& ZB-NgF 2ZHE B BI”H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET THET THET FET THERT

(Restated)
(=75
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue Wz 812,320 812,948 655,419 873,659 816,780
(Loss)/profit before tax from REREEH 2 BRRE
continuing operations (E548) /&A (91,034) (696,711) 135,508 390,924 299,031
Income tax credit/(expenses) from  FFERE EFE Y Frii8
continuing operations e/ D) (301) 78,643 (39,400) (139,664) (66,055)

(Loss)/profit for the year from RECEEB 2 AFE
(B518) /%A (91,335) (518,068) 96,099 251,260 232,976

continuing operations
Discontinued operations BRI
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRIEREEH s REE

discontinued operations iwh/ (B518) 923,677 120,444 134,057 = -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEGF,/ (558 832,342 (388,624) 230,156 251,260 232,976
Profit/(loss) attributable to ISYNSIE 7PN/

owners of the parent iwH/ (8518) 766,716 (150,387) 165,131 233,070 193,242
Non-controlling interests FEER R 65,626 (238,237) 65,025 18,190 39,734
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF/ (H18) 832,342 (388,624) 230,156 251,260 232,976
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RS2

At 31 December

R+ZB=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“E-N\E ZE-hE T-TE T CBIZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET TEx TET FTAET TERT

(Restated)

(i =51)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Total assets WEE 12,333431 9,592,979 6,568,754 7,205,384 5,261,205
Total liabilities R 0,126,040 6,949,669 3,782,161  3357,763 2,073,722
Net assets BEEFE 3,207,391 2,643,310 2,786,593 3,847,621 3,187,483

Equity attributable to owners HREHA NELER

of the parent 2220090 1,921,479 2,219,981 2,534,421 2,567,348
Non-controlling interests JEPERR I 987,301 721,831 566,612 1,313,200 620,135
Total equity 1Bk 3,207,391 2,643,310 2,786,593 3,847,621 3,187,483

BEEE R R RS
—®__4




Property Portfolio
ESES

1. PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT 1. FEREME
Gross Group’s Term of
Location Existing use floor area interest lease
g A& BEEDR FEENEE GizR-t
(sa-m.) (%)
(F753K)
The Shopping Mall of Commercial 152,440 51% Medium
Site P05, north to [EES R

Huan Cheng Nan Road

No. 1, Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, the PRC
REEATEE AR
MR —
LUAEPOSH 1R 7 35
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